
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

April 7, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 831 6869 5368 

Password: 497664 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

A. Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Barbara Sowada 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery 

1. Incident Command Team Update Kim White, Director of Emergency Services 

B. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee)  Ed Tardoni 

1. Termination and Appeals 

2. Introductory Period 

3. Political Activity 

4. Communication Systems 

C. Rules of Practice Governing Hearings Taylor Jones 

D. Medical Staff Rules and Regulations          Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical Staff President 

E. Medical Staff Bylaws 

1. Proposed Changes to Existing Bylaws 

2. Proposed Changes to New Bylaws 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Taylor Jones  

A. Board Bylaws Barbara Sowada 

B. Employee Policies (from the Human Resources Committee)  Ed Tardoni 

1. Telecommuting 

C. Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care Kari Quickenden, 

Chief Clinical Officer 

D. Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Board Policy  Kara Jackson, 
 Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety 

 D.   FOIA Public Records  Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 
  

1/277



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

April 7, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 831 6869 5368 

Password: 497664 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Marty Kelsey 

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

2. Bad Debt (For Action) 

March Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Ed Tardoni 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Taylor Jones 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell 

A. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Agreement for Occupational Health Medical Services Jim Bridger Power Plant 

2. Second Amendment to Specialty Services Agreement (Wamsutter Clinic High Desert 
Rural Health Care District) 

3. Varian 

4. VIE Healthcare 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Jacques Denker  

XI. Good of the Order Taylor Jones 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

A. Notice of Claim 

XIV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

2/277



3/277



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

February 3, 2021 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on February 3, 2021, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical 

Staff President; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater County Board 

of County Commissioners Liaison. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson shared a story a patient gave to her at the grocery store. The patient couldn’t say 

enough good things about their care and said everyone was kind and so nice. The patient said so 

many times we don’t hear the positive things and only the negative so she wanted the CEO to 

know she had impressive visits in two different areas. Ms. Richardson applauded staff for all they 

do to take such good care of our patients. Mr. Jones said the jobs at the hospital can be difficult 

under normal circumstances so under the current conditions, it is always so nice to hear positive 

stories. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Mr. Jones asked if there were any changes to the agenda. Mr. Jake Blevins of ST&B Engineering 

requested adding discussion of the air handler project and a proposed change order. He requested 

an out-of-sequence review of the HVAC upgrade project to avoid three weeks of delay. Mr. Jones 

said it could become item “A” under “New Business.” The motion to approve the agenda with the 

requested change was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.   

 

  

4/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the January 6, 2021, regular meeting as presented was made 

by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update 

 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander and Director of Emergency Services, reported Covid testing 

is decreasing with about forty patients a day. We are helping Public Health with getting vaccines 

out quickly. We are having more visitors in the hospital. Staff have done a phenomenal job of 

implementing new things and taking care of patients. Mr. Jones asked Ms. White to pass along to 

staff the Board’s gratitude.  

 

Termination and Appeals Policy 

 

Mr. Jones said we are still working on the Termination and Appeals Policy and Rules of Practice. 

Mr. Mathey asked how we are going to handle these coming before the Board. He said there are 

things to be said and asked when we are going to discuss them. He asked if Mr. Geoff Phillips, 

Legal Counsel, is going to review and report back to the Board. Ms. Richardson said she thinks 

that is the plan and is not sure on the timing.    

 

Medical Staff Rules and Regulations, Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Mr. Jones said Dr. Denker asked if there are questions to please forward them via e-mail to Dr. 

Denker. Following discussion, Dr. Sowada said copies of questions will also be sent to Ms. 

Richardson, Ms. Kerry Downs-Medical Staff Services Director, Ms. Suzan Campbell-In House 

Counsel, and the Board of Trustees.   

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Mr. Jones said these items are for review as well as to ask questions or make comments.  

 

HVAC Project Update 

 

Mr. Blevins reviewed information discussed at the last Building and Grounds Committee meeting. 

A decision was made that a portion of the laboratory addition project be accelerated into the 

existing HVAC upgrade project that is underway. That portion is mechanical and intensive in 

nature. The name of that unit is S1 that serves a large portion of the facility. It took the design team 

quite a bit of time to pull together all the plans. We obtained the pricing earlier in the day and it is 

$1,587,208. The work needs to be completed by June 30 with available funds or those funds will 

be forfeited. Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, or Ms. Richardson to 

address the financial implication. Ms. Love said this was being planned as part of the lab 

5/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

renovation. The plan is to use remaining CARES Act funds. She said she is comfortable with the 

amount of the change order. Ms. Richardson noted this should decrease the cost of the lab remodel. 

Mr. Will Wheatley, Plan One, said S1 came after the original estimating efforts. When we dug into 

mechanical systems is when S1 came to light. He said it is not a one-for-one savings and maybe 

half of the amount was the breaking point difference. The motivation was to get to CARES Act 

funds. Mr. Blevins said the amount will come down but not one-for-one. Ms. Richardson said she 

thinks it is timely and a justifiable expense under the rules of CARES Act and things it is a good 

move. The motion to approve the change order as discussed in the approximate amount of 

$1,587,000 be approved as discussed was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion 

carried. Dr. Sowada said anytime we can replace old equipment with SLIB money, we should. Mr. 

Blevins thanked the Board, Mr. Wheatley, and the representative from Groathouse.  

 

Proposed Changes to Existing Bylaws 

 

Dr. Denker said the Medical Staff found an opportunity to improve documents and noted the 

changes made.  

 

Proposed Changes to New Bylaws 

 

Ms. Downs said the Medical Staff made a proposal to change the new bylaws which the Board is 

still reviewing so they made a decision to make those same changes to the existing in case the new 

bylaws take awhile to change.  

 

Employee Policies 

 

Political Activity:  Mr. Jones said the policy kind of addresses whether or not a person can apply 

work time for running for political office. He could see the opportunity for someone to be at home 

and on hospital time and they might want to clarify personal time vs. work time. Mr. Tardoni said 

we do have a policy regarding working from home that addresses that and distractions that impact 

work. Ms. Campbell said that is a good point. She would like to look at telecommunication policy 

to ensure they coordinate. Mr. Tardoni asked that questions and comments are collected, then 

address them, and then bring them back to the Board. He asked that questions be sent to him and 

copy Ms. Campbell. Mr. Kelsey thanked the HR Committee for taking this up and said he thinks 

it is a really good policy and well-written. He said campaigning should be on a person’s own. We 

need to avoid double-dipping for payment. He wants to discuss non-elected appointments to boards 

and commissions. He asked what do we do with employees who want to serve on these groups. 

He is not sure how the hospital handles these things. He is not sure we need a policy and hopes 

our current practice is we don’t require people to use PTO for those types of things. He hopes we 

encourage the employees to serve our communities. He views unpaid service similar to 

appointments. Ms. Richardson said there is a difference between exempt and non-exempt staff. 

She said we have never actually had this come up where staff have asked to take time off to serve 

on a board. There was discussion of concerns. Mr. Kelsey said it is important the hospital shares 

the talent and expertise of staff with other entities at the community and state level.  

 

Communication Systems: Mr. Tardoni asked for questions after the meeting on communications 

go to Mr. Tardoni and Ms. Campbell.  

 

6/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Equal Employment Opportunity:  Mr. Tardoni said it came up for review. The changes are 

insignificant and no Board action is required. It is just included as a “for your information” item. 

  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson said Ms. Lena Warren is the new Community Outreach Director. Her first big 

project is the health fair March 6. Ms. Richardson welcomed Ms. White as the new Director of the 

Emergency Room and said Ms. White has led the Incident Command Team so well. Ms. 

Richardson said we continue to interview urology and pathology candidates. The locums have 

been saying good things about the hospital facility and staff and are very complimentary of what 

is happening here. The vaccine clinic went extraordinarily well in working with Public Health. 

Ms. Richardson thanked everyone for every effort. She announced we started a community “Health 

Matters” newsletter. Commissioner Smith reached out to Ms. Richardson and the Board to join in 

helping find a solution to the ambulance service. Commissioner Smith said the word from the city 

is the hospital should take it. Ms. Richardson said we talked about it in the past and determined it 

is not viable but we are happy to look at solutions. Ms. Richardson thanked staff for working so 

hard. She said Covid numbers are decreasing and we have been doing our best to take care of our 

community. She thanked staff, physicians, the Board, and the Commissioners.   

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Mr. Jones said if anything needs to brought forward, please discuss it at this time. 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Mr. Jones asked for more information regarding physicians reporting on quality issues. Mr. Kelsey 

said we are still reviewing the process. Ms. Downs said Ms. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical 

Officer, brought the information to the Medical Executive Committee meeting. They feel a Joint 

Conference Committee meeting would be the best place to discuss.   

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni pointed out the good statistics of the HR program in this report.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said everything is in the packet. There are no capital expenditure requests or requests 

for ratification of SLIB or CARES Act money.  

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,221,052.79 as presented by Mr. 

Ron Cheese, Patient Financial Services Director, was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. 

Tardoni. Motion carried.    

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

7/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, said the County Commissioners held a special meeting 

to look at applications for CARES Act money for non-profits covering lost revenue, canceled or 

altered events, etc. We applied for funding for the golf tournament and it was approved. We are 

excited for that revenue and are grateful. Ms. Dianne Blazovich’s term is over so we have a new 

President next month, Mr. Matt Jackman. We continue looking for a date to have a joint meeting 

with the Board of Trustees. We have rolled out the Planned Gifts Committee. We hope it will be 

community volunteers driven. Mr. Jones noted Ms. Marshall has done an excellent job with grant 

writing. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni reported the Committee did not meet to make way for the vaccination clinic.  

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said she and Mr. Mathey are reviewing and revising the bylaws. They plan for a draft 

to be to the Board by April. They need to make sure we are recording the CEO performance 

reviewed per The Joint Commission requirements. We are also required to have a Board self-

assessment. She recommends using The Governance Institute process. It is standardized and 

compares us to like hospitals. Dr. Sowada suggested completing the assessment in April. She asked 

Ms. Richardson if we can ask her assistant to make those contacts to get it going. The annual 

summary is the one that needs to be recorded as a written record. Dr. Sowada said we are meeting 

the requirement.   

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board will discuss in executive session.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said they have not met.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Dr. Sowada said iProtean offers a series of 10-30 minute videos that are training documents that 

have to do with significant Board topics. She said the material is really useful. The agreement 

covers access for the five Trustees and five Senior Leaders.   

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Denker said the Medical Staff are focusing on quality and Press Ganey. They are excited and 

nervous with Cerner getting started. The physicians noticed Ms. Richardson has been rounding in 

the departments and that is powerful, meaningful, and appreciated. Mr. Jones thanked Dr. Denker 

for participating in the meeting.   

 

8/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Kelsey said he was not aware of the timing of the Finance and Audit Workshop on February 

24th and requested a later time in the day. The group agreed to begin at 3:30 PM. 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he really liked the website with the leadership team. However, if you tap the e-

mail button, it not really user-friendly to get an e-mail to people. He said it is hard to navigate and 

asked if IT could investigate. 

 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for all they are doing.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session. He said the Board would take a five-minute 

break and reconvene in executive session at 3:33 PM. The motion to go into executive session was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:32 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to resume regular session 

was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve hospital privileges for the healthcare providers discussed in executive 

session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 
 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from January 12, 2021  

1. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 years) 

 Dr. Sarah Lombardo, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Sudha Jayaraman, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Jennifer Ngo, Tele Radiology (VRad) 

2. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Veronica Ledvin, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Nicole Dyer, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Cameron Kesler, Hospitalist  

3. Temporary Privileges to Locum Tenens Staff 

 Dr. Edward Callaghan, Pathology 

4. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Steven Croft, Anesthesia 

 Dr. David Duckwitz, Podiatric Surgery 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Gregg Sydow, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

6. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Preetpal Grewal, OB/GYN 

 

9/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

The motion to authorize the CEO to enter into the healthcare provider employment contracts 

discussed in executive session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

The motion to deny the governmental claim as discussed in executive session was made by Mr. 

Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

The motion to authorize the CEO to pay the medical expenses discussed in executive session was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 

5:35 PM.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

10/277



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

February 8, 2021 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting via 

Zoom on February 8, 2021, at 5:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal 

Counsel.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to move into executive session to discuss matters confidential by law was made by 

Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

At 6:23 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to go back into regular session 

was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute the new emergency department contract with the 

University of Utah with minor additions about quality as discussed in executive session was made 

by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

The motion as to waive the requirement of treatment at a blue distinction hospital as to the 

dependent insured and as to the treatment discussed in executive session on condition that 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County’s stop loss insurer also waives the requirement was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for their time. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting 

adjourned at 6:25 PM.   

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

11/277



 

MINUTES FROM THE EMERGENCY MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

February 9, 2021 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in an emergency meeting 

via Zoom on February 9, 2021, at 5:30 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal 

Counsel.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to move into executive session to discuss matters confidential by law was made by 

Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

At 6:37 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to go back into regular session 

was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

The motion that MHSC waive the requirement of treatment at a blue distinction hospital as to the 

dependent insured and as to the treatment discussed in executive session was made by Mr. Mathey; 

second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for their time. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting 

adjourned at 6:38 PM.   

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

12/277



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

February 11, 2021 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting via 

Zoom on February 11, 2021, at 4:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal 

Counsel.  

 

FEBRUARY 9, 2021 EMERGENCY MEETING ACTION 

 

The motion to waive the requirement of treatment at a blue distinction hospital as to the dependent 

insured and as to the treatment discussed in executive session was made by Mr. Mathey; second 

by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:02 PM.   

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

13/277



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

February 24, 2021 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in a special 

workshop on February 24, 2021, at 3:30 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed 

Tardoni. Excused: Mr. Richard Mathey. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal 

Counsel. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson shared comments made at a recent Patient and Family Advisory Council meeting 

by a patient who had a very positive experience in the Rehab Department. He said that everyone 

was very nice, kind, and that the team was very attentive. He said he was most appreciative that 

the staff even brought him water to drink and he thanked everyone for everything they are doing 

for our patients. 

 

FINANCE AND AUDIT WORKSHOP 

 

Ms. Richardson said we would love to be back to our pre-Covid levels. We have good data to make 

good projections. She reminded everyone the workshop was in lieu of the March regular meeting. 

Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, reviewed a PowerPoint presentation. She reviewed the 

following agenda items: 

 Meet the team 

 Revenue Cycle project updates 

- Patient Navigation program 

- Clinical Documentation improvement - CDI 

 Cerner update 

 SLIB grant update 

 Hospital challenges 

- Price Transparency 

- No Surprises Act 

14/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 24, 2021 Board of Trustees Special Workshop 

Page 2 

- Insurance Contract management 

 COVID-19 pandemic financial impact 

 CARES Act funds and Medicare Accelerated payments 

 Standard & Poor’s Outlook 

 Construction projects 

 FY2021 Current and Projected financials 

 FY2022 Budget focus and assumptions 

 Budget Process and Timeline 

 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for their time.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion 

carried.  Mr. Jones said there would be a five-minute break. 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 6:17 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to go back in to regular 

session was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The motion to approve credentials for providers from the list provided by Ms. Kerry Downs, 

Medical Staff Services Director, was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from February 9, 2021  

 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Michael Neyman, Hospitalist 

 

2. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Mark Uhlman, Urology 

 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Michael Bowers, Family Medicine 

 Dr. Peter Jensen, Ophthalmology 

 Dr. Weston Jones, Pediatric Dentistry 

 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Ronald Sonken, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. David Tague, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Edward Kimball, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

15/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 24, 2021 Board of Trustees Special Workshop 

Page 3 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 6:18 PM.   

 

 

       

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

 

16/277



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

March 30, 2021 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting via 

Zoom on March 30, 2021, at 5:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. Excused: Mr. Richard Mathey. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal 

Counsel.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to move into executive session was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried.  

 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

At 5:19 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to go back into regular session 

was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to sign the physician contract as discussed in executive session 

was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:20 PM.   

       

 

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

17/277



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 8641492 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Administration 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-POLITICAL ACTIVITY 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

Policy 

To provide guidelines for Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) employees as to political activity 
either for others or self. 

Every MHSC employee has the right to and is encouraged to register and vote. However, as MHSC receives 
federal and state funds there are certain limits on employees political rights.  Those limits include but are not 
limited to: 

A Hospital employee may not engage in, nor may Supervisors or Directors allow employees to engage in 
campaign activities of any sort, including solicitation of political contributions while on any of the Hospital's 
campuses. 

Employees are not permitted to use Hospital property, such as copiers, printers, fax machines, computers or 
telephones for political activities. 

An employee may not campaign or participate in political activities while wearing Hospital apparel. This 
includes wearing of political buttons or signs when at work and/or on duty, and placing signs on any of the 
Hospital campuses. However, this does not exclude an employee's right to display a bumper sticker on an 
employee's personal vehicle.  In short, all political activity is to be kept separate and apart from the job and 
away from the workplace. 

Running for public office 

MHSC employees are encouraged to engage in the political process i.e. running for local (community college 
board, county commissioners etc) state or federal office.  However, MHSC cannot appear to support/promote 
its employee over another candidate. To avoid any appearance of impropriety or unfair advantage, MHSC will 
require any employee who runs for office at any level of government or board position ( that requires an 
election process) to take PTO to campaign and/or serve in the position. Once all available PTO is used up any 
time taken from the employees job at MHSC to run a campaign or hold office will be unpaid. 

Employees may not campaign in the Hospital and may not use Hospital equipment, communications systems, 
supplies or any other materials from MHSC for campaign/election purposes.  This prohibition includes social 
media and email campaigns. These campaigns may not be conducted from MHSC computers or 
communication devices.  Any employee who runs for office must disclose that they are not endorsed by MHSC 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-POLITICAL ACTIVITY. Retrieved 03/15/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8641492/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

18/277

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

REFERENCES 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

and that no MHSC equipment or supplies was used for their campaign. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-POLITICAL ACTIVITY. Retrieved 03/15/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8641492/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

19/277



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 8994131 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Administration 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES- COMMUNICATION 
SYSTEMS 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS 

PURPOSE 

Personal Use of the Internet 

To inform MHSC employees of MHSC communication systems and of the expectations and responsibility of 
using Hospital communication systems. Employee violations of this policy may result in corrective action up to 
termination depending on the severity of the violation. 

POLICY 

MHSC employees should have no expectation of a right to privacy on Hospital computers, Hospital 
issued phones, Hospital voice mail systems or any other Hospital communication system. 

Computers 

The Hospital's computer network, access to Internet, e-mail and voice mail systems are business tools 
intended for employees to use in performing their job duties. Therefore, all documents and files are the 
property of MHSC. All information regarding access to Hospital's computer resources, such as user 
identifications, modem phone numbers, access codes, VPN log-in credentials and accounts, IP addresses and 
passwords are confidential Hospital information and may not be disclosed to non-Hospital personnel. 

All computer files, documents, and software created or stored on the Hospital's computer systems are subject 
to review and inspection at any time. This includes web-based email employees may access through Hospital 
systems, whether password protected or not. Employees should not assume that information accessed, 
shared, copied, emailed through a Hospital computer is confidential, including e-mail either sent or received. 

As computers in the Hospital allows access to ePHI all computers will be controlled with a unique username 
and password. Computer equipment should not be removed from the Hospital premises without written 
approval from the employee's department head. 

Hospital employees will need to access information through the internet/intranet in order to do their job. 
However, the use of the internet/intranet is only for business purposes during the time employees are 
working. Personal use of the Hospital's internet system should be done before or after work or during breaks 
or lunch period. Regardless, MHSC prohibits the display, transmittal, or downloading of material that is in 
violation of Hospital guidelines or otherwise is offensive, pornographic, obscene, profane, discriminatory, 
harassing, insulting, derogatory, or otherwise unlawful at any time. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES- COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS. Retrieved 03/15/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8994131/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 3

20/277

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

Software and Copyright 

Unauthorized Use 

E-mail 

Voice Mail 

Telephones/Cell Phones/Mobile Devices 

MHSC fully supports copyright laws. Employees may not copy or use any software, images, music, or other 
intellectual property (such as books or videos) unless the employee has the legal right to do so. Employees 
must comply with all licenses regulating the use of any software and may not disseminate or copy any such 
software without authorization. Employees may not use unauthorized copies of software on personal 
computers housed in hospital facilities. 

Employees may not attempt to gain access to another employee's personal file of e-mail messages or send a 
message under someone else's name without the latter's express permission. Employees are strictly 
prohibited from using the Hospital's communication systems in ways that management deems to be 
inappropriate. If you have any question whether your behavior would constitute unauthorized use, contact your 
immediate supervisor before engaging in such conduct. 

E-mail is only to be used for business purposes during the time employee is working. While personal e-
mail is permitted, it is to be kept to a minimum. Personal e-mail should be brief and sent or received as seldom 
as possible. MHSC prohibits the display, transmittal, or downloading of material that is offensive, pornographic, 
obscene, profane, discriminatory, harassing, insulting, derogatory, or otherwise unlawful at any time. No one 
may solicit, promote, or advertise any outside organization, product, or service through the use of e-mail or 
anywhere else on hospital premises during working times. Working time does not include breaks or meal 
periods. Management may monitor e-mail from time to time. 

Employees must be aware at all times of phishing and cyber-security breaches.  Do no reply to emails or click 
links requesting user names and passwords.  Only click on links or open emails from people you know and 
that have a valid email address. 

Employees are prohibited from unauthorized use of encryption keys or the passwords of other employees to 
gain access to another employee's e-mail messages. 

The Hospital voice mail system is intended for transmitting business-related information. Although the Hospital 
does not monitor voice messages as a routine matter, the Hospital reserves the right to access and disclose all 
messages sent over the voice mail system for any purpose. Employees must use judgment and discretion in 
their personal use of voice mail and must keep such use to a minimum. 

Employee work hours are valuable and should be used for business/patient care. Excessive personal cell use 
can significantly disrupt business operations. Employees should use their break or lunch period for cell phone 
use for personal calls, texting and social media. 

Confidential information should not be discussed on a cell phone or via any mobile device. Phones and mobile 
devices with cameras should not be used in a way that violates other Hospital policies such as Confidentiality 
policies; HIPAA polices; EEO/Sexual Harassment policies and other relevant policies. Employees' use of a cell 
phone or mobile device to access Hospital communication systems is restricted/prohibited without prior 
authorization. Such access, once authorized, may subject the employee's personal device to discovery 
requests or Hospital corrective action. Employees authorized to access Hospital systems and information 
using a personal device must immediately inform the Hospital if the device is lost or stolen. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES- COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS. Retrieved 03/15/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8994131/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 3

21/277



DRAFT
Attachments 

No Attachments 

For safety reasons, employees will not use cell phones and mobile devices to make calls or text while driving 
personal vehicles or Hospital vehicles/equipment.  Employees should park whenever they need to use a cell 
phone. Generally, stopping on the shoulder of the road is not acceptable. Texting while driving is illegal and 
could subject the employee to tickets and fines from law enforcement. 

Separation from MHSC 

Upon separation of employment, all Hospital issued communication tools (cell phones, laptops, etc) must be 
returned to Hospital's IT or HR Department. Failure to return Hospital owned/issued equipment will result in 
withholding of employees final paycheck until the equipment is returned. 

This policy will replace current Computer Usage Employee Policy and Limited Use of Hospital Info Systems, 
Sanctions and HIPAA security, Computer Usage IT policies will be archived as relevant sections from those 
policies have been incorporated into this policy.  Draft policy was reviewed and approved by IT Director 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES- COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS. Retrieved 03/15/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8994131/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 3

22/277



23/277



24/277



25/277



26/277



27/277



28/277



29/277



30/277



31/277



32/277



33/277



34/277



35/277



36/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           1 

 

 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Board of Trustees 

Bylaws 

 
 

CHAPTER I: DEFINITIONS 
 

Section 1.  Authority 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) was established pursuant to Wyoming 
Statutes Sections 1-18-101 et seq. (2009). Accordingly, it is a county public hospital that 
operates and acts exclusively for tax-exempt purposes. 

Section 2.  Definitions 

A. The ANNUAL MEETING is the first Wednesday in July. 
B. The BOARD OF TRUSTEES (Board) of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) is 

as defined in Chapter III, Section 1, of these Bylaws. 
C. The BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (Commissioners) shall mean the board of duly 

qualified elected officials in Sweetwater County, Wyoming as provided in Wyo. Stat.§ 18-
3-501 (2009) that has the authority and duty to appoint members of the Board of the 
Hospital according to Wyo. Stat. § 18-8-102 (2009). 

D. The CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) is as defined in Chapter V, Section 1, of these Bylaws. 
E. The FISCAL YEAR commences on July 1 and concludes on June 30 of the following calendar 

year. 
F. The HOSPITAL shall mean Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County and all services and 

facilities operated under its license. 
G. The MEDICAL STAFF refers to licensed practitioners who attend to patients in the Hospital. 

Members include physicians and non-physician providers. 
H. A TRUSTEE is a member of the Board. 

 
 
 

37/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           2 

 

 
 

CHAPTER II: LEGAL STRUCTURE  
 
Section 1.  Legal Structure 

The Board is appointed by the Commissioners and is constituted as a body corporate and with 
perpetual existence with the duty to erect, manage, operate and control the Hospital pursuant 
to Wyo. Stat. §§ 18-8-101 et seq. (2009). 
 
Section 2.  Overall Statements 
The Board has the authority and duty to approve mission, values and vision statements, and the strategic 
plans for the Hospital, as well as to provide oversight of the CEO. 

 
 

CHAPTER III: GOVERNING BODY 

Section 1.  Appointment and Term 

A non-partisan board of at least five (5) and no more than eleven (11) residents of Sweetwater 
County shall be appointed by the Commissioners as provided in Wyo. Stat. §§ 18-8-102, 18-8-104 
(2009). Hospital employees cannot be appointed to the Board. Wyo. Stat. § 18-8-102 (2009). The 
Board shall always consist of an odd number of Trustees.   

Trustees are appointed for a five (5) year term. The term shall begin on the first Monday of July 
and end on the first Monday of July of the fifth year. Trustees may be eligible for reappointment 
by the Commissioners to succeed themselves for one (1) additional term. Trustees who are 
appointed to fill a vacancy are eligible to succeed themselves for two (2) additional terms.  

The Board, as the Hospital’s governing body, has the sole legal responsibility for the conduct of 
the Hospital as an institution. No individual member of the Board is personally liable for any 
actions, inactions, omissions, or procedures of the Board. Wyo. Stat. § 18-8-104 (2009). 

Section 2.  Resignation  

A Trustee may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the 
Commissioners and a copy to the President of the Board. The resignation shall be effective when 
stated, or if not stated, upon presentation to the President of the Board. Any vacancies shall be 
filled by appointments made by the Commissioners. 

 

38/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           3 

 

 

Section 3. Removal 

A Trustee may be removed from the Board by the Commissioners. The Board may recommend 
the removal of a disruptive Board member. 
 
Section 4. Seal  

The Board shall have a seal on which shall be engraved the name of the Hospital.  This seal shall 
be kept by the Hospital’s CEO and used in authentication of acts of the Board and the Hospital 
when such authentication is required or necessary.    
 
Section 5.  Policies 

The Board shall create and establish such Board policies as it shall deem necessary and 
appropriate.  The Board shall also create and approve a process for the review of Hospital wide 
policies over which the Board has oversight obligations.  

Section 6. Meeting Records 

The minutes of all Board meetings shall be available for public inspection at the Hospital’s 
administrative office and on the Hospital’s website, in accordance with applicable laws. 

Section 7.  Powers and General Duties of the Board of Trustees 

The Wyoming Statutes, providing for the creation of memorial hospitals (Wyo. Stat. §§ 18-8-101 
et seq. 2009), vest in the Board the sole duty to erect, manage and control the Hospital and all 
property, affairs, and funds received for the benefit of the Hospital.  Accordingly, the Board shall 
have the power and authority to do and perform all acts, functions, and things necessary, proper, 
and consistent with these Bylaws, Laws of the United States, and the Laws of the State of 
Wyoming to affect the purposes for which the Hospital has been created. 

Consistent therewith, the powers and duties of the Board, as the governing body, shall generally 
include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 

A. Organizing itself as provided in these Bylaws (See Chapter IV) 
B. Monitoring compliance with federal, state and local laws 
C. Providing direction and exercising general oversight over the affairs of the Hospital to 

ensure fulfillment of its mission 

39/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           4 

 

D. Monitoring that all applicable accreditations and licenses are obtained and maintained as 
are appropriate and necessary to effectuate the Hospital’s purpose 

E. Providing for the establishment of a duly licensed and qualified Medical Staff to carry out 
the Hospital’s obligations and objectives for the care of the sick and infirm of the Hospital 
(See Chapter VII) 

F. Overseeing the ongoing implementation, maintenance, and monitoring of the standards 
of safe, quality, and efficient medical care in accordance with all applicable laws and 
accrediting bodies 

G. Appointing and fixing compensation and terms of office for a properly qualified CEO, who 
shall be responsible to the Board for managing the Hospital and who shall carry out the 
delegated authority of the Board. Consistent with such appointment, the Board shall 
periodically review and evaluate the performance of such officer 

H. Reviewing and approving an annual operating and annual and long-term capital budgets 
for the Hospital. The budget shall be for the Hospital’s fiscal year, which commences on 
July 1 and concludes June 30 of the following calendar year. The budget shall be presented 
to the Commissioners in June, prior to commencement of the fiscal year 

I. Monitoring that the Hospital maintains a uniform system of accounting in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles and federal hospital regulations 

J. Retaining an independent auditor consistent with applicable laws and best practices to 
examine the Hospital’s financial statements and provide a written report that contains an 
opinion as to whether the financial statements are fairly stated and comply in all material 
respects to the applicable audit standards 

K. Monitoring that the Hospital has an overall institutional plan that meets the conditions of 
the Medicare Conditions of Participation 

L. Receiving and owning personal property, and such real property as is authorized by 
Wyoming Statutes 

M. Making, altering, revoking, amending, executing and enforcing such Bylaws of the 
Hospital and the Medical Staff as the Board determines will promote the Hospital’s best 
interest in accordance with the laws and the Hospital’s mission 

N. Retaining independent counsel 
O. Having a policy and procedure for the approval and oversight of contracts entered into by 

the Hospital that assures 1) the maintenance of a data base that includes the nature, 
scope and length of term for each contract and 2) that prior to entering into any contract 
or affiliation agreement that must be approved by the Commissioners, the Board obtains 
the Commissioners’ approval 

40/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           5 

 

P. Having a policy and procedure for the approval and oversight of clinical service contracts 
that assures 1) the maintenance of a data base that includes the nature, scope and length 
of term for each contract, 2) evidence of physician involvement in the selection of the 
contractor, and 3) an annual evaluation showing the contractor meets quality standards 

Q. Procuring and entering into contracts for adequate and prudent insurance necessary and 
desirable for the conduct and operation of the Hospital 

R. Making provision for a Hospital Auxiliary and a non-profit Foundation, as the needs may 
arise. The Board shall require that Bylaws be established and shall approve such Bylaws, 
and any amendments thereof, for the Auxiliary and Foundation 

S. Reporting to and making recommendations to the Commissioners as necessary and 
appropriate, including the submission of the Hospital’s annual budget as required 

T. Periodically reviewing and approving a general employee wage/compensation plan to 
assure an adequate work force 

U. Monitoring that all Board members understand and fulfill their responsibilities as Trustees 
of the Hospital, and providing for periodic evaluation of the Board’s performance. New 
members of the Board shall participate in a Hospital Trustee orientation program and all 
members are encouraged to participate in available education programs 

V. Complying with state statutes for conducting open (public) meetings  
W. Providing for a systematic and effective mechanism for communication among the 

Medical Staff, the Board, and the CEO 
X. Assessing the health care needs of the community, the services provided by the Hospital, 

and the number of practitioners providing those services.  In that regard, the Board 
retains the authority to restrict or expand the services offered by the Hospital, to restrict 
or expand the number of employed, licensed practitioners providing services in a given 
specialty based on its evaluation, and to determine that an exclusive contract is or is not 
necessary for a specific specialty or service 

Y. Considering, and if appropriate, establishing rules of conduct and behavior for the 
members of the Medical Staff, and procedures for monitoring compliance with such rules 

Z. Considering, and if appropriate, establishing through Board policy, such economic conflict 
of interest requirements for membership on the Hospital Medical Staff as deemed to be 
in the best interest of the Hospital 

AA. As the Hospital’s governing body, having the sole legal responsibility for the conduct of 
the Hospital as an institution. No individual member of the Board is personally liable for 
any action or procedure of the board  
 

 
CHAPTER IV: ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

41/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           6 

 

Section 1.  Meetings 

Any assembly of at least a quorum of the Board that has been called by proper authority for the 
purpose of discussion, deliberation, presentation of information, or taking action regarding 
public business is a public meeting, open to the public at all times, except as otherwise provided. 

A. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on Hospital premises on the first Wednesday 
of each month, unless the Board sets the regular meeting for an upcoming month on a 
different date and/or location.  The annual meeting of the Hospital governing body shall 
be the July meeting.  The September Board meeting shall be in Green River.  Any meeting 
that is not a regular meeting is a special meeting.  

B. Special meetings may be called by the presiding officer of the Board by giving verbal, 
electronic, or written notice of the meeting to each member of the governing body and 
to each newspaper of general circulation, radio, and television station requesting the 
notice.  The notice shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business 
to be transacted and shall be issued at least eight (8) hours prior to the commencement 
of the meeting.  No other business, other than noticed, shall be considered at a special 
meeting. 

C. Notice of special meetings and changes to the time or place of regular meetings shall be 
announced during the course of regular meetings and/or given to persons who have 
requested notice, as well as each newspaper of general circulation, radio and television 
stations in Sweetwater County.  A request for notice shall be in writing and on file with 
Hospital.  The request for notice may be made for all future meetings for which notice is 
required. 

D. The Board may recess any regular or special meeting to a place and time specified in an 
order of recess.  A copy of the order of recess shall be conspicuously posted on or near 
the door of the place where the meeting or recessed meeting was held. In the case of a 
digital meeting, a digital notice will be sent to all participants, as well as to persons who 
have requested notice. 

E. The Board may hold an emergency meeting on matters of serious, immediate concern to 
take temporary action without notice.  Reasonable efforts shall be made to offer public 
notice.  All action at an emergency meeting is of a temporary nature, and in order to 
become permanent shall be reconsidered and acted upon at an open, public meeting 
within forty-eight (48) hours, excluding weekends and holidays, unless the event 
constituting the emergency continues to exist after forty-eight (48) hours.  In such case 
the Board may reconsider and act upon the temporary action at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the agency, but in no event later than thirty (30) days from the date 
of the emergency action.   Wyo. Stat. § 16-4-404(d) (2009). 

F. The Board may hold executive sessions, not open to the public, as provided for by law. 

42/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           7 

 

G. All meetings of the Board shall comply with the Wyoming Open Meetings Act, Wyo. Stat. 
§§ 16-4-401 to 16-4-407 (2009). 

H. Any member of the Board who attends, or remains at a meeting, knowing the meeting is 
in violation of the Wyoming Public Meetings Act Wyo. Stat. §§ 16-4-401 through 16-4-410 
(2009) shall be liable under Wyo. Stat. § 16-4-408 (2009), unless minutes were taken 
during the meeting and the parts thereof recording the member’s objections are made 
public or at the next regular public meeting the member objects to the meeting where 
the violation occurred and ask that the objection be recorded in the minutes. 

I. Day-to-day administrative activities of the Hospital shall not be subject to the above 
notice requirements. 

Section 2.  Executive Session 
 
The Board may hold executive sessions not open to the public under the following circumstances: 

A. With the attorney general, county attorney, district attorney, city attorney, sheriff, chief 
of police or their respective deputies, or other officers of the law, to consider matters 
posing a threat to the security of public or private property, or a threat to the public’s 
right of access.  

B. To consider the appointment, employment, right to practice or dismissal of a public 
officer, professional person or employee, or to hear complaints or charges brought 
against an employee, professional person or officer, unless the employee, professional 
person or officer requests a public hearing.  The Board may exclude from any public or 
private hearing during the examination of a witness, any or all other witnesses in the 
matter being investigated.  Following the hearing or executive session, the Board may 
deliberate on its decision in executive session. 

C. To consider matters concerning litigation to which the Board is a party or proposed 
litigation to which the Board may be a party. 

D. To consider the selection of a site or the purchase of real estate when the publicity 
regarding the consideration would cause a likelihood of an increase in price. 

E. To consider the acceptance of gifts, donations and bequests that the donor has 
requested in writing be kept confidential. 

F. To consider or receive any information classified as confidential or proprietary by law. 
G. To consider accepting or tendering offers concerning wages, salaries, benefits and terms 

of employment during all negotiations. 
H. To consider any other matter authorized by law to be considered in an executive session. 

43/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           8 

 

Minutes shall be maintained of any executive session. These minutes shall show time, members 
present, and subjects considered. No action shall be taken in executive session. Any actions taken 
in connection with executive session shall be taken in the regular session and recorded in the 
minutes of the regular session. Except for those parts of minutes of an executive session 
reflecting a members’ objection to the executive session as being a violation of this act, minutes 
and proceedings of executive session shall be confidential and produced only in response to a 
valid court order.  

 

Section 3.  Officers 

Officers elected are President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. Any Board member 
may be considered eligible to be an officer of the Board. Board officers shall be elected at the 
July meeting of the Board.   Officers’ terms are from the annual meeting to annual meeting of 
the following year. No Trustee shall hold the same office for more than three (3) consecutive 
terms. When completing another officer’s term, the Trustee is still eligible for three (3) 
consecutive terms.  

Section 4.  Duties of Officers 

A. The President shall prepare the agenda for all meetings of the Board in consultation with 
the CEO. The President shall call and preside at all meetings of the Board. With the 
exception of the Finance & Audit Committee, the President shall appoint all members of 
the Board’s standing committees who are not designated in the committee charters. With 
the exception of the chairperson of the Finance & Audit Committee, who is the Treasurer, 
the President shall also appoint the chairperson of each standing committee and is an ex 
officio member of all board committees.  The President shall act for the Board as a whole 
only with the Board’s authorization. 

B. The Vice President shall, in the absence of the President, or in the event of his/her death, 
inability, or refusal to act, perform the duties of President, and when so acting, shall have 
all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice 
President shall also perform such executive duties as may be delegated to him/her by the 
President of the Board. 

C.   The Secretary, or his/her designee, shall act as secretary of the Board and shall act as 
custodian of all records and reports of the Board. The Secretary’s designee shall be 
responsible for recording and keeping all minutes and transactions of all Board meetings. 

D. The Treasurer shall be the chair of the Finance & Audit Committee; have signing authority 
on behalf of the Board for financial matters; ensure audited financial statements are 

44/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           9 

 

presented to the Board on an annual basis; and manage, with the Finance & Audit 
Committee, the Board’s review of, and action related to, the Board’s financial 
responsibilities.  

  
Section 5.  Quorum 

 A quorum of the Board consists of a majority of the Trustees in attendance at the time the 
meeting is called to order. No action of the Board shall be valid unless such action has been 
approved by a quorum of the Board.  Proxy voting shall not be permitted. Any Trustee may 
participate in any meeting of the Board or Board committee by means of digital technology 
whereby all members participating in such meeting can hear one another for the entire 
discussion of the matter(s) to be voted upon.  Such participation shall constitute attendance in 
person for all purposes, including but not limited to establishing a quorum. 

Section 6. Conflict of Interest 

The Board shall adopt and maintain a comprehensive Conflict of Interest Policy. Upon taking the 
Oath of Office, each Trustee shall be required to agree in writing to adhere to the terms of the 
policy and to annually affirm in writing his/her agreement to adhere to the policy. The Board shall 
have the right to adjudicate any alleged violations of the policy and determine the disciplinary or 
corrective measures required. The Board will also report any violations and subsequent 
disciplinary or corrective measures to the Commissioners. 

Section 7.  Voting 

A. Each Trustee shall be entitled to one vote on any matter properly submitted to the Board 
for vote.  Voting shall be in person or by digital technology, and there shall be no voting 
by proxy. 

B.   If a Trustee has a conflict of interest, he/she may not participate in the discussion nor vote 
on the issue for which he/she has declared a conflict.  

C. The President of the Board shall not be required to vote except when necessary in case 
of a tie vote.  The President shall, however, have the privilege to vote when he/she so 
desires. 

D. If any Trustee(s) in the minority on any question wishes to present a written explanation 
of his/her position to the Secretary, such explanation shall be filed with the permanent 
records of the Board. 

 
Section 8. Committees  

45/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           10 

 

A. All committee meetings will be held on the Hospital premises, unless otherwise indicated 
in the call.   

B. Minutes from standing committee meetings will be provided to the Board at the Board 
meeting following the committee meeting. 

C. Committees may be standing committees or special committees. 
D. Standing committee members shall be appointed by the President. Two Trustees shall be 

appointed to each standing committee. Their tenure will run from annual meeting to the 
following annual meeting, or until a successor is named, whichever last occurs. Standing 
committees of the Board shall be Building & Grounds, Compliance, Executive Oversight 
and Compensation, Finance & Audit, Governance, Human Resources, Joint Conference, 
and Quality. The charge of all standing Committees will be stated in the committee 
charters as adopted by the Board. 

E. Special committees will be appointed by the President on the approval of the Board for 
such special tasks as circumstances warrant. The special committees shall limit their 
activities to the accomplishment of the task for which they were created or appointed and 
shall have no power to act except as specifically conferred by the Board. Special 
committees shall be dissolved upon completion of their task. 
 

CHAPTER V:  HOSPITAL CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 Section 1. Appointment  

 The CEO shall be appointed by the Board and be responsible only to the Board and shall be given 
the necessary authority and be held responsible for the administration of the Hospital in all its 
activities, subject only to these bylaws and such policies as may be adopted and such orders as 
may be issued by the Board. The CEO is responsible for investigating and resolving all complaints 
and allegations concerning the conduct of the Hospital and its staff, and the Board is responsible 
for investigating and resolving all reported complaints and allegations concerning the conduct 
of the CEO.  

Section 2. Authority 

Within the framework of broad objectives and policies developed and approved by the Board, 
the CEO shall plan, direct, coordinate and evaluate all activities of the Hospital. The CEO shall 
report to the Board at its regular monthly meeting. Official communication with the Board 
between regular monthly meetings shall be through the President of the Board. This shall not be 
interpreted to prohibit a Board member and the CEO from communicating directly with each 
other.  

46/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           11 

 

     Section 3. Duties 

 The CEO is charged with fulfilling the duties as stated in his/her job description and with 
performing these duties in according with his/her employment agreement and in full 
compliance with the Hospital Bylaws. 

 
 
 

CHAPTER VI:  FISCAL CONTROL 
 

 Section 1. Guidelines and Audits 

A. The Chart of Accounts for Hospitals prescribed by the American Hospital Association, with 
modification as needed, the laws of the State of Wyoming, and Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles shall be followed in recording and accounting for financial 
transactions of the Hospital. 

B. The Board shall review and approve an annual budget for the operation of the Hospital in 
a format acceptable to the Director of the Wyoming Department of Audit. The budget 
shall require that 1) businesslike methods are employed in the expenditure of and 
accounting for all monies, 2) a long-term capital expenditure plan is included and 3) the 
implementation of the plan is monitored. The annual budget shall be presented to the 
Commissioners in June, prior to the beginning of the new fiscal year.  

C. The financial records and financial procedures of the Hospital shall be audited annually 
by an independent, certified public accountant and/or firm. Prior to the audit, Trustees 
who are members of the Finance & Audit Committee may meet with the auditors, 
independent of management, to review annual audit and associated management letter. 
The results of this annual audit shall be presented to the Finance & Audit Committee and 
to the Board at the meetings immediately following the completion of the audit report.  

Section 2. Execution of Instruments 

A. Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board, or required by law, formal 
contracts of the Hospital, promissory notes, deeds of trust, mortgages or other evidences 
of indebtedness of the Hospital shall be executed, signed or endorsed by the CEO or other 
officers of the Hospital as provided in Board policy. 

B. There are certain transactions of the Board that require the Commissioners approval as 
stated in the Wyo. Stat. §§ 18-8-108 and 18-8-301 (2009). 

47/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           12 

 

C. The CEO has the authority to endorse checks made to the Hospital for deposit in any of 
its duly authorized depositories, without countersignature. This authority may be 
delegated by the CEO to other officer(s) of the Hospital to whom the Board, by policy, has 
approved such power. 

D. All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of 
indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the Hospital, shall be signed or 
endorsed by the CEO or other officer(s) to whom the Board, by policy, has approved such 
power. 

 
Chapter VII-MEDICAL STAFF  

 
Section 1.  Establishment of Medical Staff 
The Board, by this Chapter VII, and by approving the Bylaws of the Medical Staff, which are 
incorporated into these Bylaws by this reference, hereby establishes and sets forth the 
organizational structure of the Medical Staff and its relationship to the Board and to the 
Hospital administration. 
 
In the event of any conflict between the provisions of these Bylaws and the Medical Staff Bylaws, 
the provisions of these Bylaws shall supersede any conflicting provisions of the Medical Staff 
Bylaws provided, however, that every effort shall be made to interpret these Bylaws and the 
Medical Staff Bylaws as being consistent with one another. In the event of any such conflict, it 
shall be referred to the Joint Conference Committee. 
 
The relationship between the Medical Staff and the Hospital is the following: 

A. The Medical Staff makes recommendations to the Board regarding privileges and 
credentials, which the Board considers in accepting credentials and granting privileges. 

B. Hospital privileges are in the nature of a license to use the Hospital facilities for the 
treatment of patients. 

C. The Medical Staff is an advisor to the Board concerning the clinical quality and safety of 
patient care.  

D. The Medical Staff Bylaws serve as a framework for self-governance of Medical Staff 
activities, but do not suggest that the Medical Staff is a separate entity; the Medical Staff 
is a part of the Hospital.  
  

Section 2.  Responsibilities of the Medical Staff 
 

48/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           13 

 

A. The Board shall ensure that the Medical Staff is organized into a responsible 
administrative unit. The Medical Staff shall adopt Bylaws subject to Chapter 7, Section 3, 
of these Bylaws. The Medical Staff shall periodically review its Bylaws, Rules and 
Regulations, and policies to ensure consistency with current standards of care; 
consistency with Hospital policies; compliance with the requirements of The Joint 
Commission and Centers for Medicare and Medicaid; and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations. Acting in its role as advisor to the Board in matters requiring clinical 
expertise, the Medical Staff shall be responsible for making recommendations to the 
Board concerning initial staff appointments, reappointments and the granting, 
termination, curtailment or revision of clinical privileges for Medical Staff members. The 
Medical Staff shall be responsible for the submission of regular reports on the review 
processes carried out by the Medical Staff in accordance with the requirements of the 
Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations. 

B. The Board shall approve the Medical Staff’s Bylaws and act on recommendations 
concerning Medical Staff appointments, reappointments, terminations of appointments, 
and the granting, termination, curtailment or revision of clinical privileges within the time 
specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws. 
 

 
Section 3.  Medical Staff Bylaws  
 
The Medical Staff Bylaws shall set forth the Medical Staff’s organization and government, 
including mechanisms for the following: appointment and reappointment; the granting, 
termination, curtailment and revision of clinical privileges; liaison between the Board and the 
Medical Staff; and the quality assurance/improvement, peer review and other responsibilities 
of the Medical Staff as required by The Joint Commission, the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid, and applicable laws. 
 
The Medical Staff Bylaws shall be drafted and adopted by the Medical Staff and then presented 
to the Board for approval. The ultimate authority to adopt or amend the Medical Staff Bylaws 
shall be vested in the Board. 
 
Section 4.  Medical Staff Communication with the Board of Directors and Hospital 
Administration  
 
There shall be effective and systematic liaison and communication between the Board, the 
Medical Staff, and the Hospital administration. The primary means of collaboration and 
communication shall be the Joint Conference Committee. In addition, the Medical Staff shall 

49/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           14 

 

participate in the regular Board meetings by the attendance of the Chief of Staff. All members of 
the Medical Staff are welcome at all Board meetings. 
 
Section 5.  Medical Staff Recommendations 
 
The Medical Staff, as provided in the Medical Staff Bylaws, shall make recommendations to the 
Board for the Board’s approval, which shall include recommendations pertaining to the following: 
 

A. The structure of the Medical Staff 
B. The mechanism used to review credentials and to delineate individual clinical privileges 
C. Individual Medical Staff membership 
D. Specific delineated clinical privileges for each individual exercising such privileges 
E. The organization of the quality and safety activities of the Medical Staff and the Hospital 

as well as the mechanisms used to conduct, evaluate, and revise such activities 
F. Clinical service contracts, as well as mechanisms to monitor and evaluate the quality and 

safety of the deliverables to be provided under said contracts 
G. The mechanism by which membership on the Medical Staff and clinical privileges may be 

suspended, curtailed or terminated 
H. The mechanism for fair hearings  
 

Section 6.  Liability Insurance 
 
Members of the Medical Staff shall annually provide written proof of liability insurance 
(malpractice insurance) for an amount to be determined by the Board. Furthermore, each 
member of the Medical Staff shall notify the Hospital within two (2) business days of receiving 
notification of cancellation of liability insurance. Noncompliance with this requirement is cause 
for immediate revocation of staff membership and clinical privileges. 
 
 

CHAPTER VIII:  DISCRIMINATION 

Nondiscrimination Policy 

 No discrimination because of sex, race, creed, religion, national origin, disability, age, ancestry, 
pregnancy, gender identity, or sexual orientation shall be allowed in the admission and treatment 
of patients, appointments or privileges of Medical Staff members, employment of personnel, or 
the conduct of other business of the Hospital. 

 
 

50/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           15 

 

CHAPTER IX: PUBLIC STATEMENTS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
Official Positions 
The Board acts as a body. Policy and statement of official positions shall be made only after 
Trustees’ concurrence as indicated by a majority vote. All such statements shall be issued by the 
President through the office of the CEO. 

 
 

CHAPTER X:  GIFTS AND BEQUESTS 
Acceptance Policy 

The Board may receive, through the Foundation, the donations of real estate, money or other 
property in the aid of the establishment of the Hospital or for the construction of additions or 
provision of equipment, furniture, or facilities. The Board shall permit any donor furnishing the 
means for the construction of any individual portion of the Hospital, or for equipping and 
especially endowing any service or room therein, to name the same in memory of any person 
chosen by the donor and shall observe the conditions accompanying every gift that is not in 
violation of Wyoming Law and is consistent with the proper management and objectives of the 
Hospital. The Board may consult with the Hospital’s Foundation prior to the receipt of such 
donations. 

 
CHAPTER XI:  VOLUNTEER GROUPS  

 
Section 1. Purpose  
All volunteer groups, such as the Sweetwater County Memorial Hospital Auxiliary Inc., shall 
serve without remuneration, with their prime purpose being the support and betterment of the 
Hospital and its services. 

Section 2. Governance 

All volunteer groups are authorized to establish a mechanism for governing themselves. Subject 
to the approval of the Board, all volunteer groups may, for governance purposes, adopt Bylaws, 
rules, regulations, policies, and procedures. None of these governance mechanisms shall 
supersede or take priority over these Bylaws.  

Section 3. Reports 

Actions of volunteer groups shall be subject to review by the Board through the CEO and through 
an annual report of their activities. 
 

51/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           16 

 

 
Chapter XII INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

Indemnification and Directors and Officers Insurance  
 
The Hospital shall indemnify a Trustee who was wholly successful, on the merits or otherwise, 
in the defense of any proceeding to which the Trustee was a party because he/she is or was a 
Trustee against reasonable expenses actually incurred by the Trustee in connection with a 
proceeding. The Hospital shall also advance expenses to the Trustee as outlined in Wyo. Stat. 
§17-19-853 (2009). 
 
The Hospital shall purchase and maintain directors and officers insurance on behalf of an 
individual who is or was a Trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the Hospital against liability 
asserted against or incurred by him/her in that capacity or arising from his/her status as a 
Trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the Hospital whether or not the Hospital would have 
power to indemnify the person against same liability. Wyo. Stat. §17-19-857 (2009). 

 
CHAPTER XIII:  AMENDMENTS AND ALTERATIONS 

 
Section 1. Requirements 
 
Amendments and alterations to the Bylaws shall require a majority vote of a quorum of the 
Trustees present at any regular or special meeting, provided the proposals for changes have been 
furnished in writing to each Trustee at least five (5) days prior to the meeting. 
 
Section 2. Effective Date 
These Bylaws become effective immediately upon their acceptance and adoption and supersede 
all previously adopted Bylaws. 

 

ACCEPTANCE AND ADOPTION 
 

The foregoing Bylaws of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board of Trustees are hereby 
accepted and adopted as of this ___day of August, 2018.   

 

 

52/277



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

53/277



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 9407506 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Employee Policies 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

I. Employees may work from home on an occasional basis only and only if pre-approved by their 
supervisor.  If the employee's supervisor does not pre-approve the employee working from home 
and the employee chooses to work home without such approval, the employee's supervisor will 
enter PTO for the day the employee worked at home.  Working from home is not the same as 
telecommuting and should only be used occasionally and not as a remote/telecommuting 
arrangement. 

TEXT 
I. Employees wishing to telecommute: 

A. Will apply to be a telecommuter through the Human Resource Department. 

B. If the application is approved by HR and the appropriate supervisor, the employee will be required to 
sign the Agreement to show his/her understanding of the terms and conditions of the MHSC 
Telecommuting Agreement. 

II. Application 

A. Employees who desire to be a telecommuter shall complete a Telecommuting Application and submit 
it to the HR Department. HR will process this application as any other employment application. 

An MHSC employee who successfully completes the process to become a telecommuter will perform his or 
her job duties from a “workspace”. For purpose of telecommuting, the term “workspace” is defined as the 
immediate area in which the computer is located. 

The employee agrees that once he/she is a telecommuter, he/she remains subject to the terms and conditions 
of MHSC employment pursuant to MHSC employee policies, job descriptions, procedures, guidelines, and 
instruction. 

A telecommuting employee is eligible for the same benefits, insurance and worker’s compensation coverage 
as other MHSC employees. All benefits and subject to change by MHSC. Eligibility for workers compensation 
is determined through the worker’s compensation application process. Contact employee health or HR for 
information. 

Telework -temporary or occasional work from home.  Telework is not telecommuting. 

 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 03/16/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9407506/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 3

54/277

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

B. Employees who are allowed to telecommute will be subject to a the same introductory period length 
and conditions as other employees.  (See Employee Policies-Introductory Period). 

III. Agreement 

A. Employees who are approved for telecommute shall sign and abide by a Telecommuting Agreement. 
The agreement may require modification to fit individual telecommute-site circumstances. A copy of 
the Agreement will be retained in the employee's personnel file. 

B. Unless otherwise stated in the agreement, the supervisor, the HR Department, Senior Leadership or 
the employee may discontinue the arrangement, generally giving at least one-week notice. The 
parties may negotiate a longer notice to provide for a smooth transition. 

IV. General Provisions 

A. Communication. While telecommuting, the employee must be reachable by telephone, fax, pager, 
or e-mail during agreed-upon work hours. The employee and supervisor shall agree on expected 
turnaround time and the medium for responses. 

B. Conditions of Employment. The telecommuter’s conditions of employment shall remain the same 
as for non-telecommuting employees; wages, benefits and leave accrual will remain unchanged. 

C. Equipment. The telecommuter will provide his/her own workspace furniture, laptop computer and 
equipment. MHSC will provide VPN software for installation on the telecommuter’s personal 
computer. This will allow remote access to the hospital’s intranet. Any software provided by MHSC 
shall not be duplicated. 

D. Work Space. The telecommuter may hold business visits or meetings with professional colleagues 
or the public by electronic means (ZOOM, Microsoft Teams, etc) but may not have in person 
meetings or in-person business visits at the workspace. Meetings with other MHSC staff at the 
workspace will not be permitted unless approved in advance by the employee's supervisor. 

E. Hours of Work. The telecommuter will have specific available hours and telephone accessibility with 
the department and supervisor. The agreed upon work schedule shall comply with FLSA regulations. 
Overtime work for a non-exempt employee must be pre-approved by the supervisor. Unapproved 
overtime work will lead to corrective action against the telecommuter. Excessive unavailability of the 
telecommuter will lead to corrective action as per Exempt or Non-Exempt Employee Policies. 

F. Incidental Costs. Unless otherwise stated in the Telecommute Agreement, all incidental costs of 
telecommuting, such as residential utility costs, Internet costs, phone costs or cleaning services, are 
the responsibility of the telecommuter. 

G. Inclement weather. If there is an emergency at the workspace, such as a power outage, the 
telecommuter will notify his/her supervisor as soon as possible. The telecommuter may be 
reassigned to the Hospital or an alternate work-site. 

H. Intellectual Property. Products, documents, and records developed while telecommuting are the 
property of MHSC and will not be shared with others at the workspace. This includes any software 
provided to the employee such as VPN, or HIPAA compliant software. 

I. Network. MHSC will provide instructions on the installation and use of VPN software to allow secure 
connectivity to MHSC. 

J. Performance & Evaluations. The supervisor and telecommuter will formulate objectives, expected 
results, and job duty evaluation the same as is required for all MHSC employees. The supervisor will 
monitor and evaluate performance by relying more heavily on work results rather than direct 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 03/16/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9407506/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 3

55/277



DRAFT

observation. The supervisor and telecommuting employee will meet, either by phone or in person, at 
regular intervals to review the employee's work performance. 

K. Policies. All MHSC policies, rules and practices shall apply to the telecommuter including all 
employee policies, HIPAA, confidentiality, IT policies and computer usage policies. Failure to follow 
MHSC policies, rules and procedures may result in termination of the telecommuting arrangement 
and/or disciplinary action. Of utmost importance is compliance with MHSC confidentiality and HIPAA 
policies and requirements. 

L. Political Activity- The Hospital's Political Activity Employee Policy applies to employees who 
are telecommuters and corrective action will be pursued if a telecommuting employee uses 
Hospital equipment or Hospitial software for political activity or in some other manner 
violates the Political Activity Policy while telecommuting. 

M.  Retention of Data. Products, documents, data and records that are used, developed, or revised 
while telecommuting shall be retained/maintained on MHSC equipment only and not the employee’s 
personal computer. 

N. Security. Security of records, files and other documents shall be maintained by the telecommuter at 
the same level as expected in the hospital. Confidential and PHI data shall not be shared with 
anyone in any format. Sharing of PHI with anyone other than those with approved access will result 
in immediate corrective action. 

Approved: HR Committee 2/20, Senior Leadership 2/20 

REFERENCES 

Attachments 

803058 - TELECOMMUTING Application 3.pdf 

 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 03/16/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9407506/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 3

56/277



COPY

Current Status: Pending PolicyStat ID: 9400827 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: 1 year after approval 
Document Area: Administration 
Reg. Standards: TJC LD 01.03.01 EP 3, TJC 

LD.04.03.01, TJC LD.04.03.07, 
TJC PC.01.01.01, EP 7 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and 
Scopes of Care 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: 

• Our Mission - Compassionate care for every life we touch. 
• Our Vision - To be our community's trusted healthcare leader. 
• Our Values - Be kind. Be respectful. Be accountable. Work collaboratively. Embrace excellence. 

• The Joint Commission (TJC) 
• American Academy of Sleep Medicine 
• American College of Radiology 

1. The areas of the organization in which care is provided to patients and its defined scope of service 

2. The mechanisms used in each area to identify patient care needs 

3. The needs of the population(s) served and how decisions are guided by care provided directly or through 
referral, consultation, contractual arrangements or other agreements 

4. The process used for assessing and acting on staffing variances 

5. The plan for improving the quality and safety of patient care in each area. 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) provides care to patients in a variety of settings and service 
lines. As a community-based hospital affiliated with the University of Utah, our focus is that of patient- and 
family-centered care.  The health of the citizens of Sweetwater County is our legacy. 

Patient care services provided at MHSC are based on its mission and vision, as well as on the needs of the 
community it serves. 

Accreditations: 

The plan for providing patient care takes into consideration: 

The organization's plan is approved by the organization's Board of Trustees and its leadership team. 

Planning and ongoing evaluation for patient care services is part of the organization's strategic plan as 
determined by the Board of Trustees and the Chief Executive Officer. Specific strategies have action plans and 
time frames that define how patient care services will be implemented, maintained or provided. Planning 
processes for such strategies take into consideration community needs, internal and external valid data 
resources, the ability to provide a service, internal and external customer and community surveys, medical 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 61

57/277

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

1. Quality improvement data and outcome measure results 

2. Patient safety events, including root cause analyses (RCA) 

3. Staffing variances and cause and effect relationships to evaluate the impact on patient care 

4. Customer satisfaction scores to monitor for trends related to the impact of staffing 

5. Recruitment and retention data of human resources 

6. Acuity of patients and the correlation to events or dissatisfaction 

7. Effect of fiscal and budgetary parameters on ability to provide patient care 

8. Ability to recruit staff and develop them to the necessary standard established 

9. Impact of new technology including electronic medical records (EMR), information systems and the 
effectiveness of such systems. 

PLAN FOR PATIENT SERVICES 
I. MHSC is licensed as a 99-bed acute care, non-profit community hospital with a multi-specialty physician/

provider clinic. Founded in July of 1890, the MHSC continues to extend services to persons as far as 
north as Big Piney, Wyoming, as far west as Utah, as far east as Rawlins, Wyoming, as far south as Utah 
and Colorado border areas, and any person in need who passes through Sweetwater County. Patient- 
and family-centered care is promoted through therapeutic relationships, compassionate care and the use 
of evidence-based practice. Essential services provided by MHSC include, but are not limited to: 

◦ Anesthesia services 

◦ Cardiac and pulmonary rehabilitation 

◦ Cardiopulmonary care 

▪ Cardiac stress testing 

▪ Sleep lab 

◦ Care management 

▪ Care transition 

▪ Case management 

▪ Chronic care management 

▪ Clinical documentation improvement 

◦ Chronic hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis 

◦ Diagnostic imaging 

▪ Cat Scan 

▪ Mammography 

▪ MRI 

▪ Nuclear medicine 

staff and other provider input, networking with community/state/national agencies, market research, healthcare 
research, and professional organizations that guide evidence-based practice. 

Data monitored for ongoing strategic decision-making includes, but is not limited to: 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 61

58/277



COPY

▪ Ultrasound 

◦ Dietary and nutritional service 

◦ Emergency and trauma care 

◦ Endoscopy 

◦ Infection prevention and control services 

◦ Medical records/information technology 

◦ Nursing care in the specialties of adult and pediatric medical/surgical, outpatient infusion, outpatient 
wound care, surgical services, obstetrical/newborn care, intensive care, and end stage chronic 
dialysis 

◦ Oncology, including outpatient chemotherapy administration and radiation oncology/pathology/
histopathology, clinical laboratory and transfusion services 

◦ Pharmaceutical 

◦ Physical rehabilitation, occupational therapy, and speech therapy 

◦ Provider services include orthopedics, obstetrics, pediatrics, general surgery, family medicine, 
internal medicine, Occupational medicine, pulmonology, nephrology, urology and ear/nose and 
throat 

◦ Quality improvement 

◦ Social work 

◦ Telemedicine - stroke and burn 

◦ Volunteers. 

II. Services not available at the MHSC include acute cardiology and cardiac surgery, acute intensive burn 
care, neurosurgery or neurology, transplantation of major organs, pediatric cancer services, and 
infectious disease as an advanced specialty. The organization does not have skilled long-term care or 
inpatient rehabilitation beds. 

III. MHSC is affiliated with the following organizations: 

◦ University of Utah 

◦ Huntsman Cancer Center 

◦ Shriners Hospital for Children 

◦ Wyoming Hospital Association 

◦ University of Utah Health & Huntsman Cancer Institute 

◦ Western Wyoming Community College 

◦ University of Wyoming 

◦ Other academic institutions - MHSC partners with a number of other colleges and universities 
throughout the region whenever possible to educate and train students in a variety of healthcare 
disciplines. 

◦ WWAMI Regional Medical Education Program 

IV. Patient services provided by contracted organizations include: 

◦ Emergency medicine 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 61

59/277



COPY

◦ Pharmacy services 

◦ Radiologist services 

◦ Sterilizer support and maintenance 

V. Contractual arrangements for extension of care include: 

◦ Reference laboratories 

◦ Hospice and end of life care 

◦ Home health agencies 

◦ Organ and tissue donation 

VI. Data related to services in calendar year 2018: 
Campus 
Size 

Hospital = 188,470 square feet, Medical Office Building = 77,392 square feet, 
Specialty Clinic = 14,797 square feet, Central Plant = 19,781 square feet, 
Paving area = 378,865 square feet and Total lot area = 1,472, 289 square feet or 
33.8 acres 

Licensed 
Beds 

99 

Staffed 
Beds 

58 

Employees 550 

Full-time 
employee 
equivalent 
(FTE) 

454.78 

FTEs/
Occupied 
Bed 

8.36 

Average 
patient 
length of 
stay (LOS) 

2.5 

Average 
Daily 
Inpatient 
Census 

12.90 

Inpatient 
Discharges 

1861 

Births 410 

Non-ED 
Outpatient 
Visits 

86,909 

ED Visits 14,876 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 61

60/277



COPY

ED Visits 
Admitted 

1,513 

Inpatient 
Surgeries 

295 

Outpatient 
Surgeries 

1,485 

Medical 
Office 
Building 
Clinic 
Visits 

54,815 

VII. Located on the I-80 corridor, MHSC provides trauma care as an essential service and is an Area Trauma 
Center as designated by the State of Wyoming. 

VIII. As an important part of clinical care the hospital serves as a clinical practice site for schools of nursing 
(Western Wyoming Community College and University of Wyoming being the majority), and schools of 
medicine (Wyoming, Montana, Alaska and Idaho educational program). 

IX. Care provided to the patient are determined by the types and availability of services offered within the 
organization. If the service cannot be provided, patients can be transferred via fixed-wing air ambulance 
and helicopter service or ground transportation. Consultation via telephone with Wyoming, Utah, Colorado 
and other major medical centers takes place as needed. During times in which weather does not permit 
safe transportation patients will be stabilized to the best of the organization's ability to provide emergency 
care. MHSC does not use a process in which emergency medical services (EMS) are requested and used 
to divert patients to other health care facilities. Rather, patients are brought to the hospital where solutions 
for care are investigated. MHSC has an emergency plan for patient surge that is activated when 
immediate problem solving is not successful. 

X. Patients with the same diagnosis and health care needs can be expected to receive the same standard 
and level of care throughout the organization. Each patient care area has a scope of service describing 
the focus of care, capacity of the area, staffing for the area, triage of patients from the area and 
competencies of staff. Outcomes are measured and monitored through quality improvement processes. 

XI. The medical staff of the organization is a key partner in the success of patient care outcomes. The role of 
the medical staff is defined in the organizational Medical Staff Bylaws. As partners in care the medical 
staff is to be actively engaged in the patient care and quality work of the organization. The structure 
through which this is accomplished is defined in the Bylaws. The medical staff is actively involved in the 
process of policy development and approval, service improvement through customer relations scores, 
quality improvement processes, governance through committees and representation, communication 
through daily mechanisms, information management through electronic medical records (EMR), and 
oversight of care through peer review and utilization management. 

INFRASTRUCTURE 
I. 

◦ 

PROFESSIONAL PATIENT CARE STAFF 

Professional practice at MHSC is defined in accordance with state licensure laws, applicable Federal 
and State regulations, standards as established by MHSC and the use of evidence-based practice. 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 61

61/277



COPY

◦ 

◦ 

II. 

◦ 

◦ 

III. 

◦ 

◦ 

IV. 

◦ 

V. 

◦ 

VI. 

◦ Each patient area defines service availability specific to the patient care area, which is found under 
each scope of service outlined in this document. Medical Staff Bylaws define medical care coverage 
and rules. 

VII. FINANCIAL PLANNING/BUDGETING FOR SERVICE DELIVERY 

◦ MHSC plans for patient care needs and services through an annual budgeting process, program 
development planning, capital equipment needs and monthly review of financial resources to meet 
patient needs. If there are urgent census fluctuations demanding more resources, the areas have 
plans to respond to those needs. External resources may be considered to achieve safe staffing 
levels that take into account the current number of staff, staff qualifications, experience, and 
education. 

◦ Census trends are evaluated annually. Numbers of staff on-boarded and staff turnover are 
reviewed. MHSC data trends are compared against industry trends, reimbursement changes, factors 
that could affect patient volumes, lengths of stay trends, patient day utilization including average 
number of admits and discharges daily, acuity of patients and service demands of patients as well as 
other important factors affecting the delivery of patient care. Each director plans for changes and 
includes anticipated changes in the budget planning process. The annual budget is finalized through 
the Board Finance and Audit Committee and is approved by the Board of Trustees. 

Professional staff qualifications are listed per specific job description. 

Professional staff members who provide patient care receive an annual performance review based 
on specific job descriptions and job standards. Each staff member must demonstrate beginning and 
ongoing competency and education. Self-directed lifelong learning is an expectation. Attainment of 
advanced and terminal degrees and national certifications in one's area of expertise is desired and 
encouraged. 

PATIENT CARE STANDARDS 

Each patient care area is responsible for establishing patient care standards that are evidence-based 
and congruent with current standard of practice and care. 

Evidence-based resources are available 24 hours per day through electronic means. 

PATIENT CARE OUTCOMES 

Patient outcomes are described in the mission and vision of the organization and throughout a 
variety of patient care standards. Patient and family centered care is the care delivery model that is 
essential to the success of patient outcomes. 

Further patient care outcomes are defined in the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement 
(QAPI) and Safety Plan, and in the Utilization Review plan. 

PATIENT CARE QUALITY AND PATIENT SAFETY PLAN 

Refer to Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. 

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

The organization structure is defined in the organizational chart. Responsibility incurred in each 
position within the organizational chart is defined with job descriptions. 

SERVICE AVAILABILITY 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 61

62/277



COPY

VIII. STAFF EDUCATION 

◦ MHSC maintains specific policies and standards on orientation, competency and annual education. 
Each clinical area is responsible for outlining education needs and how the education needs will be 
met. Education needs are re-evaluated annually and then periodically as needed.  The Wright 
Competency Model is used, which is also the competency model preferred by The Joint 
Commission. 

◦ MHSC maintains resources available to all staff on a variety of educational topics through on-line 
resources such as Lippincott, NetLearning, UpToDate, and Ovid. Education is also available through 
the University of Utah with offerings such as Grand Rounds from various disciplines, STABLE, 
Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NPR), and similar offerings. The Education Department, a 
collaboration between Nursing and Human Resources, is MHSC's contact for educational 
resources. 

◦ Course certifications through the American Heart Association include Basic Life Support (BLS), 
Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS), Pediatric Life Support (PALS) are required for specific 
departments and employees. Additionally, Trauma Nurse Core Course (TNCC) is required for all 
Emergency Department nurses. 

IX. PATIENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

◦ See all documents and policies on Patient Rights and Responsibilities. 

X. FAIR BILLING PRACTICE 

◦ MHSC will invoice patients or third parties only for services actually rendered to patients. Patient 
Financial Services will provide assistance to patients who seek to understand billing costs relative to 
their care. Any questions or objections to patient bills or insurance coverage related to care delivered 
will be reviewed and addressed through the patient complaint process. 

XI. CONTRACTED SERVICES 

◦ For information regarding MHSC contract management, see the Contracts Management Policy.  A 
full list of contracted services can be obtained from General Legal Counsel. 

GOVERNANCE 
I. 

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

The hospital Board of Trustees’ role is to serve as the governing body of the hospital. 

Board of Trustee (BOT) meetings open to the public occur the first Wednesday of every month from 
2:00 - 5:00 PM. Board members serve on several other committees that meet at various times, dates 
and hours of the day. 

The BOT is responsible for oversight of the hospital. 

The BOT responsibilities include making strategic decisions for the organization, hiring and 
monitoring an effective CEO, ensuring the organization is providing safe, quality care, overseeing the 
organization's financial well-being, staying educated in health care industry news and best practices, 
and being a representative of the organization in the community. 

The BOT is not involved in the day-to-day operations of the hospital. The daily operation of the 
hospital is Senior Leaderships' responsibility. 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 61

63/277



COPY

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

▪ 

◦ 

▪ 

▪ 

II. 

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

◦ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

The Board of Trustees consists of five (5) members who are citizens of Sweetwater County and 
appointed by the Sweetwater County Commissioners. 

A County Commission liaison attends monthly Board of Trustee meetings and other meetings 
attended by Board of Trustee members whenever possible. 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Legal services 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

American Hospital Association (AHA) 

Wyoming Hospital Association (WHA) 

SENIOR LEADERSHIP 

The role of Senior Leadership is to provide overall leadership and management of the hospital, 
including the development of strategies related to the delivery of patient care. The plan for the 
provision of patient care is enacted through the planning, evaluating, directing, coordinating and 
implementing the services of the organization to meet or exceed the needs of the patient. 

Senior Leadership consists of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Clinical 
Officer, Chief Nursing Officer, and Chief Medical Officer. 

One (1) Executive Administrative Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer and one (1) Administrative 
Assistant for the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Clinical Officer and Chief Nursing Officer work to 
ensure that functions within the executive offices are carried out and flow smoothly. 

Administration office hours are from 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM Monday - Friday, with the exception of 
holidays. However, a member of Senior Leadership serves as Administrator On-Call on a rotating 
basis to ensure at least one senior leader is available by telephone, in person or email 24 hours a 
day, 7 days per week, 365 days per year. 

Senior Leadership is accountable for the quality of care, safety and satisfaction of all patients and 
staff served at the MHSC. Members of Senior Leadership interact with patients and citizens of 
Sweetwater Country through direct and indirect communication. Members of Senior Leadership with 
a clinical background may assist in direct patient care during times of crisis or extreme clinical staff 
shortages. 

The MHSC contracts with numerous services in order to provide health care services to all persons 
needing care at the MHSC. The Board of Trustees, Chief Executive Officer and General Legal 
Counsel are responsible for reviewing, updating and maintaining all contracts, memorandum of 
understanding and other agreements with contracted services. 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

American Hospital Association (AHA) 

Wyoming Hospital Association (WHA) 

American Nurses Association (ANA) 

American Organization of Nurse Leaders (AONL) 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 61

64/277



COPY

III. 

◦ 

SCOPES OF SERVICE 

1. Definition of Service: Definition of service and how it supports patient care needs 

2. Hours / Days of the Week of Service 

3. Types of Services: Types of services provided and if the service directly serves patients the types and/or 
ages of patient served. This may also include the types of services or patients not served. 

4. Contracted Services 

5. Staffing: Staff, Staffing Patterns or Staffing Types and Numbers 

6. Affiliations or Sources of Reference 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: ADMITTING 

• The Admitting Department is comprised of Admitting, Emergency Department Admitting, Medical Imaging 
Admitting, Central Scheduling and the Communications departments. Admitting is a non-clinical 
department that performs the initial greeting, registration and admitting of all patients to our facility. 

• Excellent customer service is provided by professionally, courteously, and accurately registering each 
patient into the system and opening an accurate medical record. Additionally, required are consents for 
treatment and an Assignment of Benefits along with consents to submit billing to the patient's insurance 
carrier or entitlement program from each patient.  Each patient's insurance card and driver's license are 
scanned into the patient's medical record, if they are available. Excellent customer service is provided in 
an effort to identify and take care of the patient's basic needs and answer any questions that patients 
might have about their visit prior to assisting patients with directions of where they need to go for their 
hospital services. 

• The Laboratory Admitting Department is staffed Monday through Friday from 7:00 a.m. until 5:30 p.m., 
and on weekends from 9:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m., except on holidays. 

• The Medical Imaging Admitting area is staffed Monday through Friday from 6:30 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., 
except holidays. 

• However, all services are also able to be admitted in the Emergency Department admitting area 24 hours 
per day 7 days per week. 

• The Communications department is staffed from 6:30 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 
from 8:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. on weekends and holidays. 

• Initial welcoming of patient's and visitors to our facility. 
• Arranges for the accurate, efficient, and orderly scheduling and registration of patients into inpatient, 

LEADERSHIP TEAM 

Each clinical and non-clinical area has a director or manager who is responsible for departmental 
functional activities, operations, quality and patient experience and patient safety initiatives, and for 
managing the resources of the department to meet the needs of the patient. 

Scopes of Service will be specific to area within the organization and will include: 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 61

65/277



COPY

outpatient, and ancillary departments of our facility. 
• Ensure that accurate, comprehensive demographic information is acquired and keyed into the hospital’s 

database. 
• Available to answer any questions patients might have and works to ensure that the patient’s registration 

is an exceptional experience.   

• Companies that provide electronic transaction capabilities that allow us to verify insurance coverage and 
benefits along with patient address verification: 

◦ Change Healthcare 
◦ Waystar 
◦ Provider Advantage 

• The Admitting department uses full-time employees and part-time employees to ensure staffing for the 
main admitting areas between the hours of 7:00 a.m. - 5:30 p.m., Monday through Friday in addition to 
laboratory coverage on weekends from 9:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m., along with 24/7 coverage in the 
Emergency Department. 

• The staff includes a Patient Access Manager, Patient Access Specialists, Lead Pre-Admissions Registrar, 
Pre-Admissions Registrars, and Operator/Receptionists. 

• All personnel report directly to the Director of Patient Financial Services. 

• Healthcare Financial Management Association (HFMA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: ANESTHESIA 

• Chief of Surgery with collaboration of Anesthesiology is responsible for all anesthesia standards of care 
and practice. All types of non-flammable agents may be provided by an Anesthesiologist where deemed 
appropriate and necessary. All anesthesia is provided by credentialed anesthesia providers. 

• Types of anesthesia services provided are: 
◦ General 
◦ Inhalational 
◦ Major conduction block, caudal, epidural, spinal 
◦ Local with or without intravenous analgesia and monitored anesthesia care 
◦ Pain control 
◦ Airway management 
◦ Intravenous regional blocks 
◦ Major vascular access placement 

• Approved anesthesia locations are: 
◦ OR-all types (5 suites and endoscopy) 
◦ OB-all types (1 Suite and labor and delivery) 
◦ ED-topical, local, nerve block, intravenous sedation 
◦ Radiology-local and moderate sedation. 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE: 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 10 of 61

66/277



COPY

• Anesthesia is provided Monday through Friday during regularly scheduled Surgical Services Department 
hours. 

• Emergency Anesthesia is provided as needed per patient population 24 hour 7 days a week, including 
holidays and weekends throughout the facility. 

• General anesthesia, Monitored Anesthesia Care (MAC), regional, spinal, epidural, and local. 
• Ages served are both adult and pediatrics. Neonates are served post-delivery and during emergencies 

only. 

• None 

• Based upon the needs of the patient population at least one Anesthesiologist will maintain at least a 1:1 
patient care ratio during invasive procedures. 

• American Board of Anesthesiologists 
• American Society of Anesthesiologists 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: CARDIAC/PULMONARY 
REHABILITATION 

• Cardiac and Pulmonary Rehabilitation department is located on the ground level of the Medical Office 
Building. The department includes a patient exercise area, education area and waiting area. 

• The primary purpose of Cardiac and Pulmonary Rehabilitation is to decrease mortality and recurrent 
morbidity after cardiac and pulmonary events through patient-centered care and education. The goal is to 
decrease symptoms, improve quality of life, increase exercise tolerance, decrease utilization of extended 
medical services, and increase independence for activities of daily living. 

• Phase II: Cardiac Rehabilitation/Secondary Prevention and Pulmonary Rehabilitation provide adult 
outpatient and family centered interdisciplinary care including but not limited to assessment, exercise 
prescription, monitored and supervised progressive exercise program and interdisciplinary education. 
Outcomes are managed and reported to meet the American Association of Cardiovascular and 
Pulmonary Rehabilitation (AACVPR) requirements. 

• Phase III: Unmonitored exercise sessions that are paid for directly by the participant after completing 
Phase II. These are provided on a monthly basis. Continuing education and support are provided by the 
staff. 

• Objectives of the service are to ensure proper care and support of patients suffering from Cardiovascular 
and Pulmonary Disease, ensure the educational development of the patients and their family, so as to 
promote an understanding of Cardiovascular and Pulmonary disease and related risk factors, provide a 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., except holidays. 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 11 of 61

67/277



COPY

complete Phase II Cardiac and Pulmonary Rehabilitation Program, and permit the staff to carry out its 
works under favorable conditions. 

• None 

• The department is assigned a Medical Director and Department Director with the following 
responsibilities: 

1. The Medical Director will direct the medical administrative activities of the Cardiac/Pulmonary 
Rehabilitation Service and will provide medical consultation. 

2. The Department Director will oversee operational activities of the Cardiac/Pulmonary Rehabilitation 
Service and provide direction to staff. 

• The staffing for the department is determined but not limited by the following: 

1. Patient volume. 

2. Staff competencies. 

3. Operational budget. 

4. Scheduling staff to meet core and nonproductive needs. 
• Staff may consist of Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) and Basic Life Support (BLS) certified RN, 

Exercise Specialist, Physical Therapist and other certified staff members. 

• Guidelines for Cardiac Rehabilitation and Secondary Prevention Programs, 5th ed. (2013). American 
association of Cardiovascular and Pulmonary Rehabilitation 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: CARDIOPULMONARY 

• MHSC operates a fully functional Cardiopulmonary Services Department. The combining of Respiratory 
Care, Cardiovascular, and Sleep Lab allow for an interdisciplinary approach to the provision of patient 
care. Patient care is provided to inpatients and outpatients. Cardiopulmonary services provide optimum 
assistance to nurses and physicians in maintaining preventive and restorative health needs for patients. 
Cardiopulmonary Services staff provides quality, conscientious, cost effective, and competent care with 
respect for life and dignity at every stage of the human experience. 

• Services will be provided twenty-four (24) hours a day 7 days per week. 

• The patient population served by Cardiopulmonary Services consists of newborn, pediatric, adolescent, 
adult and geriatric patients requiring cardiac and respiratory care, services, treatment or testing to 
maintain optimum physiological maintenance of cardiac and respiratory systems. 

• Patient care services provided by the department, through an order of a physician or under formal 
hospital protocols or guidelines. 

• Services of the Cardiopulmonary Department will include, but are not limited to: 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE: 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 12 of 61

68/277



COPY

◦ Cardiac: 

1. Stress testing – Cardiolite, Lexiscan/Cardiolite, Stress Echocardiogram, Plain Stress 
Echocardiogram, and Plain Stress 

2. Holter Monitor recording and scanning 

3. Electrocardiograms (ECG) 

4. Event monitors (3-30 Days) 
◦ Respiratory 

1. All forms of mechanical ventilation (excluding that provided by anesthesiologist during surgical 
procedures) including: 

a. Conventional ventilation in all forms and modes 

b. Assist physicians with endotracheal intubation and extubation performed outside the 
surgical suite 

c. Reposition and stabilize endotracheal tubes 

d. Tracheostomy care, including changing tracheostomy tubes, and assist with decannulation 
procedures 

e. Non-invasive ventilation including BiPap and CPAP 

2. All forms of airway clearance techniques including: 

a. Positive Expiratory Pressure (PEP) therapy 

b. Chest Physiotherapy (CPT) 

c. Autogenic Drainage 

d. Assisted Cough 

e. Therapy Vest 

3. Medications are administered by respiratory therapists via the following routes: 

a. Small and large volume nebulizers 

b. Metered dose inhalers (MDI) 

c. Small particle aerosol generators (SPAG) 

d. Direct instillation via endotracheal tubes or tracheostomy routinely or during emergency 
resuscitation procedures under direct supervision of a physician 

4. Qualified and trained respiratory therapists can perform: 

a. Nasotracheal, nasopharyngeal and oral suctioning, as well as suctioning of all forms of 
artificial airways 

b. Placement of nasopharyngeal and oral airways 

c. Assist with respiratory emergencies and performing CPR as a member of the code team. 

d. Set-up, monitor and change all oxygen and aerosol therapy equipment and supplies for 
inpatients 

e. Manually ventilate patients when required 

f. Accompany patients requiring assisted ventilation during hospital transports. 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 13 of 61

69/277



COPY

g. Assessments of respiratory status of patients with recommendations to physicians for the 
care plan. 

h. Administration of medical gases, including medical air, medical oxygen, helium/oxygen 
mixtures, and nitric oxide. 

i. Administration of high flow Oxygen therapy 

j. Perform non-invasive Oxygen exchange assessments. 

k. Directed cough with various devices 

5. Diagnostic Services 

a. Complete assessment of respiratory status 

b. Measurement of pulmonary mechanics 

c. Capnography & end-tidal monitoring 

d. Pulse oximetry 

e. Arterial/capillary blood gas drawing 

f. Point of care (POC) blood gas analysis 

g. Exercise testing for evaluation of hypoxemia and/or hypoxia 

h. Pulmonary function testing (PFT), including body plethysmography and diffusing capacity 
of the lungs for carbon monoxide (DLCO) 

i. Assist physicians with bronchoscopy procedures 

j. Electroencephalogram (EEG) procedures 

6. Sleep Lab 

a. Polysomnography. Reports contract to off-site pulmonologist. 

b. PAP titration studies 

c. Oxygen titration studies 

d. Home Sleep Apnea Testing (HSAT) 

e. Nocturnal Oxygen studies 

7. Support Services 

a. Training of nurses and physicians in applied respiratory care 

b. Monitoring, updating, stocking, and maintaining records on code carts 

c. Ordering and maintaining inventory of oxygen and aerosol therapy equipment and supplies 

d. Stocking of respiratory supplies and equipment 

e. Collaborate with biomedical engineering to maintain preventive maintenance records on 
equipment 

8. Education 

a. The hospital serves as a clinical teaching facility for students from Western Wyoming 
Community College and Independence University. MHSC has formal agreements with both 
schools and department staff members may be asked to serve as clinical mentors. 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 14 of 61

70/277



COPY

• University of Utah - Read Holter Monitor Studies and occasionally ECGs 
• Biotel & ZioSuite - Holter/Event Monitors 
• Siemens - EPOC Blood Gas Analyzer 
• Cardiology - William Marcus Brann 
• Sleep Specialist - sleep study reports 

• There is at least one (1) licensed therapist on shift at all times to assist patients and physicians with 
procedures, treatments, ventilator care and any other emergencies requiring his/her 
assistance. Availability of therapists on various shifts meet the needs of our patients. There shall be at 
least one credentialed staff member in-house 24 hours per day 7 days per week. Daily patient volume is 
assessed and staffing adjustments are made as necessary. 

• Clinical Practice Guidelines of the American Association for Respiratory Care (AARC) 
• American Thoracic Society (ATS) and European Respiratory Society (ERS) 
• American Academy of Sleep Medicine (AASM) 
• American Association of Respiratory Care (AARC) & National Board of Respiratory Care (NBRC) 
• American College of Cardiology (ACC) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: CARE TRANSITION 

• Transitions of care, also known as care transition, occurs when a patient is transferred to a different 
setting or level of care. Care transitions can occur when the patient moves to a different unit within the 
hospital, when a patient moves to a rehabilitation or skilled nursing facility, or when a patient is 
discharged back home. Among older patients or those with complex conditions, research shows that care 
transitions that are not managed well can be associated with adverse events, poorer outcomes, and 
higher overall costs. Lack of well managed care transitions can also lead to an increase in potentially 
preventable hospital readmissions. The most important factor in successful care transition is 
communication during the hand-off process. 

• Basic hours of operation are Monday through Friday, with typical hours of 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. There is 
no coverage on holidays. 

• All ages throughout the life span are served through Care Transition, with the majority of those served are 
65 years of age and older. 

• The Care Transition nurse is a member of the Case Management Department. The Care Transition nurse 
visits patients in the hospital setting and then through home visits and to provider appointments as 
needed to provide the following: 

◦ Teach disease specific information: 
▪ Medication management 
▪ Use of equipment 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 15 of 61

71/277



COPY

▪ Disease process 
• Provide patients with specialized, written material, information and self-management skills 
• Prepare patient and caregivers to identify and respond quickly to worsening symptoms 
• Assist patient and caregivers to create/update personal health record 
• Advocate and encourage patient and/or caregivers to be the leader of their health care in an effort to 

improve quality of life 
• Teach patients about how to communicate with healthcare providers 
• Coach patient and/or caregivers regarding the importance of follow up with their primary care providers 
• Target patients transitioning from hospital to home who are at high risk for poor outcomes 
• Establish and maintain a trusting relationship with the patient and family caregivers involved in the 

patients’ care 
• Engage patients in design and implementation of the plan of care aligned with their preferences, values 

and goals 
• Identify and address patient priority risk factors and symptoms 
• Promote consensus on the plan of care between patients and members of the care team 
• Prevent breakdowns in care from hospital to home by having same clinician involved across these sites, 

inasmuch as possible 
• Promote communication and connections between MHSC providers and the MHSC as an organization 

and community-based practitioners. 

• None 

• 1 FTE Care Transition Registered Nurse. 

• American Case Management Association (ACMA) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 
• National Transitions of Care Coalition (NTCC) 
• University of Wyoming Rural Health ECHO Care Transition 
• Care Coordination and Transition Management (CCTM) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: CASE MANAGEMENT 

• Patients at MHSC benefit from individualized Case Management Services for inpatients or outpatients as 
needed, including ED patients. Case Managers bridge the clinical and financial aspects of health care. 
Discharge planning, utilization management, and coordination of care are key focus areas of this 
department. 

• The Case Manager works with the patient, family, and the clinical team to set priorities for coordination of 
care, planning for anticipated needs at discharge, and insurance authorization. Specific services may 
include but are not limited to: 

◦ Level of care determination in conjunction with the attending physician 
◦ Insurance precertification and continued stay approvals 
◦ Acute rehabilitation, extended care and long-term acute care and assisted living facility placement 
◦ Home Health Care, Hospice, outpatient therapy and durable medical equipment arrangements 

CONTRACTED SERVICE 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 16 of 61

72/277



COPY

◦ Providing social support and resources for patients who have complex social needs to provide 
resources related to prescription vouchers, travel assistance, etc. 

• Case Management providers full time service Monday - Friday with hours typically that of 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 
p.m., though the Case Managers work variable hours to meet the needs of patients and families. There is 
no holiday coverage. 

• Case findings are determined through use of census reports and the MIDAS work list each business day. 
Each patients record will be accessed and patients interviewed by a Case Manager to assess discharge 
needs to ensure a safe discharge. Communication with medical staff, nursing staff and interdisciplinary 
staff to develop plans of care and promote patient centered care amongst the team is the foundation of 
Case Management. 

• Referrals for all Discharge Planning and Case Management services are accepted from physicians, 
hospital personnel, patients, families, outside agencies and other health care professionals as 
appropriate. The Case Managers work closely with interdisciplinary teams to develop a holistic plan of 
care for the patient. 

• Case Managers work with patients who are experiencing complex social needs related to diagnosis, 
support, adjustment and resources. 

• Case Managers are not qualified to assist in treatment modalities including crisis intervention, situational 
counseling, or psychosocial assessments for patients who have complex psychosocial needs. 

• Interqual for determination of patient criteria of admittance 

• Case Manager Registered Nurses: 4 full time (1 which serves as Supervisor), 1 PRN and 1 Care 
Transition/Case Manager cross-trained on as as needed basis. 

• American Case Management Association (ACMA) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: CLINIC DOCUMENTATION 
IMPROVEMENT 

• Clinical Documentation Improvement services translates a patient's clinical status into coded data. Coded 
data is then translated into quality reporting, physician report cards, reimbursement, public health data, 
and disease tracking and trending. A Clinical Documentation Improvement (CDI) Specialist is a registered 
nurse who manages, assesses, and reviews a patient’s medical records to ensure that all the information 
documented reflects the patient’s severity of illness, clinical treatment, and the accuracy of 
documentation. 

• Hours vary between 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday - Friday but are flexible to match inpatient hospital 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 17 of 61

73/277



COPY

census. 

• CDI specialists perform concurrent reviews of medical records, validate diagnosis codes, identify missing 
diagnosis, and query physicians and other health care providers for more specifics so documentation 
accurately reflects the patient’s severity of illness. 

• United Auditing Services Part time 20 hours - Remote CDI specialist 

• One (1) CDI nurse reviews inpatient charts on a part-time basis as part of the Health Information 
Management Services Department. Outpatient chart review by CDI nurses is new to the health care 
industry thus an evolving function within the CDI role. 

• American Health Information Management Association (AHIMA) 
• Association of Clinical Documentation Improvement Specialists (ACDIS) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: CLINICAL INFORMATICS 

• Clinical Informatics is a specialty that integrates nursing and clinical science, computer science and 
information science to manage and communicate data, information, and knowledge about information 
systems. The Clinical informatics specialist is focused on safety and quality outcomes as driven by 
information systems. Clinical informatics specialists are responsible for conceptually using systems to 
gather data and provide a system of evidence-based care, evaluating use of resources and accessibility 
for measuring and documenting patient outcomes. Clinical informatics addresses systems for their ability 
to access data, measure responses, facilitate patient care and enhance patient workflow. 

• The MHSC Informatics Department is here to help everyone use the electronic medical record in a way 
that makes workflow and processes more efficient and effective. By working together, in teams, and using 
evidence-based electronic medical record (EMR) practices, we impact patient outcomes in a meaningful 
and favorable way. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS/DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE: 

The typical hours of service are from 7:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday - Friday, excluding holidays. The 
department is flexible with hours and occasionally works night, weekends and holidays. 

 The department also provides 24/7/365 phone support. 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Maintain and support the informatics component of the hospital EMR system. This includes, but is not 
limited to, eMDs, QCPR and T- system software. 

Abstract accurate data for use in determining patient outcomes. 

Education relating to using the EMR. 

STAFFING 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 18 of 61

74/277



COPY

• 

• eMDs 
• Quadramed 
• T-Systems 

• American Health Information Management Association (AHIMA) 
• American Nursing Informatics Association (ANIA) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 
• Healthcare Information and Management Systems Society (HIMSS) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: CHRONIC CARE MANAGEMENT 
(CCM) 

• The CCM service is extensive, including structured recording of patient health information, maintaining a 
comprehensive electronic care plan, managing transitions of care and other care management services, 
and coordinating and sharing patient health information timely within and outside the practice. 

• The CCM is typically available 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday excluding holidays. After 
hour phone calls are to be sent to the house supervisor on shift. 

• All ages throughout the life span are served who have at least two chronic conditions and consent to 
services, with the majority of those served are 65 years of age and older. 

• The chronic care nurse provides CCM services which are typically provided outside of face-to-face patient 
visits through phone calls, and electronic health record patient portal messages as needed to provide the 
following: 

◦ Teach disease specific information: 

1. Medication management 

2.  Use of equipment 

3. Disease process 

4. Provide patients with specialized, written material, information and self-management skills 

5. Prepare patient and caregivers to identify and respond quickly to worsening symptoms. 
◦ Assist patient and caregivers to create/update personal health record. 
◦ Advocate and encourage patient and/or caregivers to be the leader of their health care in an effort to 

improve quality of life. 

1. Teach patients about how to communicate with healthcare providers. 

2. Coach patient and/or caregivers regarding the importance of follow up with their primary care 
providers. 

The Clinical Informatics department is staffed by three (3) Clinical Informatics Specialists and one (1) 
Clinical Systems Analyst 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 19 of 61

75/277



COPY

◦ Support patients with chronic diseases to achieve health goals. 
◦ Establish and maintain a trusting relationship with the patient and family caregivers involved in the 

patients’ care. 
◦ Engage patients in design and implementation of the plan of care aligned with their preferences, 

values and goals. 
◦ Identify and address patient priority risk factors and symptoms. 
◦ Promote consensus on the plan of care between patients and members of the care team. 
◦ Prevent breakdowns in care when patients have a PCP and multiple specialty care providers. 
◦ Promote communication and connections between MHSC providers and the MHSC as an 

organization and community-based practitioners. 
◦ Focus on characteristics of advanced primary care, such as a continuous relationship with the 

patient, and the patient with a designated member of the care team. 

• None 

• 1 registered nurse and 1 medical assistant 

• None 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: COMMUNITY OUTREACH & 
VOLUNTEER/AUXILIARY SERVICES 

• Community Outreach is responsible for facilitating access to healthcare, creating awareness campaigns 
and education through community partnerships. 

• Volunteer/Auxiliary Services provide volunteers who assist in daily activities throughout the facility 
providing focused assistance to departments as needed. 

• Volunteers may assist in patient care and no-patient care areas. 
• Volunteers may also assist in large hospital events, including but not limited to health fairs and 

Foundation events. 

• Monday through Friday excluding holidays. Mail route and Comfort Cart are staffed with 1-2 volunteers 
daily. Gift shop is staffed with volunteers Monday through Friday working variable hours between 8:00 
a.m. and 5 p.m. 

• Build mutually beneficial partnerships between employers, community-based organizations and the 
populations we serve. 

• Foster stakeholder and community partnerships to improve the health of the community. 
• Create awareness campaigns and education through health events, employer sponsored events, 

presentations, social media, traditional news outlets, and other venues to reach our community members 
• Develop and implement effective employee wellness campaigns in partnership with local employers. 
• Responsible for planning and implementing policies under Marketing and Community Outreach, working 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 20 of 61

76/277



COPY

closely with the MHSC Community Outreach Department, MHSC Events Coordinator and Memorial 
Hospital Foundation. 

• Provide mail service, flower delivery, Comfort Cart, Gift Shop, Chaplain Services, and assistance to 
departments such as filing, laminating and clerical duties. 

• None 

• Community Outreach & Volunteer Services Director 
• Volunteers 
• Chaplains are provided on an on call basis 

•  

SCOPE OF SERVICE: DIALYSIS 

• The MHSC Dialysis Unit provides chronic hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis care to patients in an 
outpatient setting. The eight (8) chair unit is located on the third floor of the Medical Office Building 
adjacent to the hospital. 

• Chronic hemodialysis is offered to patients in Sweetwater County and the surrounding area who are 
experiencing end-stage renal disease (ESRD). The age range of the population served is 16 years of age 
and above. Acute dialysis is not offered at MHSC at this time. Patients in need of acute dialysis are 
transferred to a facility with acute dialysis care services. 

• The primary goal of the chronic hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis are to adjust and/or restore the 
health, and functional status of patients with ESRD or kidney disease to improve quality of life to the 
greatest extent possible. In an effort to meet the needs of these patients, their families and significant 
others, a holistic and multidisciplinary approach is used, involving social, medical, economic, spiritual, 
nutritional, educational and psychological aspects of care. 

• In addition to hemodialysis, peritoneal dialysis is a treatment modality of choice offered at the MHSC 
Dialysis Unit when appropriate. Patients are educated to, and assisted with the further exploration and 
possible change to this modality by dialysis staff of MHSC. 

• Arrangements for those interested in kidney transplant are made with the kidney transplant programs of 
the University of Colorado Medical center in Denver, Colorado, the University of Utah in Salt Lake City 
Utah, or Intermountain Health Hospitals in Salt Lake City Utah. 

• An additional goal of staff in the MHSC Dialysis Unit is to provide education for the care of patients 
receiving hemodialysis or peritoneal dialysis or who are experiencing chronic renal disease to other health 
care professionals within the MHSC and any other interested community individuals, groups, or 
educational institutions. Care for patients requiring chronic hemodialysis or peritoneal dialysis augments 
the medical and nursing care provided by at the MHSC. 

• The MHSC Dialysis Unit hours of operation for hemodialysis are 5:30 a.m. - 6:00 p.m., Monday through 
Saturday. Holiday coverage is provided according to the patients' needs. Three shifts of patients are 
treated each day, starting the first shift of patient's at 6:00 a.m. and sending the last patient's home 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 21 of 61

77/277



COPY

around 5:00 or 6:00 pm. 
• Hours for peritoneal dialysis are typically Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. Peritoneal dialysis 

nursing staff carry an on-call phone 24/7 to field calls from patients on peritoneal dialysis who have 
questions or concerns. 

• Operational hours for the unit may change in accordance to patient census and staffing changes. All 
patients will be informed in writing of any change in operational hours and/or days. Any changes in patient 
schedules will result in the patients being informed verbally and in writing no less than 24 hours prior to 
the patient's time of treatment. Every effort is made to schedule treatment time that is convenient to the 
patient. 

• The patient population is under the care of a nephrologist, who also serves as the medical director of the 
unit. The chronic patients that are receiving treatment are patients of the nephrologist. Other patients who 
may be traveling through or are moving into the area may have their charts reviewed and then be 
accepted for treatment by the nephrologist. 

• Peritoneal dialysis is offered to patients who meet the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) 
criteria for peritoneal dialysis. The MHSC Peritoneal Dialysis program achieved full certification by the 
Wyoming Department of Health in December 2019. 

• B-Braun-annual contract for maintenance on the dialysis machines, water purification system and 
supplies. 

• Fresenius USA for dialysate and dialyzers. 

• During the hours of operation the hemodialysis unit is covered by two staff members, either a combination 
of registered nurse and one patient care technician or two registered nurses. One nurse covers the 
peritoneal dialysis service with two additional staff members cross-trained to allow additional nursing care 
coverage to patients on peritoneal dialysis.The unit nursing director oversees the day to day operations 
and care of patients. Each dialysis patient is visited monthly by a registered dietitian and receives a 
monthly visit from a social worker. Once a quarter the multidisciplinary team meets to discuss patient 
outcomes and discusses each individual and their care to better provide service to them. 

• End Stage Renal Disease Network #15: http://www.esrdnet15.org/ 
• http://www.fistularfirst.org/Home.aspx 
• Dialysis Facility Reports 
• http://www.dialysisreports.org/ 
• American Nephrology Nurses Association 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 

• The Education Department is an interdisciplinary collaboration between the Nursing Services Department 
and Human Resources Department. 

• The Human Resources Department collaborates with the Education department staff to conduct hospital 
orientation for all new hires, with the exception of licensed independent practitioners, as well as expanded 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE: 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 22 of 61

78/277



COPY

and individualized orientation for newly hired nurses. Services include, but are not limited to: teaching 
classes, organizing classes and in-services, administering and managing the organization's learning 
management system, coordination of American Heart Association courses to meet compliance, 
conducting competency assessments and assisting in the development of competencies throughout the 
organization, conducting preceptor training and evaluating the effectiveness of educational activities. 

• A nursing professional facilitates and oversees all nursing education in the organization and reports to the 
Chief Nursing Officer. 

• Human Resources staff share education duties and work with all other departments in the organization to 
meet the learning needs of employees in non-nursing departments. 

• The Education department staff and the staff in Human Resources facilitates lifelong learning and 
professional development activities with the goal of personal and professional growth, competency, and 
proficiency for all employees at MHSC. Professionals facilitating nursing education use knowledge and 
skills in educational theory, and application thereof, career development, leadership, curriculum, and 
program management to assist employees in providing safe, evidence-based and exceptional patient 
care. 

• The Education Department, a collaboration between Nursing and Human Resources, is MHSC's contact 
for educational resources. 

• The Education department maintains resources available to all staff on a variety of educational topics 
through on-line resources such as Lippincott,  NetLearning, UpToDate, and Ovid. Education is also 
available through the University of Utah with offerings such as Grand Rounds from various disciplines, 
STABLE, and Tele ICU courses. 

•  Course certifications through the American Heart Association include Basic Life Support (BLS), 
Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS), Pediatric Life Support (PALS) are required for specific 
departments and employees. Additionally, Trauma Nurse Core Course (TNCC)  and Neonatal 
Resuscitation Program (NRP) are required for specific departments and employees. 

• Learning needs of employees in all departments guide meaningful continuing education opportunities 
necessary, and pertinent to position description. 

• Continuing education opportunities include mandatory education needed to meet the requirements of 
regulatory agencies. 

• The nurse educator and Human Resources staff disseminates information and educational/learning 
opportunities to employees who may not otherwise know such opportunities exist, thus expanding growth 
in knowledge, critical thinking and looking at issues from multiple perspectives. 

• The Human Resource staff facilitating non-nursing education have standard hours Monday through 
Friday, no holidays. Educational opportunities are available on weekends on an as needed basis. 

• The nurse educator facilitating nursing education has flexible hours that include weekends, but are 
typically 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. Hours of availability of the nurse educator are 
flexible dependent on the learning needs of Nursing Services employees who work in an organization that 
functions twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week. 

• Education staff conducts hospital orientation for all new hires, with the exception of licensed independent 
practitioners, as well as expanded and individualized orientation for newly hired nurses. Services provided 
by the staff facilitating education include, but are not limited to: teaching classes, organizing classes and 
in-services, administering and managing the organization's learning management system, coordination of 
American Heart Association courses to meet compliance, conducting competency assessments and 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPE OF SERVICE PROVIDED 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 23 of 61

79/277



COPY

assisting in the development of competencies throughout the organization, writing and assisting in the 
writing of grants, conducting preceptor training, and evaluating the effectiveness of educational activities. 
The nurse educator provides career and academic counseling and guidance to those seeking careers in 
the nursing profession. 

• The MHSC philosophy fosters professional development and self-directed learning and believes that 
those with the most appropriate expertise are those best to conduct department-specific orientation and 
training on the use of the electronic medical record. The nurse educator and others in the organization 
with the appropriate experience serve as a resource whenever needed. The nurse educator routinely 
shares with the facility the many continuing education activities available in today’s environment of in-the-
moment online learning. Currently, continuing education units courses are not offered through MHSC but 
are offered through the Lippincott Learning system, the NetLearning system and a plethora of easily 
accessible outside resources. 

• Lippincott 
• OVID 
• Up To Date 
• NetLearning through HealthCareSource 
• American Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACN) 

• The Education Department consists of a Nurse Education Supervisor and Education Assistant who report 
to the Chief Nursing Officer, and as well as the Human Resource staff who share education 
responsibilities and report to the Director of Human Resources. 

• The nurse educator and Chief Nursing Office have developed relationships with educators at the 
University of Utah, Primary Children's Hospital in Salt Lake City, Utah, University of Wyoming, and 
Western Wyoming Community College. These affiliations have led to opportunities to be involved in 
certain educational activities provided by these organizations. 

◦ American Association of Nurses in Professional Development (ANPD) 
◦ American Nurses Association (ANA) 
◦ Revolutionizing Nursing Education in Wyoming (ReNEW) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT 

• The Emergency Department (ED) is a full service, ambulance receiving department that provides 
emergency services including but not limited to the following: 

◦ Assessment and prioritizing with triage for all the emergency situations: abdominal, cardiovascular, 
dental, ENT, environmental, genitourinary, gynecological, neurological, obstetrical, ocular, 
orthopedic, psychiatric, respiratory, substance abuse,  toxicological, and trauma 

◦ Stabilization and care for all patients with transfer by ground/air to tertiary and specialty care centers 
as needed 

◦ Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) program 
◦ The health status of patients ranges from minor illness or injury to acute and/or critically ill or injured. 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 24 of 61

80/277



COPY

• The ED is open 24 hours per day, 365 days per year, and 7 days a week. 

• Emergency services without acute hemodialysis, interventional cardiology, neurosurgery and 
interventional radiology. 

• Access to tele-stroke services. 
• The ED is designated as an Area Trauma Hospital by the State of Wyoming which correlates to a Level III 

trauma designation by the American College of Surgeons. 
• The department consists of 22 private patient rooms, including 2 behavioral health rooms, and has a 

helipad in close proximity as well as laboratory, cardiopulmonary, and medical imaging services. A 
connected ambulance bay provides covered access for ambulance arrivals. 

• University of Utah Emergency Department Physicians 

• The ED is staffed by board certified emergency physicians 24/7, and provides physician overlap coverage 
from 11:00 a.m. - 11:00 p.m. 

• Registered nurses (RN) staff the unit by census and acuity trends and work 12 hours shifts that are 
staggered throughout the day to meet volume demands. Shifts are typically 7:00 a.m.- 7:00 p.m., 10:00 
a.m. - 10:00 p.m., and 7:00 p.m. - 7:00 a.m. 

• Additional support staff include nursing unit secretaries, ED technicians, EMTs, and certified nursing 
assistants (CNA) with varying hours and coverage. 

• The ED has access to other physician specialties that fulfill call availability to the department including, 
but not limited to; hospitalist care, pediatrics, orthopedics, general surgery, urology, and obstetrics. 

• University of Utah 
• Air Med Flight Services 
• Emergency Nurses Association (ENA) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

• The Environmental Services Department is responsible for the hygieic and aesthetic cleanliness of the 
hospital's internal physical environment. The Department's objectives are to ensure that the services 
provided by the department are effective in maintaining a hygienic and aesthetically pleasing environment 
for patient care, also to identify problems in, and opportunities to improve the quality and cost-
effectiveness of these services. 

• The Environmental Services Department offers services daily, 7 days per week, including holidays. 
• The hours of operation are as follows: 

◦ Housekeeping Services 6:00 a.m. - 11:00 p.m. 
◦ Laundry Services 5:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. 
◦ Laundry and linen deliveries to patient care areas after 2:00pm will be handled by the Housekeeping 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 25 of 61

81/277



COPY

personnel. 

• In carrying out its mission, the Environmental Services Department performs the following functions: 
• Routinely cleans patient care and non-patient care areas of the internal hospital environment in 

accordance with schedules appropriate to each area. 
◦ Cleans inpatient occupied rooms during a patient stay if over a 24-hour period 
◦ Cleans inpatient rooms after patients have been discharged, and prepares them for the admission of 

new patients 
◦ Provides an adequate supply of clean laundry and linens, that are free from infectious contaminates 

to the hospital and the external outpatient clinic 
◦ Routinely cleans outpatient and clinic areas of the external hospital environment, including leased 

spaces, in accordance with schedules appropriate to each area. 
• The Environmental Services Department offers support and assistance to clinical staff in the event of 

emergent situations. 
• As well as its routine services, the Environmental Services Department will respond to urgent requests for 

cleaning services on the hospital campus needed for reasons of health, safety, or patient care. 

• Fibertech Window Cleaning 
• Martin Ray Laundry Equipment Services 

• Urgent, non-urgent and routine services are provided between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m., 7 
days a week. 

• American Society for Healthcare Engineering (ASHE) 
• Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
• American Operating Room Nurses (AORN) 
• Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory Committee (HICPAC) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: FACILITY SUPPORT SERVICES 

• Facility Support Services (FSS) is responsible for maintaining the physical health and condition of the 
hospital, the Medical Office Building, physical plant buildings (including the power house, emergency 
diesel generator building, and other associated out buildings on campus) plus several off-site facilities. In 
addition, the Bio-Medical Department is part of FSS and its personnel report to the FSS Director. 

• FSS personnel are available 24 hours a day. 
• FSS working hours are typically Monday-Friday from 6:30 a.m. - 9:00 p.m. Saturday, Sunday and holiday 

hours vary. Typically, on weekends and holidays the on-call staff member will work 10 hours during the 
day and evening. FSS personnel are assigned on-call for after-hours emergencies or when the shop is 
not otherwise staffed. 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE: 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 26 of 61

82/277



COPY

• FSS provides preventative maintenance, responds to trouble calls or maintenance requests, operates and 
maintains the boiler plants, HVAC equipment, and emergency generators. 

• FSS is responsible for proper handling and disposal of medical waste generated by patient care functions. 
• FSS maintains or manages contracts for the maintenance of life safety equipment and systems. FSS 

provides project management support for remodels and special projects as assigned. Through the Bio-
Medical department, FSS manages service contracts and coordinates or affects the repairs to biomedical 
equipment. 

• FSS subcontracts certain technical repairs and inspections. These include boiler overhauls, emergency 
generator repairs and load testing, fire alarm and monitoring system inspection and repairs, central plant 
water chemistry support, pest control, medical gas system certification and asbestos abatement. 

• Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) or other professional services are contracted on the basis of 
bids, time and material contracts or annual/multiyear contract basis to perform repair, services and 
maintenance on select systems and components. This is especially true where certifications or advanced 
training beyond what is typical of in-house personnel or where special tools and equipment are required 
and the cost of this equipment or training is not cost effective as an in-house service. 

• Typically an FSS staff-member is on site for approximately 14.5 hours on week days and 10 hours on 
weekends. When FSS personnel are not on site, a designated member of FSS Department is on call and 
available, thereby assuring FSS coverage 24/7. The PBX operator and House Supervisors are given the 
on-call schedule with updates made as needed to ensure 100% availability of FSS personnel. All on-call 
personnel are provided cell phones and the list of FSS cell numbers are provided to PBX operators and 
House Supervisors. The PBX operator and House Supervisors know that they can escalate calls for 
support by contracting the FSS Facility Supervisor or the FSS Director. These phone numbers are also 
available to the PBX operator and House Supervisor. 

• FSS personnel are typically general maintenance personnel trained in a variety of typical building 
maintenance skills. Some members of the staff have specific trade skills including licensed electrician and 
licensed plumber. Staff also have specialized certifications such as UST Operator, Certified Welder, 
Building Automation Specialist, Carpenter and HVAC technician. 

• FSS personnel have affiliations, licensing, certification or memberships with the following organizations: 
◦ National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 
◦ American Society of Healthcare Engineers (ASHE) 
◦ Wyoming Department of Fire Prevention and Electrical Safety 
◦ Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality (Wyoming DEQ) 
◦ Wyoming Society of Healthcare Engineers (WSHE) 
◦ American Medical Association (AMA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: FISCAL SERVICES 

• Fiscal Services is a non-clinical department that provides the following services: Payroll, Accounts 
Payable, Fixed Assets, Budgeting, General Ledger, and Financial and Statistical reporting. Fiscal 
Services personnel are non-clinical and do not provide direct patient care. Fiscal Services work in a 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE: 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 27 of 61

83/277



COPY

collaborative effort to provide all other hospital departments with financial and reporting assistance. 

• Fiscal Services personnel are available 7:00 am - 4:30 pm, Monday through Friday, except holidays. 

• Services provided include Payroll, Accounts Payable, Fixed Assets, Budgeting, General Ledger and 
Financial and Statistical reporting. 

• None 

• Staff includes the Controller, Staff Accountant, Accounting Clerk, Payroll Clerk, and Accounts Payable 
Clerk. 

• Healthcare Management Financial Association (HFMA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: HEALTH INFORMATION 
MANAGEMENT 

• The Health Information Management Department is responsible for patient information management as 
applied to health and health care. It is the practice of acquiring, analyzing and protecting digital and 
traditional medical information vital to providing quality patient care. 

• The Health Information Management Department is staffed as follows: 
◦ Medical Records Department Access: 

▪ Monday through Friday, 6:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. 
▪ Saturday and Sunday – Closed 
▪ Holidays Recognized by Hospital – Closed 

◦ General Medical Transcription 
▪ Monday through Thursday – 5:00 a.m. - 11:00 p.m., and Friday from 5:00 a.m. - 10:00 p.m. 
▪ All weekends and holidays covered for minimal hours per day, depending on dictation back log. 

H&Ps and any dictations dictated are done within required turnaround time frames. 
▪ On-call for any after-hours transfer summaries that need done STAT, unless other 

arrangements are made in advance. 
◦ Health Information Management Director 

▪ Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m. 
▪ Saturday and Sunday, or after hours, available by cell phone 

• All patients – Information faxed to continuing care facilities per request 
• Previous patients – We copy charts per patient requests as they walk in or call 
• Birth certificate completion and submission to State of Wyoming 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 28 of 61

84/277



COPY

• Completing Affidavit Acknowledging Paternity and Affidavit Denying Paternity document with single 
parents 

• Collecting paper chart documentation from all patient care areas in the hospital 
• Analyzing and verifying that patient documentation (including orders for admission) are in the correct 

chart and the documentation is complete 
• Scanning paper documents into electronic medical record into the correct section and attaching to the 

appropriate patient's record 
• Verifying that physicians have completed necessary documentation in each patient's chart 
• Notifying physician of deficient or delinquent information in patient records 
• Locating and accessing microfilm records for patient care 
• Identifying and pulling old records from shelf to be microfilmed/archived electronically 
• Verifying that appropriate orders are documented before coding chart 
• Verifying appropriate ICD-9 codes to correspond with patient's diagnosis 
• Verifying CPT or procedure codes are correct for the patient's procedures 
• Verifying inpatient data has correct codes before being submitted to Medicare 
• Coding and abstracting charts in a timely manner to allow days in AR to be minimal 
• Provide Health Information to requesting physicians from outside clinics or hospitals 
• Faxing information to other health care providers for continuing patient care 
• Transcribing general medical, surgical reports, obstetrical reports, pediatric and Oliver clinic notes. 
• Identifying and submitting all cancer cases diagnosed at our hospital to the State of Wyoming 
• Locating and copying records for attorneys and patients 
• Bill for records copied and submitted to attorneys and patients (usually taken care of by our vendor) 
• Copying charts requested by Medicare and health insurance companies who request appropriate 

documentation was completed 
• Maintaining personal health information 
• Notifying physicians to complete outstanding dictations or authenticate incomplete patient records 
• A notary is located in our office. We will notarize any legal documents for the convenience of patients and 

staff members 
• Working with case managers to improve physician documentation 
• Work closely with admission staff to ensure proper identification of patients 
• In conjunction with Information Technology, merge together duplicate medical records on the same 

patient 
• In conjunction with Compliance Officer, responsible for policies regarding personal health information 
• Locating Advanced Directives for patient, when not present in most recent record. 

• United Auditing Services (external chart review and back-up coding) 
• Arrendale and Associates (contracted to transcribe backlogs and for dictation and transcription software) 
• Care Consultants Better Solutions (release of information for legal charts) 
• Fair Warning (managed privacy services) 
• Copier and Supply (copy/fax) 

• 1 - Health Information Management Director 
• 1 - HIM Supervisor 
• 1 - Inpatient coders 
• 3 - Outpatient coders 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 29 of 61

85/277



COPY

• 1 - General medical transcriptionists (2 PT) 
• 5 - Health Information Management Technicians (4 FT, 1 PT, 1 PRN) 

• Association for Healthcare Documentation Integrity (AHDI) 
• American Health Information Management Association (AHIMA) 
• Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 
• The Joint Commission (TJC) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: HUMAN RESOURCES 

• Recruits, hires, and orients new employees, with exception of providers. 
• Manages employee benefits, including compensation, health insurance, unemployment and workers' 

compensation. 
• Conducts hospital orientation, in collaboration with the Education department for all new hires, with the 

exception of licensed independent practitioners/providers. 
• Works closely with departments and staff to identify and mentor existing staff into advanced training, 

experiences and leadership opportunities, both formal and informal, in an effort to create depth of 
experience and aptitude within our workforce. 

• Facilitates lifelong learning and professional development activities with the goal of personal and 
professional growth, competency and proficiency for all employees at MHSC, including clinical and non-
clinical departments. 

• Staff in the Human Resources Department provide career and academic counseling and guidance. 
• Maintains relationships between employees and leadership by promoting communication and fairness 

within the organization. 
• Interprets and enforces employment and labor laws and regulations. 
• Together, through recruitment and retention efforts that focus on the development of a workforce that is 

competent in knowledge, skill, aptitude and attitude, MHSC continues to be progressive and proactive in 
taking on the challenges of an ever-changing health care world. 

• Maintains and manages MHSC Corrals Intranet website at https://sweetwater.interactgo.com/ 

• Human Resource staff is available 7:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except holidays. 

• Services provided include recruitment, orientation, benefits administration including mental health 
services provided to all employees, management and maintenance of employee information, leadership 
training, compensation analysis and management, policy deployment and interpretation, performance 
management support and assistance. 

• Focus One Staffing Services for contract personnel 
• CompHealth for the recruitment of therapist positions 
• ComPsych through Unum for the provision of Employee Assistance Program 
• Alliance Benefit Group (ABG) for Retirement Benefits 
• Arthur J. Gallagher for the Administration of Health/Dental/Vision/Disability and Life insurances 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 30 of 61

86/277



COPY

• The Human Resource Department is staffed by a Director of Human Resources, a Human Resource 
Specialist in Benefits, a Human Resource Generalist, and a Human Resource Administrative Assistant. 

• American Society for Healthcare Human Resource Administration(ASHHRA) 
• Employers Council - Compensation, Employment Law 
• Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM) 
• Human Resources Certification Institute (HRCI) 
• High Desert Human Resources (HDHRA) -SHRM Regional Affiliate 
• Wyoming Hospital Association (WHA) 
• Compensation Data Exchange (CompuData) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: INFECTION PREVENTION & 
EMPLOYEE HEALTH 

• The Infection Prevention (IP) & Employee Health (EH) Department is responsible for monitoring the 
hospital, employees, and patients for any infectious processes or potential infectious process. This 
department also collects and reports information regarding infectious processes to regulatory agencies as 
required. The IP & EH department are also involved with new construction/remodels to assure all infection 
control processes and regulatory requirements are followed. Family Practice physicians and providers 
who offer occupational health services works in conjunction with Infection Prevention to regulate and 
provide education regarding immunizations for preventable communicable diseases, blood borne 
pathogen prevention, and follow-up when applicable or noted by CMS, local and state public health, TJC 
and OSHA. 

• The Infection Prevention & Employee Health Department operates from 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, no holidays. Available after hours as needed. 

• IP&EH provides monitoring and investigation of any infectious diseases, whether occurring in patients or 
employees; assures that hospital policies regarding infections are correctly followed; evaluates for 
compliance with immunizations; and instructs all new employees, students, licensed independent 
practitioners, volunteers and contracted personnel on infection prevention techniques. 

• IP&EH is also responsible for reducing the risk for the transmission of infections in the health care 
environment for patients, personnel and visitors. 

• Other functions include serving as the institution's liaison to regulatory agencies and health departments 
regarding incidence reporting and other communications concerning communicable diseases and 
conditions as needed.  Hospital acquired infection performance improvement, and emergency 
management and disaster preparedness are also included in the scope of service. 

• IP&EH ensures that a sanitary environment is present to avoid sources and transmission of infections and 
communicable diseases. The entire campus, departments and all services are included. Construction 
activities are carefully monitored to ensure a safe and sanitary environment by the IC department. 

• This department does not provide on-site Infectious Disease Physician or services of an Infectious 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF THE SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 31 of 61

87/277



COPY

Disease physician, except for phone consultation through the affiliation of the University of Utah. 

• An infectious disease MD can be contacted by telephone for consults. 
• In addition the Wyoming State Department of Health is available to consult. 

• Two RNs staff this department who are licensed in the State of Wyoming. 
• A qualified physician licensed in the State of Wyoming acts as the Medical Director. 

• Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
• The Joint Commission (TJC) 
• Chinese Medical Association (CMA) 
• Association of Professionals in Infection Control and Epidemiology (APIC) 
• Association of Occupational Health Professionals in Health Care (AOHP) 
• Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory Council (HICPAC) 
• Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 
• National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) 
• American Association of Operating Room Nurses (AORN) 
• Association for Advancement of Medical Instrumentation (AAMI) 
• American Society of Healthcare Engineering (ASHE) 
• Department of Health (DOH) 
• American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 
• American Institute of Architects (AIA) 
• Facilities Guideline Institute 
• Wyoming Department of Health (WDOH) 
• Sweetwater County Public Health 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
SERVICES 

• Information Technology Services (IT) provides MHSC with all its computer, printer, network security, and 
application needs. IT provides each department in the hospital with computer hardware and software 
support, networking and security support as well as applications support.. 

• ITs role in the hospital is to provide the entire organization with the necessary hardware and software in 
order for them to care for the patients. Those items include: 

◦ Hospital desktop computers and laptops 
◦ Bar code scanners 
◦ Printers 
◦ Label Printers 
◦ Core networks including wired and wireless 
◦ Internet connectivity 
◦ Application support 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICES 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 32 of 61

88/277



COPY

• The IT Department is staffed Monday-Friday excluding holidays. The department does provide 24/7/365 
phone support. 

• The typical hours of service are from 7:00 am - 5:00 pm. 
• The department is flexible with hours and occasionally works night, weekends and holidays. 

• The IT department provides hardware and software supports to all hospital employees and related 
services of the organization. 

• The IT department does not provide IS support to personal equipment of employees or patients. 
• Contact for the department is through the Help Desk at ext. 8425 or by email at 

helpdesk@sweetwatermemorial.com 

• None 

• The IT department consists of the following job titles: 
◦ IT Director 
◦ Senior Systems Administrator 
◦ Systems Administrator 
◦ Senior Network Administrator 
◦ Help Desk Analysts 

• Health Information Management Systems Society (HIMSS) 
• College of Healthcare Information Management Executives (CHIME) 
• Utah Health Information Network (UHIN) 
• Utah Health Information Exchange (CHIE) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: INTENSIVE CARE UNIT - Level I 
& II 

• Seven days a week, 24 hours per day, 365 days a year. The unit is only closed when no patients are 
present. Staff remains available per on call standards to open the unit should patient care needs arise 
requiring ICU trained nursing staff. 

• ICU Level I 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING HOURS/PATTERN AND TYPE/ NUMBERS 

AFFILIATION OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

Intensive Care Unit (ICU) Level I cares for patients with severe and life-threatening severe illnesses and 
injuries that require constant, close monitoring and support from specialized equipment and medications 
in order to ensure normal bodily functions. 

Intensive Care Unit Level II / Step-down Unit - is an intermediary step between ICU and the Med/Surg 
floor. These patients still need a high level of skilled nursing care and surveillance but are more stable. 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 33 of 61

89/277



COPY

◦ Has a maximum capacity of 4 critical beds located in private rooms. The patient population is 
predominantly adult, with occasional pediatric patients. Patients may be admitted from the 
Emergency Department, transferred from the Medical/Surgical Unit, Obstetrical Services, direct 
admission, or transferred from PACU. All ICU rooms have bedside monitors with central monitoring 
and recording. There is the capability of invasive monitoring of arterial blood pressure, central 
venous pressure lines, cardiac rate and rhythm, SpO2, respiratory rate, and non-invasive cardiac 
output. There are cameras located in each room. Each patient head wall has 3 oxygen outlets, 
compressed air, and 2 suction outlets. Other equipment available includes ventilators, volumetric 
pumps, external pacers and defibrillators, PCA pumps, enteric feeding pumps, BiPap, and 
Vapotherm. 

• ICU Level II / Step-down Unit 
◦ Has a capacity of six acute care/step down beds located in private rooms, one of which has a 

negative pressure relationship. The population is predominately adult, with occasional pediatric 
patients. Patients may be admitted from the Emergency Department, transferred from the ICU, 
Medical/Surgical Unit, Obstetrical Services, or from PACU, or admitted directly from physicians' 
offices. All Step-down rooms have bedside monitors with central monitoring and recording. There is 
the capability of monitoring of cardiac rhythms, blood pressure, SpO2, and respiratory rate. Each 
patient head wall has oxygen outlets, compressed air, and suction outlets. Other equipment available 
includes volumetric pumps, PCA pumps, enteric feeding pumps, BiPAP, and Vapotherm. 

• Both units are physically located in the same department. 
• In the event of a higher census in other areas, either the step-down or intensive care unit may take non-

ICU patients as overflow for patient care needs, care and treatment. 

• University of Utah Tele-ICU 

• The staff on this unit includes a Unit Director, Clinical Coordinator, Registered Nurses and Certified 
Nursing Assistants. 

• The unit uses a multidisciplinary approach of care which includes services of physical therapy, dietitians, 
laboratory, respiratory therapy, case managers, physicians, and behavioral health counselors. 

• Each 12-hour shift is staffed with two RNs as a baseline with shifts starting at 6:00 a.m. or 6:00 
p.m. respectfully. Depending on the census and acuity there may be a CNA from 6:00 a.m. - 6:00 p.m. 

• American Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACN) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 
• American Heart Association (AHA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: LABORATORY & PATHOLOGY 

• The Clinical Laboratory provides inpatient and outpatient laboratory services that include clinical 
laboratory, transfusion/blood bank, and histopathology. 

• The Laboratory provides services 24/7/365 for inpatient services. Outpatient hours are Monday - Friday 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 34 of 61

90/277



COPY

7:00 a.m. - 9:30 p.m. and Saturday - Sunday 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. 

• The Laboratory provides service to all ages of clients. Services provided includes, but are not limited to: 
◦ Clinical Laboratory 

▪ General chemistry 
▪ Special chemistry 
▪ Therapeutic drug testing 
▪ Microbiology 

▪ Bacteriology 
▪ Parasitology by PCR 
▪ Acid fast smears 

▪ Urinalysis 
▪ Hematology 
▪ Coagulation 
▪ Immunology 
▪ Drug screens 
▪ Serology and molecular testing 

◦ Transfusion/blood bank services 
▪ Prenatal screening 
▪ Cord blood workup 
▪ ABO, Rh 
▪ Antibody screens 
▪ Antibody identification 
▪ Compatibility testing 
▪ Blood products 

▪ Packed RBC units 
▪ Frozen plasma 
▪ Platelets-by special order 

◦ Histopathology 
▪ Non-gynecology cytology 
▪ Complete histology 

▪ Special stains 
▪ Frozen sections 
▪ Testing not provided in house by MHSC Laboratory will be sent to a reputable and licensed 

reference laboratory. 

• Vitalant – provides blood and blood products 
• ARUP Laboratories 

• The Laboratory is staffed with a Medical Director/Pathologist who oversees the Laboratory’s Clinical 
Laboratory Improvement Amendments (CLIA) license and all laboratory testing.  The Medical Director 
may perform the roles of the Technical Consultant and Technical Supervisor, but may delegate, in writing, 
to qualified personnel duties to the Technical Supervisor, Technical Consultant, and/or General 
Supervisor. 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 35 of 61

91/277



COPY

• Director, Coordinator, Medical Technologists/Medical Laboratory Scientists, Medical Laboratory 
Technicians and Lab Assistants/Phlebotomists 

• ARUP Laboratories, Salt Lake City, UT - reference laboratory 
• American Society of Clinical Pathologists (ASCP) 
• American Association of Blood Banks (AABB) 
• Food and Drug Administration (FDA) 
• The Joint Commission (TJC) 
• Mayo Laboratories 
• Colorado Public Health 
• Wyoming Public Health 
• Integrated Oncology 
• Oncoytpe Dx 
• Labcorp 
• Prometheus 
• Quest Diagnostics 
• Vitalant 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: MARKETING & PUBLIC 
RELATIONS 

• Marketing & Public Relations is a non-clinical department in charge of marketing and promotion of 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, all of its Specialty Clinics, service lines, providers and 
employees, and programs. It deals directly with media and advertising companies. The department 
performs duties pertaining to the marketing and promotion of a positive public image for MHSC, its 
Specialty Clinics, service lines, providers and employees, and programs. It directs overall marketing 
functions for the entire organization including all publicity, advertising, marketing, promotion activities, and 
material for the press and public. 

• Monday through Friday, except holidays. 

• Creating, implementing and measuring the success of a comprehensive marketing, communications and 
public relations program that includes communications and public relations activities and materials 
including publication, media relations, and community relations. 

• Development of an annual department budget to cover advertising, sponsorship requests, digital needs, 
promotional materials, etc. for Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, its Specialty Clinics and its 
service lines. 

• In charge of all branding – including use of logo(s) – for Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, its 
Specialty Clinics, service lines, medical staff, employees, and programs. 

• Responsible for creating, editing and designing physical layout of print and digital advertising and 
marketing materials including all brochures, rack cards, fliers, pamphlets, etc. for anything distributed 
internally or externally for the entire organization. 

• Responsible for planning and implementing all publicity, advertising, marketing, and promotion activities 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 36 of 61

92/277



COPY

and material that represents the organization to the press and public. 
• Responsible for planning and implementing policies under Marketing and Community Outreach, working 

closely with the MHSC Community Outreach Department, MHSC Events Coordinator and Memorial 
Hospital Foundation. 

• Establishes, maintains and monitors all official social media accounts including Facebook, Twitter, 
Instagram, Snapchat, etc. 

• Designs, implements and maintains hospital website at https://sweetwatermemorial.com 

• Advertising contracts – annual and short-term – including radio, digital, outdoor, television and other 
services that fall under the category of hospital marketing. 

• Staff consists of the Marketing & Public Relations Director, who also serves as the hospital's lead Public 
Information Officer and chief spokesperson to the media. 

• Maintains MHSC's membership in the Wyoming Press Association. 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: MATERIALS MANAGEMENT 

• Materials Management is a non-clinical department comprised of two divisions: Purchasing and Central 
Supply. The department procures and distributes all medical and non-medical product needed by the 
entire hospital, with the exception of pharmaceuticals. 

• The Purchasing Office is available Monday through Friday 6:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., no holidays. 
• The Central Supply department is available Monday through Friday 6:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., no holidays. 

• The Purchasing office is responsible for all the buying functions for the procurement of all supplies and 
equipment for the hospital. This service is located in the basement of the hospital. Shipping and receiving 
is also part of this division and located in the basement next to the loading dock. The function of this area 
is to ship and receive all supplies and shipments to and from the hospital. 

• The Central Supply division of Materials Management is responsible for the distribution and 
replenishment of medical supplies throughout the entire hospital. This department is located in the 
basement of the hospital next to the loading dock.. 

• Both divisions work in a collaborative manner to ensure all necessary supplies are available in a timely 
manner to all departments of the hospital. 

• Intalere 

• The staff includes a Director, 3 Buyers, Receiving Clerk, and Central Supply Aides. 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICES: 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 37 of 61

93/277



COPY

• Association for Health Care Resources and Materials Management 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: MEDICAL IMAGING 

• The Medical Imaging Department includes the following modalities; general radiology, dual energy x-ray 
absorptiometry (DEXA), mammography, computerized tomography (CT) scanning, diagnostic ultrasound, 
magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), nuclear medicine and radiographic procedures, which constitute the 
majority of the daily procedural load. Positron emission tomography (PET) scanning is offered through a 
contractual service. 

• Services related or concomitant to imaging include quality assurance monitoring and evaluation, quality 
control - including protecting patients and staff from harmful radiation, image interpretation, dictation, 
transcription, record filing/management, patient billing, marketing, equipment purchasing and continuing 
education. 

• Fluoroscopic procedures for in-patients requested after hours will be performed on an emergent basis 
only, after direct physician consultation with the radiologist on-call. 

• Patients of all ages, race, sex and financial status are served. Range of treatment comprises diagnostic 
procedures, invasive/intraoperative and noninvasive techniques and radiation, with or without the use of 
contrast media. 

• The normal operating hours for: 
◦ Diagnostic Radiology section of the Medical Imaging Department are 24 hours per day, seven days a 

week. 
◦ Out-patient Ultrasound are Monday through Friday. There will be an Ultrasound technologist 

available for ultrasound emergencies seven days a week. 
◦ Out-patient MRI are Monday through Friday. There will be an MRI technologist available for MRI 

emergent studies seven days a week. 
◦ Out-patient CT are Monday - Friday. There is a CT Technologist available for CT emergencies seven 

days a week. 
◦ PET/CT services are available every other Friday. 

• After routine hours of the Imaging Services Department, a technologist is on duty to cover all Imaging 
Services Department general radiology procedures. The technologist is to be contacted by the hospital 
Nursing Supervisor/Charge Nurse on duty for any and all emergencies, external and internal disasters, 
etc. The technologist is directly responsible to the Director of Medical Imaging at all times. 

• Diagnostic radiology (X-ray): 
◦ The normal operating hours for the Diagnostic Radiology section of Medical Imaging are 24 hours 

per day, seven days a week. 
◦ There is a registered and licensed radiologic technologist on duty at all times. 
◦ Diagnostic radiology procedures are available for Emergency Department patients and inpatients 24 

hours per day. Services for outpatients are during normal operating hours. 
◦ After hours fluoroscopic procedures, will be performed on an emergent basis only and after direct 

physician consultation with the radiologist on call. 
• Ultrasound: 

◦ The normal operating hours for Ultrasound are 7:00 am-5:30 pm, Monday through Friday. 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE: 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 38 of 61

94/277



COPY

◦ Due to the specialized nature of Ultrasound, these procedures will be performed after normal 
operating hours for emergencies only. 

◦ There will be an Ultrasound technologist on call for Ultrasound emergencies from 5:30 pm until 7:00 
am Monday through Friday and all day Saturday and Sunday. 

• Nuclear Medicine: 
◦ The normal operating hours for Nuclear Medicine are 7:00 am - 3:30 pm, Monday through Friday. 

There is no evening, night or weekend coverage available. 
◦ Due to the specialized nature of Nuclear Medicine these procedures will be performed after normal 

operating hours for emergencies, and only after direct physician consultation with the radiologist on-
call. 

• CT: 

1. The normal operating hours for outpatient CT are 7:30 am – 4:00 pm. 

2. Due to the specialized nature of CT, these procedures will be performed after normal operating hours 
for emergencies only, and after direct physician consultation with the radiologist on call. There is a 
registered technologist with CT competency on duty at all times. 

• Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) 
◦ The normal operating hours for the MRI scanner are Monday-Friday from 7:00 a.m. through 4:00 

p.m. 
◦ Due to the specialized nature of MRI and the limited number of time slots available, emergencies or 

add-on scans must be approved by a radiologist. 
◦ There will be an MRI technologist on-call for MRI emergencies from 5:00 pm until 6:30 am Monday 

through Friday and all day Saturday and Sunday. 
• PET Scanning 

◦ PET Services are provided through a mobile service. 
◦ The normal operating hours for the PET scanner are every Friday beginning at 8:00 a.m. 
◦ Due to the specialized nature of the PET/CT exam, scheduling for this exam will cease at noon the 

day preceding the exam. The mobile service company reserves the right to ask that the PET exam 
be rescheduled in the event only one patient is scheduled for any day of contracted service. 

• Radiologist Consultation 
◦ A radiologist is available for consultation 24/7 per the physician call schedule. 
◦ Imaging studies are read daily. 
◦ In the event there is a "critical" finding the radiologist will call the report to the requesting physician. 

• Medical Imaging does not provide conventional angiography using a catheter and contrast injection, 
intravascular shunt placement, complex biliary drainage procedures, or TIPS procedures. 

• PET/CT services are provided through Mile High Mobile PET, LLC. Mile High Mobile PET provides the 
PET/CT scanning services unit, personnel to operate the unit, and the radioisotope ("FDG") required to 
perform each PET scan. The scanning unit is made available to MHSC every other Friday. 

• Advanced Medical Imaging-professional medical services in the specialty of radiology 

• Diagnostic Radiology is staffed 24 hours per day with technologist registered by the American Registry of 
Radiologic Technologists and certified by the state of Wyoming. The techs are scheduled on staggered 
shifts to allow for more coverage during peak hours. 

• Mammography is staffed with two technologists Monday through Friday. No after-hours coverage is 
provided. Technologists are registered by the American Registry of Radiologic Technologists and certified 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 39 of 61

95/277



COPY

by the State of Wyoming. 
• Ultrasound is staffed with 3 to 4 technologists from 7:00 a.m. - 5:30 p.m. Monday through Friday. One 

technologist is scheduled for after hours and weekend stand-by to cover emergent procedures. 
Ultrasound technologists must be registered in Ultrasound by the American Registry for Diagnostic 
Medical Sonography (ARDMS) or American Registry of radiologic Technologists (ARRT). 

• Nuclear Medicine is staffed with two technologists Monday through Friday. There is no weekend or after-
hours coverage. Technologists are registered by the American Registry of Radiologic Technologists, and/
or the Nuclear Medicine Technology Certification Board and must be certified by the State of Wyoming. 

• CT is staffed 24 hours per day. Technologists are registered by the American Registry of Radiologic 
Technologists and must be certified by the State of Wyoming. 

• MRI is generally staffed 6:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. One technologist is scheduled for 
after hours and weekend standy-by to cover emergent procedures.  Technologists are registered by the 
American Registry of Radiologic Technologists. 

• The Mammography program is accredited through the American College of Radiology. 
• The Ultrasound program is accredited through the American College of Radiology. 
• The CT program is accredited through the American College of Radiology. 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: MEDICAL ONCOLOGY 

• Medical Oncology is a branch of medicine that involves the prevention, diagnosis and treatment of 
cancer. Treatment may involve chemotherapy, hormonal therapy, biological therapy, and targeted 
therapy. A medical oncologist often is the main health care provider for someone who has cancer. A 
medical oncologist also gives supportive care and may coordinate treatment given by other medical 
specialists. Care is provided by a multidisciplinary patient navigation team of a dietitian, social worker, 
care coordinator, and financial navigator. 

• The Medical Oncology and Hematology Department is open Monday through Thursday, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 
p.m., Friday 8:00 a.m. to 2:30 p.m., except on holidays. 

• In the Medical Oncology and Hematology Clinic medical history, vital signs and history of illness are 
obtained. Patients are treated with appropriate medical attention, including ordering of necessary tests 
and procedures. Results of those procedures will determine the disposition of the patient. Patients may be 
discharged home, started on a treatment plan, admitted to the hospital, or referred to another physician. 

• In the Medical Oncology and Hematology infusion area, patients may receive chemotherapy, biotherapy, 
adjunctive treatments such as zoledronic acid or denusomab, transfusions, iron infusions, education and 
patient navigation team services. Our care team focuses on symptom management and triage to help 
patients get through treatment as smoothly as possible. 

• Diagnostic bone marrow aspirates and biopsies may be performed as necessary. 

• None 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 40 of 61

96/277



COPY

• The clinic area is staffed by a medical assistant, a receptionist, a clinical coordinator, a nurse practitioner 
and a medical oncologist/hematologist physician who is also the Medical Director. 

• The chemotherapy infusion area is covered daily by 2 chemotherapy certified nurses. 

• American Cancer Society (ACS) 
• Oncology Nurses Society (ONS) 
• American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) 
• Affiliate of Huntsman Cancer Institute-University of Utah 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: MEDICAL/SURGICAL UNIT 

• The Medical/Surgical Unit is a 35 bed unit with private and semi-private rooms. This unit provides care for 
patients requiring observational and inpatient care for medical or surgical needs. 

• The unit uses a multidisciplinary approach of care which includes services of physical therapy, dietitian, 
laboratory, respiratory therapy, case managers, physicians and counseling. 

• The Medical/Surgical Units is open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. 

• Patients cared for range from pediatric to geriatric age groups with medical, social, psychiatric and 
surgical diagnoses. Surgical procedures involve general and specialty procedures including but not 
limited to, orthopedic, ENT, gynecologic, urologic and cosmetic. The Medical Surgical Unit also provides 
after hours and weekend coverage for outpatient infusions as necessary outside of normal operating 
hours for Same Day Surgery. 

• Monday through Friday, excluding holidays, an interdisciplinary team provides care which can include 
physical therapy, speech therapy, occupational therapy, dietician, and case managers. Every day of the 
year, the interdisciplinary team includes the aforementioned services and also includes physicians, 
respiratory therapy, counseling services contracted through Southwest Counseling Services, laboratory, 
and radiology. 

• None 

• The staff on the unit includes a Unit director, one Clinical Coordinator, Registered Nurses, Certified 
Nursing Assistants, and Nursing Unit Secretaries. 

• The typical staffing standard is 1 RN to 5 patients. Each shift is staffed by a charge nurse or Clinical 
Coordinator, RNs and 1-2 CNAs. Staffing adjustments are made according to census and acuity. Typical 
shifts are 7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. CNA 12-hour shifts start at 6:00 a.m, and 6:00 
p.m. 

• Student nurses rotate through this unit for clinical practicum training. Students in other disciplines also 
participate in multidisciplinary training with appropriate preceptors in their specialty in this unit. 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES PROVIDED/ NOT PROVIDED/AGES OF PATIENTS SERVED 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 41 of 61

97/277



COPY

• Academy of Medical Surgical Nurses (AMSN), http://www.amsn.org 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: MEDICAL STAFF SERVICES 

• The MHSC Medical Staff Services Office (MSSO) is responsible for coordination and oversight of the 
Medical Staff Services Department. The MSSO develops, manages, performs, and directly supports 
governance, and credentialing and privileging activities related to Medical Staff, Nurse Practitioners and 
Physician Assistants at Memorial Hospital. 

• Provides overall support to Medical Staff leaders; serves as a liaison between Medical Staff and the 
Senior Leadership Team, and communicates information from medical staff through the Medical 
Executive Committee and the Governing Board. 

• The Medical Staff Services Office is open Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., with the 
exception of holidays. 

• Supports the MHSC organized medical staff leadership and committees by providing expert consultation 
and assists in ensuring leaders and members adhere to the MHSC Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and 
Regulations, and all pertinent policies. 

• Ensure current compliance with all state, federal, health plan, and non-federal national regulations and 
requirements. 

• Ensures that all medical staff and allied health professional (AHP) members are properly vetted according 
to the requirements of the Medical Staff Bylaws, The Joint Commission, State of Wyoming, Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), and other regulatory requirements by providing primary-source 
and accurate verification services. 

• Facilitates and supports the Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE), and Focused Professional 
Practice Evaluation (FPPE) programs of the medical staff, AHP staff and mental health providers. Works 
with the Quality & Accreditation Department to ensure medical staff quality assurance and improvement. 

• Maintains and/or supervises the maintenance of required medical staff documentation and credentialing 
database. 

• Coordinates and manages the Medical Staff Department, committees, subcommittees, and general staff 
meetings. Ensures all department and committee recommendations and correspondence are channeled 
from one committee/department to another. 

• Arranges for and schedules locum tenens physicians to provide adequate call coverage, arranges 
housing. 

• Oversees completion of provider billing paperwork for Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross, and other entities. 
• Oversees hospital owned apartment complex and townhouses, coordinates scheduling, maintenance, 

and cleaning schedules. 
• Compiles and distributes monthly emergency on-call schedule. 
• Oversees, schedules, and conducts physician orientation. 
• Assists the CEO with physician contracts. 
• Assists the CEO and Human Resources with J1/H1B waiver requirements. 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES PROVIDED/ NOT PROVIDED/AGES OF PATIENTS SERVED 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 42 of 61

98/277



COPY

• There are no contracted services directly related to the services of the Medical Staff Services Office. 
Locum physicians/providers are contracted on an as needed basis through various companies. 

• Staff includes the director of Medical Staff Services, the credentialing clerk and a provider enrollment 
clerk. 

• Affiliation with the Wyoming Association of Medical Staff Services, and the National Association of 
Medical Staff Services 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: NUTRITION SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

• . The Nutrition Service staff is dedicated to serving the patients, staff, and community well-balanced 
nutritious meals. 

• In room dining for patients is available from 7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m., Monday through Sunday, 365 days a 
year. The Cafeteria hours are Monday through Sunday: Breakfast 8:00 a.m. - 10:30a.m.; Lunch 11:30 
a.m. - 1:30 p.m.; Dinner 5:00 p.m. - 6:30 p.m. 

• Both inpatients and outpatients are given a room service menu and have the opportunity to select their 
menu according to their diet prescription. 

• The hospital cafeteria is open to all employees and visitors. Employees receive a 35% discount on all 
meal items. 

• The Executive Chef, and kitchen staff, prepares a wide range of dishes each week. The cafeteria also 
offers an all-you-care to eat salad bar, daily, to satisfy almost any demand. 

• Visitors are welcome to order room service while visiting patients, and are also welcome to utilize the 
cafeteria for meal service. 

• The Nutrition Services Department also caters the meetings of MHSC as well as community events on, 
and off, property. 

• MHSC offers two full time Registered Dietitians for inpatient and outpatient services based on the needs 
of the patient. 

• The dietitians are responsible for the nutritional care of all Dialysis unit and Cancer Center patients. 
• Dietitians assess inpatient and outpatient nutritional needs, develop and implement nutrition care plans 

and advise people on what to eat in order to achieve specific health related goals. 
• Dietitians are part of the community Diabetic Education program. 
• Dietitians are on the Head-Start advisory board for community nutrition. 

• Hobart Services – Dishwasher 
• DFM – Register System 
• Western Wyoming Beverage 
• Coca Cola Bottling 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 43 of 61

99/277



COPY

• Executive Chef 
• 2 full time Registered Dietitians, Monday through Friday 
• 1 PRN Registered Dietitian available for evening appointments 
• Dietary support staff 

• Nutrition Care Manual (NCM) 
• American Diabetes Association (ADA) 
• Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics 
• National Association of Nutrition Professionals (NANP) 
• Community Nursing - Diabetes Self-Management Education 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: OBSTETRICAL SERVICES 

• The Obstetrical Department (OB) provides a securely locked badge-access only unit. The unit is 
comprised of 3 labor & delivery room (LDR) suites, 5 private postpartum rooms, a Level II A Nursery that 
accommodates nine well-newborn beds, a special care nursery that accommodates two sick-newborn 
beds, a procedural/isolation room for newborns, 1 surgical suite, and a two bay Post-Anesthesia Care 
Unit (PACU). 

• The OB Department provides outpatient, observational, and inpatient services to pregnant patients, 
postpartum patients, and newborns up to twenty-eight days of age. The OB staff coordinates care with the 
Surgical Services Department to meet the needs of patients who require Cesarean section delivery or 
postpartum tubal ligations. 

• The unit uses a multidisciplinary approach of care that includes services of case management, dietitians, 
laboratory, respiratory therapy, radiology, anesthesia providers and physicians. 

• Unit is open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. 

• Populations served include adolescent and adults who are of childbearing age and neonates 0 to 28 days 
of age. 

• Obstetrical Observational/Antepartum Services: 
◦ Obstetrical Triage Services 
◦ Non-Stress Test 
◦ External Fetal Monitoring 
◦ Oxytocin Challenge Test 
◦ External Version 
◦ Premature Labor Management 

▪ Subcutaneous, Oral, and IV tocolytics 
▪ Betamethasone injections (Intramuscular) 
▪ Fetal Fibronectin Testing 

◦ Ultrasound evaluation 
◦ IV Therapy, Hydration 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 44 of 61

100/277



COPY

◦ ROM (rupture of membranes) Plus Testing 
◦ Hyperemesis Gravidarum 
◦ Pyelonephritis 
◦ Preeclampsia 

• Intrapartum 
◦ Low-Risk Pregnancies 
◦ Stabilization/Transport of High-Risk Pregnancies 
◦ Labor and Delivery Care 

▪ > 35 Weeks Gestation 
◦ External/Internal Fetal Monitoring 
◦ Wireless External Fetal Monitoring 
◦ Cesarean Section Delivery 
◦ Gestational Diabetes 
◦ Preeclampsia, Eclampsia, HELLP Syndrome 
◦ Spontaneous rupture of membranes (SROM) and artificial rupture of membranes (AROM) 
◦ IV Therapy, Hydration 
◦ Fetal Demise 
◦ Induction and Augmentation of labor 
◦ Amnioinfusion 
◦ Epidural Services 
◦ Intrauterine Growth Restriction 
◦ Nitrous oxide administration 

• Postpartum 
◦ Couplet Care 
◦ Postpartum Care 

▪ Up to 6 weeks postpartum 
◦ Post-op cesarean section care 
◦ Postpartum tubal ligation 
◦ Preeclampsia, Eclampsia, HELLP 
◦ Post-op Gynecology 

• Nursery 
◦ Couplet Care 
◦ Newborn Care 

▪ > 35 Weeks Gestation 
◦ Safe Haven Nursery 
◦ Level II A Nursery and Special Care Nursery 

▪ Stabilization/Transportation of the High-Risk Newborn 

1. High-Flow Oxygenation 

2. Sepsis 

3. Respiratory Distress Syndrome (RDS) 

4. Continuous Positive Airway Pressure (CPAP) 

5. Ventilation Support 

6. Surfactant administration 
▪ IV Therapy 
▪ Glucose Management 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 45 of 61

101/277



COPY

▪ Transient Tachypnea of the Newborn (TTN) 
▪ Oxygen Support 
▪ Preemie Feeder and Grower 
▪ Phototherapy 
▪ Large for gestational age (LGA), small for gestational age (SGA) newborns 
▪ Circumcisions up to 12 weeks of age 
▪ Newborn Hearing Screen 
▪ Newborn Genetic Screening 
▪ Back transport to Level I/Special Care Nursery 

◦ Breastfeeding Support (Certified Lactation Counselors) 

• Marshall Industries (Infant Security System) 
• OBIX (Fetal Monitoring System) 

• The Director of OB has 24/7 responsibility for the day to day operations of the unit with assistance of the 
Clinical Coordinator. Staffing is comprised of Registered Nurses, Certified Nursing Assistances, and Unit 
Secretaries. 

• Staffing for the OB Department follows AWHONN Perinatal Nursing Staffing Guidelines ensuring safe 
patient care for antepartum, intrapartum, postpartum and newborn patients. At a minimum, 2 RNs are 
staffed at all times. 

• Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP) Certification 
• American Women's Health, Obstetrics and Neonatal Nursing (AWHONN) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 
• American Association of Pediatrics Neonatal S.T.A.B.L.E program 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: OUTPATIENT SERVICES 

• Outpatient Services provides for the patients who require infusions of medications, treatments, 
transfusions, or wound care that doesn't require a hospital stay. 

• Outpatient Services operates out of the Medical/Surgical department with one designated patient room, 
and accesses additional patient rooms as needed. 

• Typically, Monday through Friday excluding holidays, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., but alternate arrangements 
can be made for after hours and weekends. 

• Services for a diverse patient population includes: 
◦ blood disorders 
◦ intravenous antibiotics 
◦ medication injections 
◦ central line care 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 46 of 61

102/277



COPY

◦ hydration therapy 
◦ antibiotic therapy 
◦ therapeutic phlebotomy 
◦ blood transfusions 
◦ wound care 

• None 

• 1 registered nurse with support from hospital-wide nursing staff 

• None 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: PATIENT FINANCIAL SERVICES 

• Patient Financial Services (PFS) is a non-clinical department that performs the following services: 
preparation and submission of claims to insurance carriers, entitlement programs, and patient guarantors. 

• PFS ensures the accuracy of patient charges, including answering any questions that patients might have 
in reference to services and the associated charges. PFS works to ensure the accuracy of insurance 
carrier payable benefits and coverage. We work to expedite payment from all payers in addition to 
working with patients to retire their debt with us and ensure an accurate accounting of patient accounts. 

• PFS works closely with indigent patients who are unable to pay their debt for services rendered. 
• PFS attempts to qualify indigent patients for our Medical Assistance program and sets up payment 

arrangements. 
• PFS works to acquire free and replacement drugs, copay assistance, assistance with Medicare, Medicaid, 

and ACA applications in an effort to reduce financial toxicity for our patients that are uninsured or under 
insured. 

• The PFS department is open from 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, except holidays, and by 
appointment. 

• Services provided include charge master preparation, charge capture, claim preparation, claim 
submission, claim follow-up and appeal, account collection, statement and letter preparation, payment 
plan assistance, Medical Assistance education and application, aquire assistance for our uninsured or 
under insured patients, and patient accounting. 

• Contracted services include electronic transactions through Change Healthcare, Waystar and Ability 
Network: statement and correspondence preparation and mailing through Instamed, out-of-state Medicaid 
collections through Express Medicaid Billing Service, and patient collections through Wakefield and 
Associates.. 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF THE SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 47 of 61

103/277



COPY

• Staff includes director of Patient Financial Services, Patient Accounts Representative and Financial 
Assistant, Cashier/Collection Clerk, Cash Poster/Collection Clerk, Collection Specialist, Collection Clerk 
Pre-Admit Registrar,  Lead patient Navigator and Financial Representative, Patient Navigator and 
Financial Representative, and Collection Clerks. 

• Healthcare Finance Management Association (HFMA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: PHARMACY SERVICES 

• The Pharmacy Department is responsible for providing safe and effective medication therapy. 
• The scope of pharmacy services is provided in accordance with laws, rules, regulations, and recognized 

standards and practice guidelines. 
• The Pharmacy Department is responsible for systems that control the procurement and distribution of 

medications, ensuring that patients receive right medication, in right dose, at right time. 

• On-site pharmacy services are provided 06:30 a.m. - 8:30 p.m. Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. - 5:00 
p.m. weekends and 7:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. on holidays. 

• After hours, a pharmacist is available on call and remote order entry is provided. 

• Pharmaceutical care is provided to patients through monitoring of patient medication therapy, provision of 
drug information to professional staff, and patient medication education. Specific services include: 

1. Oversight of medication management including establishing policies and practices concerning 
planning, selection, storage, ordering, dispensing, administering, monitoring, and evaluating to 
promote safe use 

2. Identifying high-alert drugs (including insulin, anticoagulants, concentrated electrolytes, 
neuromuscular blockers and others designated by the organization) 

3. Identifying hazardous drugs and implementing policies for safe handling of these agents 

4. Procurement of medications from suppliers approved by the hospital's purchasing organization 

5. Review of medication orders 

6. Evaluation of potential drug interactions 

7. Packaging, labeling, and dispensing all medications, chemicals, and other pharmaceutical 
preparations to patient care areas consistent with current recommended practices 

8. Provision of a unit-dose drug distribution system 

9. Compounding sterile preparations to meet federal and state requirements 

10. Inspection of all areas where medications are stored, dispensed, or administered 

11. Assessment of patient's medication therapy for potential problems such as adverse drug reactions, 
drug interactions, inappropriate dose or dosing interval, or allergy 

12. Assessment of drug therapy for renal impaired patients 

13. Ensure rational and appropriate antibiotic therapy based on culture sensitivity results 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 48 of 61

104/277



COPY

14. Participation in patient medication education through counseling selected inpatients and appropriate 
medication use prior to discharge and participation In selected outpatient education 

15. Monitors, reports, and assesses adverse drug events 

16. Monitors medication usage and identifying opportunities for improvement in cooperation with the 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee 

17. Participation in in-service education programs for professional and nonprofessional staff of the 
hospital 

• Medication therapy is reviewed by a pharmacist at the time of order entry for inpatients. Medication 
therapy management includes monitoring and intervention protocols designed to promote positive patient 
outcomes. Monitoring includes but is not limited to: 

1. Therapeutic dose monitoring of aminoglycosides and vancomycin 

2. IV to PO Conversions 

3. Adverse drug reaction monitoring 

4. Creatinine clearance estimation/renal dosing 

5. Antibiotic streamlining 

6. TPN electrolyte monitoring 

7. Medication use evaluation 
• Medication therapies targeted for specific monitoring include those that are high volume, potentially 

problem prone, and/or possess a narrow therapeutic index. 
• The Department of Pharmacy is committed to supporting the hospital's mission and goals. This includes 

but is not limited to: budgetary and financial responsibility, active participation in multi-disciplinary task 
forces and committees, and participation in education programs. 

• Important functions are identified by hospital leaders as those that have the greatest impact on patient 
care. Those processes which are high-volume, high risk, or problem prone are the aspects of care given 
the highest priority for monitoring and evaluation. 

• The Pharmacy, in collaboration with other departments, addresses the following important functions and 
processes: 

1. Infection prevention and control 

2. Management of information 

3. Management of human resources 

4. Management of environment of care 

5. Improving organization performance education 

6. Patient rights and organizational ethics 
• The Director of Pharmacy is a co-chair on the Pharmacy and Therapeutics (P&T) Committee. Committee 

activities include: 

1. Developing medication-related policies and procedures 

2. Developing policies for therapeutic interchange 

3. Developing and maintaining a formulary system and approving a formulary (list of medications) 
acceptable for use in the facility 

4. Defining and reviewing significant adverse drug events (medication errors, adverse drug events, 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 49 of 61

105/277



COPY

incompatibilities) 

5. Participating in activities relating to the review and evaluation of medication usage 

6. Participating, as necessary, in establishing standards and protocols for the use of investigational 
drugs and medications in clinical trials 

7. Communicating decisions to the medical, pharmacy, and patient care area staff 
• The Department of Pharmacy provides drug information and education to patient care providers via 

newsletters, in-service education programs, IV administration guidelines, flow rate charts, and patient 
medication specific information. 

• Pharmacy provides education and information to the medical staff via presentations at medical 
committees, newsletters, the clinical pharmacy intervention program, the antibiogram, and patient/
medication specific information as requested. 

• The Pharmacy participates in the organization-wide Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) 
Program. 

• Pharmacy management is provided by Cardinal Health Pharmacy Solutions. 
• After hours remote order management is provided by Cardinal Health Rx e-source. 
• Automated distribution cabinets and service is provided by BD Carefusion. 

• Pharmacy staff includes: Director of Pharmacy, staff Pharmacists, certified pharmacy technicians, and 
technicians in training 

• Reference MHSC Pharmacy Standards 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: PROVIDER PRACTICES 

• A clinic or office setting is intended as the primary means of establishing a physician/patient relationship. 
Care provided in a clinic is the first line of defense with diagnosis and treatment of sickness, injury, pain or 
abnormality. Promotion of wellness and the prevention of illness is a primary focus. Chronic conditions 
are diagnoses, monitored and managed. 

• The Medical and Specialty Clinics are multi-specialty physicians' offices. The practice areas include 
providers in Family Practice, Pediatrics, Internal Medicine, Nephrology, Obstetrics/Gynecology, 
Orthopedics, Urology, General Surgery, ENT, and Occupational Medicine. 

• Walk in services include Pulmonology and Neurology. 

• Patients are seen by appointment. 
• Office hours vary in Clinics, Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. or 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 

p.m. The offices are closed on holidays. 
• Appointments can be made for acute conditions within 24 hours, in most cases. 
• New patients are accepted regardless of type of insurance and self-pay is accepted. Patients can be 

referred or self-referred. 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 50 of 61

106/277



COPY

• The clinic provides comprehensive medical services, including but not limited to, medication 
management, injections, immunizations, well child checks, primary care, disease process management 
and education, employment and DOT physicals, audiology services, allergy testing, flu shot clinics, minor 
invasive office procedures, preventive health maintenance assessments and services, ordering of 
diagnostic tests, and ordering of preventative health services and patient education to patients throughout 
the lifespan. Services are provided to people of all ages, from newborn to geriatrics. 

• Medical history, vital signs and history of illness are obtained. Patients are treated with appropriate 
medical attention, including ordering of necessary tests and procedures. Results of those procedures will 
determine the disposition of the patient. Patients may be discharged home, be admitted to the hospital, or 
referred to another physician. 

• Primary care providers provide services to the Wamsutter community area. 
• Primary care and occupational medicine services are provided at the Jim Bridger Power Plant, Solvay 

and Tata in Sweetwater County. 
• Procedural sedation is not performed in the clinic. 
• These services are provided in keeping with the philosophy, mission, vision, values of MHSC; the 

philosophy of the Department of Nursing Service; and in compliance with the standards of nursing 
practice, and all pertinent MHSC hospital policies and procedures. 

• None 

• The medical staff is supported by senior leadership, registered nurses, licensed professional nurses, 
medical assistants, reception and billing staff. 

• University of Utah 
• Each physician, physician assistant and nurse practitioner in the Sweetwater Medical Clinic uses the 

evidence-based standards and guidelines of their specialty. 
• Wyoming State Board of Nursing regulates the collaborative relationship between nurses and medical 

assistants. 
• Wyoming Board of Medicine regulates the relationship between physicians and physicians' assistants and 

physicians and medical assistants. 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: QUALITY, ACCREDITATION & 
PATIENT SAFETY DEPARTMENT 

• The Quality, Accreditation & Safety Department at MHSC provides direction, coordination, and facilitation 
of processes and activities that promote continuous improvement impacting patient outcomes and 
effective delivery of services in acute care and outpatient settings. The department also provides 
direction, coordination, and facilitation of patient safety through the development of processes that 
promote and support a strong culture of safety, as well as effective management of identified risks and 
prevention of adverse events. Every department and service organization – wide is involved in quality 
improvement and patient safety work.The scope of services provided assure the integration of services 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 51 of 61

107/277



COPY

along the health care continuum. We are dedicated to providing support and assistance in a systematic 
and organized approach in the delivery of safe, effective, patient-centered, timely, efficient, and equitable 
health care. 

• Monday through Friday- 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., except holidays. 

• The Quality, Accreditation & Safety Department functions as a resource to support organizational wide 
performance improvement activities, including annual quality and patient safety goals as defined in the 
Performance Improvement & Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. The Quality, Accreditation & Safety Department 
proactively monitors and works collaboratively to improve system issues that arise in providing health 
care services to patients. Services provided impact all patients, visitors, advocates, and employees, 
through a multi-disciplinary, systematic approach. The scope of the organizational quality program 
includes an overall assessment of the efficacy of performance improvement activities with a focus on 
continually improving care provided throughout the hospital. 

• Objective, measurable and clinically significant indicators of processes and outcomes of care are 
designed, measured and assessed by all departments/services and disciplines of the facility in an effort to 
improve outcomes. A summary of the significant findings is reported at the Medical Executive Committee 
and the Quality Committee of the Board for further review, evaluation and action, as indicated. 

• The Quality, Accreditation & Safety Department maintains Joint Commission accreditation through 
facilitation of continuous improvement in providing evidence based care, and by ensuring organizational 
functions that are essential to providing safe, high quality care are in place. 

• MHSC Leadership supports continuous performance improvement through: 
◦ Professional development 
◦ Efforts towards quality and safety goals 
◦ Encouraging and engaging all employees in quality improvement initiatives 

• Clinical quality data requiring vendor submission 
• Press Ganey 
• The Joint Commission (TJC) 
• Advanced Medical Reviews 

• National Quality Forum (NQF) 
• Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ) 
• Institute for Healthcare Improvement (IHI) 
• Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 
• Hospital Improvement and Innovation Network/Health Research and Educational Trust (HIIN/HRET) 
• Hospital Quality Improvement Contractor (HQIC) 
• The Joint Commission (TJC) 
• Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
• National Association for Healthcare Quality (NAHQ) 
• University of Utah Health Care- Value Affiliate Network (UUHC) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 
• American Society for Quality (ASQ) 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 52 of 61

108/277



COPY

• Mountain Pacific Quality Health - Quality Improvement Organization (MPQH) 
• Press Ganey 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: RADIATION ONCOLOGY 

• Radiation therapy uses targeted energy to kill cancer cells, shrink tumors, and provide relief of certain 
cancer-related symptoms. Our highly trained staff is experienced in delivering prescribed radiation doses 
to tumors with precision. By focusing the radiation directly on the tumor, and limiting the amount of 
radiation to non-cancerous cells, the risk of common side effects associated with radiation treatments is 
minimized. Depending on specific cancer and needs, radiation may also be combined with other 
treatments, such as chemotherapy. As patients receive radiation treatments, any side-effects experienced 
are treated to keep patients and their family as comfortable as possible. 

• The Radiation Oncology Department is open Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., except on 
holidays. 

• Treatments will be given outside of normal office hours only in an emergency situation. 

• External beam radiation therapy serves mostly adult patients, or those not requiring intubation or 
anesthesia for treatment. We prefer to refer pediatric patients to a pediatric hospital. 

• Radiation therapy uses high energy x-rays to damage the tumor cells, thereby preventing them from 
dividing, growing and spreading. During radiation therapy, normal cells are damaged as well. However, 
normal cells are able to repair this damage better. In order to give normal cells time to heal and to reduce 
side effects, treatments are typically given in small daily doses, five days a week, Monday through Friday, 
for a period of time prescribed by the radiation oncologist. During external radiation a beam of radiation is 
directed at the treatment site from outside the body. This is typically done using a machine called a linear 
accelerator. 

• We offer advanced treatments, including: IMRT, RapidArc, Breath-hold, and Stereotactic Body 
Radiotherapy (SBRT)-which uses high dosing of very localized and focused radiation to ablate tumors. 

• We are in the process of developing a Stereotactic Radiosurgery (SRS) program to treat brain 
metastases with very focal/effective radiotherapy. 

• We also treat benign medical conditions. 
• We use state-of-the-art equipment, including: Large bore CT scanner with 4D capability, Varian linear 

accelerator with on-board imaging and gating, Protura robotic couch that improves delivery of radiation to 
within millimeter accuracy. 

• Physics support is provided by Mountain States Medical Physics 

• Radiation Oncology is fully staffed from 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. Staff to Patient 
ratio: A minimum of two (2)  radiation therapists per day on the treatment machine, as recommended by 
the American Society of Radiologic Technologists (ASRT). 

• The department is staffed with a receptionist, a nurse, two radiation therapists, a dosimetrist/director, a 
physicist, a clinical trials facilitator, a nurse practitioner and a radiation oncologist. 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 53 of 61

109/277



COPY

• The Cancer Center is affiliated with the University of Utah and The Huntsman Cancer Center. 
• American Society for Radiation Oncology (ASTRO) 
• Oncology Nurses Society (ONS) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: REHABILITATION DEPARTMENT 

• Cooperate with physicians by following prescriptions, communicating progress or changes in condition 
and effectiveness of treatment. 

• Promotes an environment that strives for optimum care to the patient through: 
◦ Knowledgeable, pleasant, cheerful, concerned and progressive personnel, 
◦ Updated and safe equipment, 
◦ And a neat department. 

• Schedule treatments at a time most convenient to the patient and to the therapist 
• Maintains the established hospital standards through progressive, cooperative attitudes, open 

communication, and an involvement in hospital internal and external activities and progress. 
• Provision of in-service and/or continuing education to share and increase therapists' knowledge and 

expertise as health care providers. 
• Documentation of activities especially the patient care plans and all related data dealing with the patient's 

visits. 
• Assessment our services enabling positive change. 

• Licensed Physical Therapists provide outpatient and inpatient services from 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday. 

• Licensed Speech Therapist provide services 9:00 a.m. - 2:30 p.m., Monday through Thursday. 
• Licensed Occupational Therapist provided on PRN basis - we do not have any OT available at this time. 
• Each therapist's personal hours may be changed in accordance with the patient and department's needs 

as approved by department head. 

• Physical therapy, speech therapy, and occupational therapy provided for inpatients and outpatients with 
functional deficits as a result of an injury or disease process. 

• Therapist provide services for both outpatients in the Rehabilitation Department and inpatients (Med/Surg, 
ICU, Same Day Surgery, and the Emergency Department). The department does not have aquatic 
therapy available. 

◦ Treatment occurs in the hospital facilities, and/or in the patient's home 
◦ Patients are comprised of all ages from pediatrics to geriatrics and a variety of injuries, disabilities, 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

This clinical department provides physical, occupational, and speech therapy to inpatients and outpatients. to 
hasten the rehabilitation of disabled, injured, frail or diseased patients. 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

The department is staffed from 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except for holidays or as altered 
secondary to patient's needs. Weekend coverage and after hours staffing is provided by a licensed therapist 
as arranged by the patient, physician, and director. 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 54 of 61

110/277



COPY

and disease process from neurological and orthopedic patients, treatment of pain, wounds, cognitive 
impairments, ADL deficits, speech and language difficulties, and swallowing difficulties 

• Physical Therapy Services 
◦ Provision of modalities and treatments such as hot packs, cold packs, ultrasound, contrast baths, ice 

massage, electrical stimulation, neuromuscular electrical stimulation, intermittent traction, paraffin, 
Phonophoresis · with 1% hydrocortisone cream, Iontophoresis - with Dexamethasone and/or 
Lidocaine, and Hydrotherapy 

◦ Provision of physical assessment, therapeutic exercise, proprioceptive neuromuscular facilitation, 
gait training - with appropriate assistive devices, functional development training, balance and 
coordination, therapeutic massage, joint and soft tissue mobilization 

◦ Fit for custom made support stocking, prefabricated braces, and orthotics 
◦ Rehabilitative application and use of therapeutic equipment 
◦ Provision wound care 

• Speech Therapy Service 
◦ Assessment, diagnostic, treatment, and help to prevent disorders related to speech, language, 

cognitive-communication, voice, swallowing, and fluency 
◦ Services for people who cannot produce speech sounds or cannot produce them clearly 

▪ Speech rhythm and fluency problems 
▪ Voice disorders 
▪ Problems understanding and producing language 
▪ Communication skills improvement 
▪ Cognitive communication impairments, such as attention, memory, and problem-solving 

disorders 
◦ Assessment and treatment patient with swallowing difficulties 
◦ Development of individualized plan of care, tailored to each patient's needs 

▪ Educate patients on how to make sounds, improve their voices, or increase their oral or written 
language skills to communicate more effectively 

▪ Education of individuals on how to strengthen muscles or use compensatory strategies to 
swallow without choking or inhaling food or liquid 

▪ Speech-language pathologists help patients develop, or recover, reliable communication and 
swallowing skills so patients can fulfill their educational, vocational, and social roles 

◦ Counseling of individuals and their families concerning communication disorders and how to cope 
with the stress and misunderstanding that often accompany them 

▪ Work with family members to recognize and change behavior patterns that impede 
communication and treatment. 

▪ Show them communication-enhancing techniques to use at home 

• Provision of modalities and treatments such as: Hot packs, cold packs, ultrasound, contrast baths, ice 
massage, electrical stimulation, neuromuscular electrical stimulation, intermittent traction, paraffin 

• Provision of functional, cognitive and visual perceptual assessment and treatment, therapeutic exercise, 
proprioceptive neuromuscular facilitation, activities of daily living with appropriate adaptive devices, 
functional development training, gross and fine motor function, therapeutic massage, joint and soft tissue 
mobilization 

• Fit for custom made or prefabricated upper extremity braces, splints and orthotics 

Occupational Therapy Services (Not available at this time) 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 55 of 61

111/277



COPY

• None 

• Personnel for the Rehabilitation department includes 2 full-time, one acting as the director of the 
department, and a full-time secretary. 

• Part-time speech therapist. 
• Medical Director 
• Occupational therapist services (not available at this time). 

• American Physical Therapy Association (APTA) 
• American Speech-Language-Hearing Association (ASHA) 
• American Occupational Therapy Association (AOTA) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: RISK MANAGEMENT & 
COMPLIANCE 

• The Risk Management & Compliance Department provides logistical and functional oversight of multiple 
disciplines that are critical to successful delivery of quality care. The department works with both clinical 
and non-clinical departments within the facility.  The department also works with any and all regulatory 
bodies that govern the operation of health facilities and business function.  Staff in the Risk Management 
& Compliance Department are responsible for: 

◦ Compliance and Regulatory Oversight 
◦ Risk Management Program Oversight 
◦ Patient, Staff and Environmental Safety 
◦ Guest Relations 
◦ Occurrence Reporting 

• Monday through Friday during normal business hours, excluding holidays 

• Compliance 
◦ This department ensures that staff in the facility follow any and all regulations governing the function 

of MHSC. The goal is to stay current with new regulations as they become available, and prepare the 
facility for regulatory surveys of any kind. This is done through compliance monitoring, and proactive 
survey preparation within the various departments.   

• Risk Management 
◦ Risk Management services are under the direction and support of Senior Leadership, medical staff, 

administrative and other health care providers throughout the organization. The designated officer is 
notified immediately of any significant occurrences to patients, visitors, volunteers or personnel which 
have the potential for serious harm or impact. Appropriate documentation of unusual occurrences is 
performed within a 24-hour time frame of the occurrence. 

◦ Educational support is provided to all personnel and volunteers to ensure the provision and respect 
of patient rights. Assuring patient rights is the responsibility of all hospital personnel, members of the 
medical staff and volunteers. Resolution and appeal processes of patient complaints are accessed 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 56 of 61

112/277



COPY

through the Director of Risk Management & Compliance. 
• Patient, Staff and Environmental Safety 

◦ Patient and environmental safety initiatives allow MHSC to improve interdisciplinary processes and 
to eliminate avoidable patient harm, injury and death. This department utilizes monitoring, process 
improvement initiatives and coordination of services to reach the goal of exceptional patient and 
employee experience congruent with the facility QAPI and Safety Plan.  All staff members aid in this 
endeavor by the completion of on-line occurrence reports which direct the investigations in the areas 
of most need/highest risk. 

• Guest Relations 
◦ Guest relation services provide for patient advocacy, complaint management, and crisis intervention 

and ethics consultation in a non-judgmental, non-defensive, harassment free manner. Consumers 
are provided with access to health care information and resources in a safe environment of care. 
Services include a centralized system for addressing patient and guest concerns, complaints and 
grievances, the provision of information related to MHSC policies, procedures and services as well 
as a compassionate advocate within the health care system and community. The Guest Relations 
Specialist facilitates the resolution of complaints and grievances per CMS/Joint commission 
requirements, and hospital policy. 

• MIDAS 
• MSDS Online 
• Soleran-eMeditrack 
• The Joint Commission (TJC) 
• Advanced Medical Reviews 

• Oversight by Infection Prevention, Risk & Compliance Director 
• Compliance auditor 

• The Joint Commission (TJC) 
• Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 
• National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 
• Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ) 
• Institute for Healthcare Improvement (IHI) 
• Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 
• National Database of Nursing Quality Indicators (NDNQI) 
• Wyoming Department of Health (WDOH) 
• United States Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: SECURITY DEPARTMENT 

• General conduct and responsibilities include taking the appropriate action to: 
◦ Protect life and property 

▪ To provide services which contribute to the preservation of life, the protection of property, and 
safety of the hospital. 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 57 of 61

113/277



COPY

◦ Preserve the Peace. Prevent crime. Detect criminal activity 
▪ To prevent crime through aggressive patrol which limits the opportunity for a crime to occur. We 

have a continuing education program through the International Association of Hospital Safety 
and Security. All Officers are required to complete self-directed training pertaining to security 
training on multiple levels. The officers provide staff education to reduce the likelihood of them 
becoming victims. 

◦ Detect violation of the law. 
▪ The Security Department remains vigilant regarding all laws under its jurisdiction. This is done in 

the following manner: 

1. Location and reporting of all safety violations 

2. Maintaining awareness of equipment theft 

3. Insuring all vehicles are parked in proper areas 

4. Ensuring proper identification is present on persons and vehicles at all times 
◦ Compliance to ethical standards 

▪ To ensure the integrity and adherence to professional standards of the department by receiving 
and investigating all complaints against departmental personnel of alleged misconduct or 
misuse of force. 

• The Security Department of MHSC provides service to all employees, patients and families on a 24-hour I
7 days a week schedule. 

• Security Officers provide many services. These services include but are not limited to: 
◦ Providing a safe secure environment for all persons coming and going from our campus. 
◦ Patrol the entire campus including our exterior buildings and clinic on a routine basis 
◦ Traffic control of entire facility 
◦ Managing of the security access system 
◦ Managing of the key system 
◦ Assist ambulance services, flight crews, county coroner's office, and local law enforcement agencies 
◦ Monitor the CCTV system 
◦ Controlling and restraining combative patients 
◦ Removal of the deceased 
◦ Repair and service locks 
◦ Customer service as needed 
◦ Responds to all emergencies including and not limited to Critical Response, trauma level one and 

two 
◦ Assist when needed with Title 25 Patients 
◦ Oversees and collaborates with the behavioral health coordinator with monitoring of behavioral 

health patients 
• Behavioral Health 

◦ Once patients in this population are evaluated by a Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC), 
Psychiatric Nurse Practitioner, or attending physician, and it is determined these patients need a 
higher level of care, 
the behavioral health coordinator can assist with the discharge planning needs related only to finding 
a bed and accepting facility for the patient in need. 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 58 of 61

114/277



COPY

◦ In the absence of social workers, the behavioral health coordinator assists in coordinating the Title 
25 process by attending court hearings as scheduled by the County Attorney's Office. 

◦ The behavioral health coordinator notifies all appropriate individuals such as patient, family member, 
attending physician, Southwest Counseling Service, and MHSC Security personnel. 

• The director of security is responsible for any and all actions of the department. The security supervisor 
assists the director and accepts departmental responsibility in the absence of the director. Additional staff 
include security officers and one emergency management deputy. 

• Behavioral health staff consists of 1 coordinator, and nine on-call monitors that assist with behavioral 
health issues, and report to the Director of Security. 

• International Association of Hospital Safety and Security (IAHSS) 
• Managing of Aggressive Behaviors training (MOAB) 

SCOPE OF SERVICE: SURGICAL SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

• The Surgical Services Department of MHSC provides services for surgical care including diagnostic, 
operative, and treatment for procedures and immediate care for post-operative cases on a 24-hour basis, 
including weekends and holidays. The Surgical Services Departments consist of Same Day Surgery 
(SDS) for both pre and post-operative care, Pre-Anesthesia Testing (PAT), the Operating Suites (OR), 
Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU) and Central Sterile Processing (CST). 

• Surgical Services consist of but are not limited to: urology, OB/GYN, general, plastic, orthopedics, ENT, 
pediatric dentistry, podiatry, endoscopy and anesthesia. 

• Surgical Services is located on the hospital’s main level with easy access to Medical Imaging and the 
Emergency Department. It contains12 Same Day Surgery rooms, 4-bed recovery room, 4 operating 
rooms, an endoscopy room, and minor procedure room. An Obstetric operating suite is located in the 
Obstetrics Department. All operating rooms have an anesthesia machine with pulse oximetry, C02 
monitoring, and a module to monitor EKG, arterial blood pressure, and central venous pressure. Air, 
oxygen, nitrous oxide, and vacuum are piped in. 

• The Surgical Services Department is covered 24-hours a day, seven days a week including holidays. 
Elective scheduled cases are done Monday through Friday with normal business hours of 5:30 am to 
4:30pm. 

• Routine sterile processing hours are from 6:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, with weekend 
and holiday coverage from 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m., and on call availability 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

• The patient population served by the Surgical Services Department consists of the newborn, pediatric, 
adolescent, adult and geriatric patients requiring or seeking surgical intervention to maintain or restore an 
optimum level of wellness. 

• The Surgical Services Department provides a safe and comfortable environment for both patients and 
personnel in order to provide optimum assistance to the surgeons in meeting the emergency, preventative 

STAFFING 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

DEFINITION OF SERVICE 

HOURS / DAYS OF THE WEEK OF SERVICE 

TYPES OF SERVICES 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 59 of 61

115/277



COPY

and restorative health needs of the patients. The Surgical Services staff provides safe, high quality, and 
cost-effective care with respect for life and dignity. 

• Procedures performed in the Surgical Services Department include general, ENT, pediatric dental, limited 
vascular, urological, orthopedic, pain management, diagnostic and treatment endoscopy, obstetrical and 
gynecological operative, organ harvesting, and other invasive procedures. 

• PICC line placement is also performed in the Surgical Services Department. 
• Procedures not performed are thoracic, organ transplant, neurology, spine, and ophthalmology. 
• The patient's physical, psychological and social needs are assessed initially upon admission. Intra-

operatively and postoperatively, the patient is continually reassessed; modifications to that plan of care 
are based on reassessment of the patient. In the immediate postoperative phase, the patient is under the 
direct supervision of the anesthesiologist who maintains responsibility for the needs of the patient until the 
patient has been appropriately discharged from the PACU. Disposition of the patient from the PACU is 
based on the complexity of the patient's care needs. This decision is made collaboratively between the 
anesthesiologist and surgeon, with information related from clinical data provide by the PACU staff. Upon 
discharge from PACU phase 1, the patient is under the direct supervision of the surgeon who maintains 
responsibility for the needs of the patient until the patient has been appropriately discharged home or care 
is transferred to the hospitalist for inpatients. 

• Wyoming Urological for Extracorporeal Shock Wave Lithotripsy (ESWL) for urological procedures 

• The basic staffing plan for each operating suite is at least one Registered Nurse, a scrub nurse/ tech. 
Additional circulator and/or scrub tech will be added to the case based on the patient's complexity and/or 
complexity of the instrumentation and care needs required of the specific procedure. There is a nursing 
unit secretary. 

• The PACU is staffed with at least 2 RN, with at least 1 of those RNs being PACU trained to care for the 
patient. Additional supplemental RN staff is provided based on the patient's acuity and assessment of the 
patient's needs. 

• Ambulatory Care Unit for both pre/post procedure is staffed on a 1:3 patient ratio and a nursing unit 
secretary that can assist as a certified nursing assistant. 

• Central Sterile has 3.5 sterile processing technicians who work staggered shifts to accommodate 
instrumentation processing needs for MHSC Department of Surgery, Nursing Units, and Clinics. 

• Biomedical Engineering and volunteer services are used as needed. 
• Surgeons and anesthesiologists who provide care through the Surgical Services Department follow 

medical staff bylaws, rules and regulations 

• American Association of Operating Room Nurses (AORN) 
• American Society of Peri-anesthesia Services (ASPAN) 
• Association for Advancement of Medical Instrumentation (AAMI) 
• American Association of Moderate Sedation Nurses (AAMSN) 
• American Academy of Ambulatory Care Nurses (AAACN) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 
• The Association of Operating Room Nurses (AORN), American Society of PeriAnesthesia Nurses 

(ASPAN), Association for Advancement of Medical Instrumentation (AAMI), Center for Disease Control 
and Prevention (CDC), and public health department standards are references used in the formulation 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

STAFFING HOURS/PATTERN AND TYPE/ NUMBERS 

AFFILIATIONS OR SOURCES OF REFERENCE 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 60 of 61

116/277



COPY

and review of policies, procedures and standards of practice in the Surgical Services Deportment, as well 
as collaborative input from the knowledge and expertise of the surgical staff. To assist in meeting patient 
core needs, support is readily available from most equipment and instrument manufacturers. 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Ann Clevenger: CNO pending 

Irene Richardson: CEO 03/2021 

Tami Love: CFO 03/2021 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical Officer 03/2021 

Ann Clevenger: CNO 03/2021 

Reviewed and Approved: 

MHSC Board of Trustees: 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care. Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9400827/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 61 of 61

117/277



COPY

Current Status: Pending PolicyStat ID: 9325052 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: 2 years after approval 
Document Area: Medical Staff 
Reg. Standards: CMS Appedix A 482.12(a) (10), 

A-0053 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with 
the Board 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: 
• To establish process for periodic direct consultation with the Board by designated Medical Staff leader on 

matters related to quality of medical care provided to patients of the hospital in accordance with CMS 
§482.12(a) (10), A-0053 

SCOPE: 
• This policy applies to the Medical Staff and Board of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. 

DEFINITIONS: 
• “Direct consultation” means that the Board meets with the leader(s) of the Medical Staff, or his/her 

designee(s) either face-to-face or via a telecommunications system permitting immediate, synchronous 
communication. 
 

• “Designee” means an individual recognized by the hospital as a Medical Staff leader. 

POLICY: 
• Approach 

◦ Direct consultation will be with the Board, at least twice yearly, at the monthly board meetings. 
 

• Medical Staff Leader Designee 
◦ In accordance with CMS, the Board may determine if the Medical Staff leader must make the 

designation in writing when he/she chooses to designate another individual to make the periodic 
consultations or whether the leader of the Medical Staff may make informal, ad hoc designation; and 
if advance notice of a designation is required.   

◦ The Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board has determined:  
▪ the designation may be informal and adhoc; and 
▪ the Board requires no advance notice. 

 
• Frequency of Periodic Consultation 

◦ The Medical Staff leader or designee is required to meet at least twice during the fiscal year. 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Board. Retrieved 03/04/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9325052/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

118/277

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

◦ The Board may increase the number of consultations based upon the scope and complexity of the 
hospital services offered, specific patient populations served by the hospital, and any issues of 
patient safety and quality of care that the hospital’s quality assessment and performance 
improvement program might periodically identify as needing the attention of the Board in consultation 
with it's Medical Staff. 
 

• Required Elements of the Consultation 
◦ The required consultation must include discussion of matters related to the quality of medical care 

provided to patients of the hospital. 
 

• Board Responsiveness 
◦ The Board is expected to be responsive to any periodic and/or urgent requests from the leader of the 

Medical Staff or designee for timely consultation on issues regarding the quality of medical care 
provided to patients of the hospital. 
 

• Documentation 
◦ Consultation with the Medical Staff leader or designee will be documented in minutes, including 

attendees and the matters discussed. 

REFERENCES 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Irene Richardson: CEO pending 

Tami Love: CFO 02/2021 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical Officer 02/2021 

Ann Clevenger: CNO 02/2021 

CMS State Operations Manual, Appendix A – Survey Protocol, Regulations and Interpretive Guidelines 
for Hospitals (Rev. 151, 11-20-15), §482.12(a) (10), A-0053 retrieved from https://www.cms.gov/
Regulations-and-Guidance/Guidance/Manuals/downloads/som107ap_a_hospitals.pdf 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Board. Retrieved 03/04/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9325052/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

119/277



COPY

Current Status: Pending PolicyStat ID: 9444179 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: 3 years after approval 
Document Area: General - Housewide 
Reg. Standards: TJC RC.01.05.01, Wyoming 

Statute§16-4-204(e) 

Public Records Release (FOIA) 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

DEFINITIONS 

• Custodian of Hospital Public Records: Executive Assistant to the CEO 

POLICY 
1. Requests for copies of Hospital public records (also known as Freedom of Information Act FOIA request) 

A. A person making a request for access to a public record of the Hospital for inspection, copying, or 
other lawful purposes, shall make the request to the applicable Custodian of Records. Upon receipt 
of the request the Custodian will email or mail a FOIA request form to the person making the 
request.  Once the completed FOIA request is received by the Custodian of Records he/she shall 
provide an estimate of the cost and the amount of time required to comply with the person's request 
and will provide the requesting the records with a Public Records Invoice which shows the cost of 
processing the records request. The invoice estimate of cost and time shall be provided within three 
(3) business days of the receipt of the FOIA request form. 

B. Requests for access to public records shall be completed within ten (10) business days after the 
requesting person has approved payment for the estimate of cost and time required to comply with 
the request, unless the estimate identified a greater level of effort than can be met within the 
applicable ten (10) day time period. 

C. Charges for providing public records will be based on the most current rate schedule for MHSC, to 
be periodically identified as an exhibit to this policy. The requesting party shall pay all charges upon 
receipt of estimate of cost and time for copying of requested records. Current rate schedules may be 
obtained from the Hospital's Administration Office. 

D. If a public record exists primarily or solely in an electronic format, the requesting person shall be so 

To define the responsibility of the Custodian of Records to process requests for copies of public records of 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC), pursuant to the Wyoming Public Records Act as revised. 

For purposes of this policy, the Custodian of Records is a member of the leadership team or a designated 
employee of the Hospital who is responsible for the maintenance, care, and keeping of Hospital public records 
— regardless of whether or not those records are in that individual's actual, personal custody or control.  The 
process to request copies of patient medical records is a separate process and not part of this policy. 

Public Records Release (FOIA). Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
9444179/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

120/277

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

notified. All electronic inspection and copying will be subject to the reasonable cost of producing a 
copy of the public record which may include the costs of producing a copy of the public record and 
the cost of constructing the record, including the cost of programming and computer-service time. 
Electronic records will be provided in alternative formats unless doing so is impractical or impossible. 

E. Wyoming law does not require MHSC to compile data, extract data, or create a new document to 
comply with an electronic-record request if doing so impairs the Hospital's ability to discharge its 
duties. Further, MHSC is not required by Wyoming law to allow inspection or copying of a record in 
its electronic format if doing so would jeopardize or compromise the security or integrity of the 
original record or of any proprietary software in which it is maintained. 

F. The applicable Custodian of Records from MHSC shall determine whether or not any public record 
for which the Hospital is the custodian is subject to denial of the right to inspection under terms of the 
Wyoming Public Records Act. A requesting person who is denied access to a public record may 
request a written statement of the grounds for the denial. 

• $0.50 per page for document requests readily retrievable and not exceeding a maximum of 50 pages in 
total. 

• $0.50 per page plus an hourly rate of $31.75 per hour for document requests exceeding 50 pages in total. 
• Retrieval fee of $30.00 for any documents stored off site or archived in any format. 

References 

Attachments 

802801 - FOIA Public Records Invoice.xls 
803120 - (FOIA) Public Records Request Form 3.21.pdf 

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Ann Clevenger: CNO pending 

NOTE: This policy is adopted in accordance with Wyo. Stat. §16-4-204(e). 

 

Rate Schedule of Charges for Provision of Public Records 

Effective April 14, 2008 

Wyo. Stat. §16-4-204(e). 

Formerly: SPP 1015 Public Records Release Policy 

Public Records Release (FOIA). Retrieved 03/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
9444179/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

121/277



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…March Quality Committee Meeting 
Date:  March 25, 2021 
 
Staff has removed the Risk Management Plan from Committee consideration as Suzan Campbell 
wishes to combine Risk Management with Compliance into a single report. It will first be 
reviewed by the Compliance Committee. 
 
The Committee discussed the Medical Staff Consultation policy. It has been reviewed by the 
MEC and the Joint Conference Committee and is ready for consideration by the Quality 
Committee. It is proposed that the Chief of Staff will present this information to the Board of 
Trustees at the May and September meetings…and more often if needed. The Committee 
approved the proposed policy and it will be on the April Board agenda for consideration. 
 
There was a brief discussion on The Joint Commission Survey. MHSC has no schedule yet and 
the staff continues to prepare for the survey. 
 
The Committee discussed the STAR rating matter. MHSC dropped from a 4-Star to a 2-Star 
rating. The major contributing factors to the drop were c-diff results, HCAHPs, and sepsis 
bundle compliance. The staff laid out a comprehensive, aggressive plan to address this concern. 
Due to COVID, there may well not be a star rating given in 2022. In any event, it is likely the 
earliest MHSC can expect a positive change will be in 2023 as the 2021 statistics will be used in 
that rating. 
 
Dr. Karn gave a Medical Staff update. She opined that MHSC needs “one-on-one” conversations 
regarding the problem areas…often physician to physician conversations are necessary. 
 
Ms. Jackson explained some changes to some dashboards. Discussion took place regarding 
which CMS benchmarks to use. Ms. Jackson indicated that leaders will be reviewing the 
statistics monthly. 
 
Ms. Jackson pointed that some of files provided to Press Ganey were incomplete and MHSC 
subsequently provided the missing files. 

122/277



 

  Page 1 of 4 

Confidential   4/2/2021 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

March 10, 2021 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Kara Jackson (Quality Director), Dr. Banu Symington, Irene 

Richardson (CEO), Marty Kelsey (Quality Board Chair), Leslie Taylor (Clinic Director), 

Dr. Cielette Karn, Tami Love (CFO), Dr. Kari Quickenden (CCO), Ann Clevenger 

(CNO), Dr. Melinda Poyer (CMO) 

 

Guests: Dr. Barbara Sowada (Board Member), Taylor Jones (Board Member),  

 

Non-voting Members:  Valerie Boggs, Cindy Nelson, Corey Worden, Karali Plonsky 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members: Richard Mathey (Board Member) 

  

Non-voting Members: Kalpana Pokhrel, Noreen Hove 

 

Chair:   Mr. Marty Kelsey  

 

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Mr. Kelsey presented the Agenda for approval, Dr. Quickenden motioned to approve, Dr. Karn 

seconded. Motion was approved. Mr. Kelsey than presented the February 17, 2021 Minutes for 

approval. Ms. Richardson motioned to approve, Ms. Jackson seconded the motion. Motion was 

approved.   

 

Mission Moment 

Irene shared a moment that was a compilation of mission moments in relation to our health fair 

at the Senior Center. Many comments from the visitors to the health fair were very 

complimentary of the hospital and staff, in fact the word “compassionate” was used several 

times. 

 

Old Business 

Ms. Hove stated that our In-house legal, Suzan Campbell has asked to remove the Risk 

Management plan from old business, as her plan is to roll this plan into a comprehensive Risk 

and Compliance plan. 

 

Ms. Jackson stated that she and Ms. Richardson were reviewing the Board Reporting calendar, 

and their goal will be to have an update next month. As Marty noted “we would rather have it 

done right, than done fast”.  

 

Ms. Jackson and Dr. Quickenden attended the Joint Conference meeting as guests to discuss 

the Medical Staff Consultation with Board Policy. We have developed a comprehensive plan 

that was approved by MEC in February. Mr. Kelsey agreed this looked to be a good policy, he 

questioned the reporting schedule of May and September. Ms. Jackson agreed that is the 

proposed timing. Dr. Poyer noted that it would likely be Dr. Denker as Chief of Staff who will be 

reporting, but that the premise was open, so others if needed could also report. Mr. Jones and 

Dr. Poyer both agreed that there has always been an open door policy between the Board and 

the Medical Staff, and that the opportunity will continue to be there.  Mr. Kelsey requested a 

 

123/277



 

  Page 2 of 4 

Confidential   4/2/2021 

motion to approve the Medical Staff Consultation with Board Policy.  Dr. Poyer motioned to 

approve, Dr. Symington seconded the motion, motion was unanimously approved. This will now 

be moved forward to the April Board meeting for approval. 

 

Dr. Quickenden reported on The Joint Commission (TJC) Survey waiting process. We are still 

waiting for our survey, although TJC did announce that starting on March 15 they will be 

resuming onsite surveys. Our numbers are still ticking up, thought, so there is a chance we may 

still receive an offsite survey. So, we wait, but in the meantime, we continue to round and ensure 

we are ready for their arrival. 

 

New Business 

Ms. Jackson gave an update on our star rating. Since February 2019 we have had a 4-star 

rating, we received notice that in April our star rating would be refreshed and that we would 

drop down to a 2-star rating. Ms. Jackson noted that both our performance metrics and a 

change in methodology scoring played parts in this step down. The 2021 Star rating results are 

calculated using our 2019 data, showing a drop in c. diff, HCAHPS, sepsis, OP 29 scores. We 

continue to be concerned with c. diff results, HCAHPs, sepsis bundle compliance, all which have 

not improved in 2020 and we had one early elective delivery – which we typically do not have, 

but just one case in this measure can throw us off. CMS calculates and updates the star rating 

once a year but in 2020 CMS provided an option to not submit the first 2 quarters of data due to 

COVID. We did submit the full year of 2020 data, although others may not, and we are unsure 

how this will affect the results. The concern is if they only use two quarters, we may fall short in 

numbers for calculations. Ms. Jackson believes it possible that a star rating may not be given in 

2022. 

 

Dr. Quickenden noted we have been working on a corrective action plan and assigning 

responsibility to individuals for the metrics. We set clear expectations for reporting, and we have 

made several changes within the dashboards, including moving back to the green, yellow and 

red highlighting. Quality metrics that fall below the benchmark and directly affect the star rating 

will require a corrective action plan and will be reported monthly to the PIPS Committee. We 

are looking at software solutions for predicting Star rating calculations. A big part of our Star 

rating is our HCAHPS – 22% of overall rating. We will be working with Leaders in regards to staff 

positions and how our entire organization affects our patient experience and our HCAHPS 

results. We are also asking departments to pick priorities to focus their improvement efforts on.  

Monthly reports will go to PIPS from ED, OR, ICU, Med/Surg and OB. Medical staff will be part of 

these metrics with corresponding Directors. We are also working on the development of a 

communication plan, thanks to Dr. Sowada, and will be incorporating this into our PIPS Plan. 

Plus, we will have a mandatory Leadership meeting in March. We are restructuring leadership 

meetings, with a 15-minute section at the beginning for quality reporting. This plan is fluid and 

we will have all hands on deck as we work to return to a 4-Star rating in the 2023 Star Rating 

Refresh.  

 

Ms. Richardson offered her feelings on the rating decrease. Ms. Richardson stated after the 

rating information came out the Senior leaders immediately started strategic planning – if we fell 

from a 4-star to a 2-star rating in one year than we could return in one year.  Most important is to 

assign responsibility and hold them accountable. Mr. Kelsey questioned the reality of moving 

back to a 4-Star rating in just one year? Ms. Richardson agreed that is a possibility or it may take 

longer, but we will continue to improve our process no matter what methodology for 

calculation they should use. We need to be diligent in our communication with front line staff.  

124/277



 

  Page 3 of 4 

Confidential   4/2/2021 

 

Ms. Richardson suggested two options for  presentation to the Board; the full report or a 

summary of the report. Mr. Jones suggested a summary of the Star rating report be given to the 

Board, getting too deep in the “weeds” is unnecessary. Mr. Kelsey and Dr. Sowada both agree 

with this idea. Dr. Sowada did question a corrective action point that stated “a corrective 

action plan or PIPS improvement documentation tool” would be reported to PIPS and/or MEC 

monthly. Dr. Sowada suggested there should also be a status report to the Quality Board. Dr. 

Quickenden agreed, that was actually part of the plan.  

 

Mr. Jones had a question on reducing the number of meetings, noting meetings are a 

necessary evil, but also reducing the length of the time might be conducive to efficiency and 

effectiveness. Mr. Jones further noted this hospital is populated with very knowledgeable, smart, 

educated people, who both know the issue and the plan, and rehashing it in long meetings is 

counterproductive. Mr. Jones recommended a good read - One Minute Manager, it is the key 

to accountability. 

 

Ms. Jackson further noted in the metrics how low the data numbers really are and that we need 

to recognize that we have to do it right every time. If we only have two cases and one falls out it 

is sure to score below the benchmark. 

 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Karn noted she is no longer on MEC, but had thoughts in regards to the 4-Star rating. She 

noted that sometimes we need one on one conversations with the “problem areas” – 

sometimes it needs to be a physician to physician conversation. Dr. Poyer noted that we are 

doing that now in the ED meeting with the Sepsis data which is reviewed by Dr. Najm on a case 

by case status, then speaks to the specific physician involved. Dr. Quickenden stated Quality will 

send out an email notifying medical staff on fall-outs, although she noted we may need to more 

strongly word the letter so they understand how this fall out impacts our star rating, and 

suggested cc’ing Dr. Poyer, so she is aware as well. “Go Team!” – Dr. Karn. 

 

Informational Items for Review/Discussion 

Mr. Kelsey presented the Informational Items, requesting any pullouts. Ms. Jackson requested first 

the chance to explain the changes to the dashboards. Ms. Jackson reviewed the changes:  

1. Separated out into 3 dashboards 

2. Added responsibility column 

3. Oversight committee column 

4. Verified benchmarks 

5. Added quarterly, yearly, and year to date data 

 Dr. Sowada questioned which benchmark are we using? She noticed that there are several 

options State, National or Top 10%.  Ms. Jackson stated for the CMS benchmark we use the 

national numbers. Dr. Sowada further questioned why not use the top 10% - since that is really 

who we are chasing. Dr. Quickenden agreed that was a valid point and should be discussed 

further. Additionally, Dr. Sowada thought quarterly reporting might not be enough. Ms. Jackson 

stated that the PIPS committee and Leaders will be reviewing it monthly, with Star Rating metrics 

also reported monthly, and all other metrics reported quarterly.  

 

Ms. Jackson further reviewed the information, explaining HCAHPS data from Press Ganey, noting 

it looks different, it is less colorful but is actually more readable. 

 

125/277



 

  Page 4 of 4 

Confidential   4/2/2021 

From the Director – bimonthly 

Ms. Jackson wanted to put concerns first and significant achievements last, so we could end on 

a good note. Quality’s goal is ultimately to be the coach, facilitator and cheerleader. Ms. 

Jackson wanted to recognize and commend everyone on their hard work. We have numerous 

continual and time-consuming quality projects, the looming TJC survey, our Cerner 

implementation, the continuing development of patient safety, and focusing on PI in general – 

including focusing on the Star rating. We are also looking into a replacement for MIDAS.  

 

Ms. Jackson pointed out a current concern since going live with Press Ganey is the difficulties 

with file provision which was not all inclusive of our entire inpatient population, and that 

discrepancy reports have been filed with CMS and will be publicly reported on Care Compare. 

Ms. Plosky noted that as of March 1st all our provided files have been complete, correct and on 

track.   

 

Ms. Jackson wanted to recognize her team and the Senior Leaders for the time that has been 

put in developing a corrective action that will help move us back to a 4-star rating. 

 

Ms. Richardson wanted to echo Ms. Jackson’s comments – by giving credit to the Quality team. 

She further noted we need to adhere to the responsibility and accountability to make this 

happen.   

 

Mr. Kelsey extended his gratitude to the whole staff who have been working diligently toward 

our Star rating. Dr. Sowada echoed Dr. Karn – “Go Team!”. Mr. Taylor stated he had complete 

confidence in our team! 

 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:3am 

 

Next Meeting      April 21, 2021 at 08:15 am via ZOOM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

126/277



Quality, Risk, Safety, & Accreditation Summary  
 

Quality Committee of the Board – March 2021  
 

Three Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Priorities FY 2021 

1. HCAHPS/Patient Experience 

2. High Level Disinfection  

3. Culture of Safety Survey Results and Action Plans 

 

1) Star Rating 

a. There are seven categories within the Star Rating (this has changed there are actually now 

5 categories) and they are as follows: mortality, readmission, safety of care, and timely 

and effective care. The following categories were combined into one called timely and 

effective care: efficient use of medical imaging, timeliness of care, and effectiveness of 

care. Each of these five categories contain several data metrics. Data within the following 

categories continues to trend in right direction: readmissions and safety of care.  

b. Mortality rate has increased in November, December, January. All cases are currently 

under review and will continue to monitor this data.  

c. Timely and Effective Care category:  

i. Efficient Use of Medical Imaging: OP-10 Abdomen CT with and without 

Contrast data has decreased to 0%, meaning no opportunities for improvement 

were identified in December and January.  

ii. Core Sep1 – Early Management Bundle, Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock. Scorecards 

identifying opportunities for improvement continue to be sent to physicians and 

nurses involved in each case. Leadership of Sepsis Work Group is to be 

determined, and we will provide an update when this has been decided upon. 

Improvement work continues for Core OP-23 – Head CT/MRI Results for Stroke 

Pts within 45 minutes of Arrival and Core OP-2 Fibrinolytic Therapy Received 

within 30 minutes.  

d. Patient Experience-HCAHPS: The “Inpatient HCAHPS” is the survey data that affects 

our Star Rating and Value Based Purchasing program. This survey includes OB, ICU, 

and Med-Surg. Please see the “Introduction to Press Ganey- Condensed Version” 

document for further information.  

2) Risk/Safety 

a. Risk – Medication Errors are being reviewed and reported by SMPT. One fall without 

injury was reported by outpatient services. 7 Grievance reports were made. 2 have been 

resolved within the correct time frame. 4 remain open and are under investigation. One 

was recorded as a grievance and should have been an occurrence. 

b. High Level Disinfection – Three indicators were developed to monitor high level 

disinfection. These include high level disinfection log book audits, visual observation of 

high-level disinfection process, and ensuring annual staff competencies for high level 

disinfection are complete and found within their HR file. At this time, 100% of staff 

involved in high level disinfection have their competencies complete and are located in 

127/277



their HR file. Log book audit forms are being individualized for each area and rounding 

to these areas to monitor this process continues.  

c. Safety – The Patient Safety Committee launched at the end of January. The committee 

finalized the charter and data that will be reviewed each month. Several improvement 

opportunities noted by our quality program consultant will be addressed by the 

committee. The Culture of Safety Survey was administered in June, and results have been 

analyzed. Results were presented to Leadership, Town Halls, Quality Committee of the 

Board, MEC, and Board of Trustees. We continue to schedule meetings to share 

individual department data. The committee reviewed the action planning document and 

will form a work group to complete action plans for Culture of Safety Survey 

opportunities for improvement.  The action planning process is thorough and will take 

some time to complete prior to implementing any initiatives. The committee also 

discussed a patient safety issue that was brought forward, with committee members 

working on improvement.  

3) PI Standards 

a. Our PI Standards within the dashboard include data metrics defined by Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and The Joint Commission (TJC), as well as 

priorities identified by MHSC on the Performance Improvement and Patient Safety 

(PIPS) Plan.  

4) Accreditation 

a. We remain in our Joint Commission triennial survey window and a survey will occur 

soon, however this is also dependent upon the COVID 19 situation in Sweetwater 

County. We may receive either an onsite or offsite survey. CSR Committee continues to 

meet weekly in order to prepare. There are some standards that need work to come into 

compliance and this work is underway. “Joint Points” continue to be shared with the 

hospital and clinics and this increased in frequency from once a week to 5 times per week 

starting on February 15th. We continue to round to departments to help them prepare for 

survey. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

128/277



HR CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD FOR MARCH 2021 

 Ed Tardoni 

The Human Resources Committee met in a Zoom format in March.  The committee did not meet in 

February 

HR DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual HR reports are included in the Board packet. 

POLICY ACTIVITY 

POLITICAL ACTIVITY POLICY (resubmitted to the Board with a do pass recommendation) 

This policy will appear under old business for a final Board vote.  See HR Committee meeting minutes 

for notes and discussion on the topic. 

COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS POLICY (sent to the Board with a do pass recommendation) 

This policy will appear under old business for a final Board vote.  See HR Committee meeting minutes 

for notes and discussion on the topic. 

TELECOMMUTING POLICY (sent to the Board with a do pass recommendation) 

This policy will appear under new business since this is the first time the Board will see this.  It spells out 

the difference between occasionally working from home and a full telecommuting assignment.  Board 

members attention is directed to that portion of the policy. 

COMMITTEE DISCUSIONS 

Covid and graduating student clinical training 

The committee discussed the potential impacts to the clinical training of new nursing graduates.  

Committee was informed that the on boarding plan for all new graduate hires is developed on an 

individual employee basis.  Any deficits in clinical training would be taken into account then.  Chief 

Nursing Officer Ann Clevenger explained why a major challenge is not expected in this area. 

Is responsibility related to quality addressed in employee director job descriptions? 

The answer is yes and several example job descriptions were provided for Committee review 

NEXT MEETING 

The HR Committee meets the third Monday of the month.  That would be April 19th, 2021 at 3:00 P.M 

most likely by Zoom 

 

 

129/277



130/277



131/277



132/277



133/277



134/277



135/277



136/277



137/277



138/277



F&A COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD March 2021 

Chair – Ed Tardoni 

 The Finance and Audit Committee met in a Zoom format this month.    All voting members of the 

committee were present. 

F&A DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual F&A reports are included in the Board packet.  

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION. 

The committee, by unanimous vote, sends $1,957,597.76 in capital requests to the Board with a do pass 

recommendation.    $1,739,159.03 is for budgeted items.  $234,899.73 is for items not found in the 

budget. 

Funding sources are classified as follows: 

$133,060 that qualifies for reimbursement from Cares Act Funds.  

$829,000 to submit to the County (this is the remaining balance in the County Maintenance Fund) 

$1,011,998.76 

 funded by MHSC 

 

FY 21-60       $74,560 

 Budgeted Cares Act Eligible 

This item was requested by Mary Fischer.  It is for an automated blood analysis system for the lab. 

FY 21-61     $54,500 

Budgeted Cares Act Eligible 

This item was requested by Mary Fischer.  It is for an automated urine analysis system for the lab. 

FY 21-62      $181,359.20 

Budgeted MHSC Funds 

This item was requested by Bryan Bear.  It is for normal cycle replacement of desktop computers and 

monitors. 

FY 21-63     $519,278.83 

Budgeted MHSC Funds, the item appeared in the Budget as a $500,000 cost 

139/277



This item was requested by Stacy Nutt.  It is for replacement of electronic routing switches throughout 

the hospital buildings.  The existing switches are at the end of their service life. 

FY  21-64     $905,461 

 $829,000 of this amount will be submitted for reimbursement by the County Maintenance fund.  The 

remainder, $76,461 will be funded by MHSC Funds. 

This item was requested by Jim Horan.  It is for air flow control systems located in ducts throughout the 

hospital.  Many of the units to be replaced are 1970’s pneumatically controlled devices for which parts 

may no longer be found.   

FY 21-65     $234,899.73 

This is a non-budgeted item that will be funded by MHSC 

The item was requested by Tami Love.  It is for additional cardiac monitor units that interface with the 

automation of the new Cerner system.  Several month ago, it was found that only a limited number of 

these monitors were included in the Cerner project funding.  Full coverage is desirable from the 

perspective of quality of patient care. Hospital Staff was asked to determine the cost of full coverage.  

This purchase will meet the full coverage requirement. 

  

General Discussion 

Board members will most likely note that many of this month’s capital requests involve sole source 

purchases.  Each of these sole source requests were discussed and determined to be justified.   

However, the necessity of competitive bids was reviewed as a general operating principle. 

Reimbursement Improvement Program 

Ron Cheese made a presentation on the status of the Reimbursement Improvement Program.  Covid 

related issues had impacted completion of some action items.  The effort is back on track and the 

delayed staffing of a collections position has been lifted.  The individual will start work in April.  

Patient Navigation Program 

The impact of the Patient Navigation Program was discussed.  Following the discussion, the F&A 

Committee requested a stand-alone monthly report be developed for routine inclusion in the Board 

Packet.  The Board members of the F&A Committee learned that the program involves software that 

continuously searches the internet for funding sources that match patient needs.  When a match is 

found the program automatically sends an e-mail notice to Ron Cheese and both Patient Navigators.  

These funding finds are of great humanitarian value to the patient and of bottom-line financial value to 

MHSC. 

NEXT MEETING 

The next F&A Committee meeting will be on Wednesday, April 28, at 1600 hours.  Meeting will most 

likely be by Zoom.  Tami Love reminded Committee members that there will be two F&A Committee 

meetings in May.  The usual meeting and one dedicated to a budget review. 

140/277



 

141/277



 

 MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

March 31, 2021 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Ed Tardoni, Trustee-Chairman 

Mr. Taylor Jones Trustee  

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Voting Members Absent:   

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Ms. Ann Clevenger, CNO 

Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials 

Ms. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

 

 

Non-Voting Members Absent : Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen 

 

Guests:    Ms. Mary Fischer, Lab Director 

     Mr. Bryan Bear, Information Technology 

     Ms. Stacey Nutt, Information Technology 

     Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director 

       

      

     Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Tardoni called the meeting to order via teleconference at 2:00 PM. 
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of January 27, 2021 was made by Mr. Richardson; 

second by Ms. Love. Motion carried.  Mr. Jones was not in attendance for that meeting so he 

abstained from voting.  
 

Capital Requests 
 

 

Ms. Fischer presented FY21-60 for the Ortho Vision Automated Blood Bank System.  This 

system will enhance the testing capabilities for transfusion medicine.  Mr. Jones asked what was 

meant by ‘preferred vendor’.  Ms. Fischer said they are preferred if we already use their systems 

as we are used to the workflow and training is minimal.  Mr. Jones wanted to remind everyone 

not to get too comfortable with vendors.  They don’t always give you the best price. Mr. Tardoni 

asked if this item will qualify to use CARES funds.  Ms. Love said that it will qualify. He also 

asked why we received the discount.  Ms. Fischer said that we are good customers, so they gave 

us the same price as new vendors would receive.   The motion to submit to the Board was made 

by Ms. Richardson; second by Ms. Love. Motion carried. 

 

142/277



 

 

Minutes of the March 31, 2021 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

Ms. Fischer also presented FY21-61 for the Urine Analyzer.  She said that this is the third piece 

of equipment needed for this unit.  The first two items we received through the SLIB grant funds.  

This unit automates the process and provides consistency with the urine analysis.  Mr. Tardoni 

asked if there would need to be any modifications to the electrical system.  Ms. Fischer said they 

should not need modifications.  He also asked if this item would quality to use CARES funds.  

Ms. Love said that it would as the other units were purchased with SLIB funds.  Mr. Jones said 

that he would like to see multiple bids on these capital items.   

 

 

FY21-62 was a request for 150 Dell desktops and 200 monitors.  These are replacements for the 

desktops that have reached end of life.  There weren’t any questions on this capital item.  The 

motion to submit to the Board was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion 

carried. 

 

FY21-63 was the replacement of the switches in the network closets.  Ms. Nutt said that the 

current ones have reached end of life for the software development.  The company is no longer 

updating any software for them.  They would like to get these completed before the Cerner Go 

Live date.  Mr. Tardoni asked why there was such a large difference in the quote between 

ConvergeOne and CDW.  Ms. Nutt said that ConvergeOne can get us government pricing and 

the quote from CDW is retail pricing.  Mr. Tardoni also asked if there will be any add-on 

expenses.  Ms. Nutt said that the only additional expense they might have is cable.  They plan on 

using the existing cable where they can.  This project will be completed internally.  The motion 

to submit to the Board was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Love. Motion carried 

 

Capital request FY21-64 was for the Building Automation System.  Mr. Horan said we are 

currently using three systems and it is just not working well.  We cannot get parts for some of 

these systems.  The systems do not talk to each other.  Mr. Jones asked if any other vendors 

could do this same work.  Mr. Horan said that it is necessary to use this vendor to utilize the 

same platforms, controls and programming logic.  Ms. Love said that we can use County 

maintenance funds for this project.  We currently have $829,000 left in our county budget for 

this year.  Mr. Tardoni asked if the work has to be completed before we receive the funds from 

the County.  Ms. Love said that we can send in the proposal and request the funds and they will 

reimburse us.  Mr. Tardoni also asked how long it would take to complete this project.  Mr. 

Horan said it would be at least 4 months of steady work to complete the project.  The motion to 

submit to the Board was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Love. Motion carried. 

 

FY21-65 is a request for GE Carescape One Monitors.  Ms. Love reminded everyone that we 

spoke about these monitors when the GE Cardiac Monitoring System was presented at a prior 

meeting. Ms. Clevenger said that these monitors are portable and stay with the patient.  The 

motion to submit to the Board was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Love. Motion carried. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

143/277



 

 

Minutes of the March 31, 2021 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

Financial Report  
 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Ms. Love reviewed the narrative for February.  February had an operating loss of $191,451, 

comparted to budgeted loss of $205,591.  The YTD total net gain is $3,130,683.  The reduction 

of revenue was down this month at 47.9%.  We are still exceeding the AR goals for accounts 

over 90 days.  The outlook for March has collections projecting to around $8.5 million, one of 

the highest collection months.  The reduction of revenue should be similar to February.  We are 

projecting a gain of around $200,000 in March. 

 

She said that we have received all of the SLIB funds.  We have also received the funds from the 

County for the SLIB grants they did on our behalf.  We have reconciled $9.2 million of CARES 

funds so far.  We are confident we will be able to reconcile the full amount by June 30, 2021. 

 

Mr. Cheese said that the preliminary bad debt for March is $1,281,973.58.  This will be 

presented to the Board for approval.   

 

 

 

New Business 

 

Self-Pay Plan 

 

Mr. Cheese said that we have implemented almost everything in the Self Pay plan except for the 

additional person that we will hire to collect on self-pay accounts.  This person will work a 

variable shift to try and contact patients in the evening hours.  This position is now posted.  This 

part of the plan was placed on hold due to COVID19.  Mr. Cheese said he did change the duties 

of one of his existing employees to try and help make these phone calls and set people up on 

payment plans.  Mr. Jones said he liked the plan, but would like to see how it is working.  Ms. 

Love said that they would put together something to place in the packet monthly.  She said she 

would work with Ron and they will have a draft for the next meeting.  Ms. Richardson said she 

would like to see the savings from the patient navigation program on the free and reduced price 

drugs and how it affected revenue also included in the report.   

 

Financial Forum Discussion 

 

Ms. Love said that the next meeting is April 28th at 2pm.  She said that we are in budget 

meetings with the departments next week.  We plan on having a budget meeting with the 

committee in early May and then still hold the regular meeting at the end of May.  

 

Mr. Tardoni adjourned the meeting at 3:47 PM. 

 

 

 
 

Submitted by Jan Layne 

 

 

144/277



145/277



146/277



147/277



148/277



149/277



150/277



151/277



152/277



153/277



154/277



155/277



156/277



157/277



158/277



159/277



160/277



161/277



162/277



163/277



164/277



165/277



166/277



167/277



168/277



169/277



170/277



171/277



172/277



173/277



174/277



175/277



176/277



177/277



178/277



179/277



180/277



181/277



182/277



183/277



184/277



Separator Page

FY21 64

185/277



186/277



187/277



188/277



189/277



190/277



191/277



192/277



193/277



194/277



195/277



196/277



197/277



198/277



199/277



200/277



201/277



202/277



203/277



204/277



205/277



206/277



207/277



208/277



209/277



210/277



211/277



212/277



213/277



214/277



215/277



216/277



217/277



218/277



219/277



220/277



221/277



222/277



223/277



224/277



225/277



226/277



227/277



228/277



229/277



230/277



231/277



232/277



233/277



234/277



235/277



236/277



237/277



238/277



239/277



240/277



241/277



242/277



243/277



244/277



245/277



246/277



247/277



248/277



249/277



250/277



251/277



252/277



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  April 1, 2021 
 
Regarding the Central Plant expansion project, there continues to be unfinished items. Final 
payment will not be made until all punch list items are completed. 
 
Regarding the HVAC/UVG projects, Jake reported that progress is going well. Irene reported 
that all SLIB funds have been received for this project. 
 
Regarding the Medical Imaging Renovation project, pricing is underway for some proposed 
changes to the intended use for storage. It is proposed that one half of the proposed storage 
area be used for Central Scheduling. Also, an uninterruptible power system (UPS) is being 
proposed to protect some radiology equipment. The Committee had no concerns about the 
proposed changes other than making sure MHSC construction/renovation projects are 
prioritized by staff. Other uses for this space are also under consideration. A change order is 
planned to come to the Finance and Audit Committee. 
 
Regarding the proposed Laboratory addition, Irene related that staff has decided to hold off on 
this project at this time based on financial conditions. She mentioned that perhaps the 
Foundation area could be remodeled for a permanent laboratory. Future discussion necessary. 
 
Regarding the S1 Unit project, Jake mentioned that the temporary air handler rental unit has 
been delivered. The existing air handler will be demolished and the new one will be installed in 
the basement. 
 
Regarding the Chemo Mixing Room project, there is still no decision. The cost to make the 
necessary renovations is estimated to be about $620,000. Inasmuch as this could be a safety 
issue, I asked staff to come up with a more clear pathway forward at the next Building and 
Grounds meeting. 
 
Various other projects are in different stages of progress, including the Pharmacy Compounding 
Room (almost done); Dr. Sulentich’s office renovation (still waiting on lease agreement); Bulk 
Oxygen (funds proposed for FY 2022 to do this project). Tabled projects include: (1) 
Replacement Roofing for Power House; (2) Waldner House foundation wall; (3) OB Bathtubs to 
Showers. 
 
Jim Horan introduced a new project…replacement of the HVAC building automation system 
with new Honeywell controls. Estimated cost is about $900,000. It is proposed that the 
remaining FY 2021 County maintenance funds be used for this project. 

253/277



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

March 16, 2021 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on March 16, 2021, at 

3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering 

    

 
    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to approve the agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the February 16, 2021 meeting. Dr. 

Sowada made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Love seconded; motion passed. 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan said the metrics remain uniform over time.  We have seen an increase in overtime with 

snow removal.  He said there was nothing unusual in the metrics reported and we continue to send 

invoices to the County for reimbursement to offset the budget.   
 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Central Plant Expansion 

 

Mr. Blevins said the General Contractor is pushing for final payment but there are still a few open 

items that need to be completed before he releases the final pay application.  He said he would be 

here the following week for final inspections.  Mr. Johnston said the ladders will be here Friday 

morning. He will be doing a final walk through with the contractor on Friday.  Mr. Kelsey asked 

that the final payment not be released until 100% of the project is complete.  Mr. Blevins agreed.  

 

 HVAC/UVG Projects 

 

Mr. Blevins feels good about the progress the contractor is making and will verify when he is 

onsite next week.  The penthouse has been enclosed and holding heat and the rental units have 

been delivered.  Ms. Richardson said all funds from SLIB have now been received, including the 

request for the HVAC and UVG projects. 

 

 

 

254/277



 

 

Minutes of the March 16, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

. 

Medical Imaging Renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley was unavailable for the meeting this month.  Mr. Blevins reported that pricing is 

underway to address further developments and some comments from the State review.  Groathouse 

is waiting on subcontractors for final pricing but these will be change orders as they are beyond 

the contingency dollars.  Mr. Kelsey asked if these were owner requested.  Mr. Horan explained 

changes to the future interventional radiology (IR) suite we had decided to finish out as a storage 

area.  There has now been discussion to move Central Scheduling into half of that space.  The 

other change is to tie in the Radiologist office spaces to the building UPS power to protect their 

expensive monitors.  Mr. Kelsey asked if these were in the original conversations.  Mr. Horan said 

no, these conversations are taking place now as we look to move some offices around to free up 

clinical space in the MOB.  We have also discussed other uses for the large IR suite in the future. 

Ms. Richardson discussed the moves involving Medical Staff Services, Patient Navigation and 

Central Scheduling.  Mr. Kelsey said he depends on staff to make these decisions and prioritize 

these changes. Mr. Kelsey said he would be willing to have another Building and Grounds 

committee meeting if needed.  Dr. Sowada agreed and said her only concern is the funding of these 

projects.  Ms. Richardson said the funds will come out of the Board Reserve fund.  Ms. Love hoped 

to have the numbers by the end of the month for the Finance meeting.   

   

Laboratory  

 

Ms. Richardson said we have made the decision to hold off on the project based on financial 

projections and effect on days cash on hand.  We have met with all of the parties and have asked 

them to look at costs for remodeling the Foundation area as a permanent outpatient laboratory.  

Mr. Kelsey gave an update from the legislature level and we may see an increase in sales tax to 

help with the economy.  He said if this happens, we probably won’t see any more special purpose 

tax projects.  He likes the approach to be conservative with spending the cash we have on these 

projects. 

 

S1 Unit 

 

Mr. Blevins said the rental unit has been delivered with the temporary unit coming on line next 

week in preparation for demolition of the existing air handler.  The new unit will be delivered in 

pieces and will be erected in the basement. 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Mr. Horan said we received the architectural estimate for this project.  He also found a company 

for the industrial hygienist with a proposal of $4,000.  He had a conversation with Jonathan Beattie, 

the Director of Pharmacy, and the main concern is the lack of monitored pressurization in the 

space.  This will make the space uncertifiable in the future.  Mr. Kelsey asked about the estimate 

and Ms. Love replied the estimate came back at $620,000.  He asked about the priority of this 

project.  Ms. Richardson said we would get a timeline from Mr. Beattie. USP 800 has not been 

adopted yet but will most likely be adopted by the end of the year.  Once adopted, we will need to 

have a plan in place to make the corrections.  Mr. Kelsey asked the committee to bring this back 

next month with a definitive decision on what we need to do.  

 

255/277



 

 

Minutes of the March 16, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Pharmacy Compounding Room  

 

Mr. Johnston said the project is still progressing.  The doors were hung today and they were 

working on ceiling tiles.  The HEPA filters should be delivered this week.  Automation for doors 

will be done next week along with the filters.  This project is almost complete. 

 

Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Ms. Richardson said she met with everyone and he has signed the new lease agreement. Dr. 

Sulentich is still concerned about his ability to bill and get reimbursed once the new space is 

licensed.  It is his responsibility to reach out to confirm the billing and licensing requirements. 

 

Bulk Oxygen 

 

Mr. Horan has made a commitment with Air Gas to have this project completed next fiscal year.  

He will include the project in the FY2022 Capital Budget. 

 

 

Tabled Projects   

 

There are no new updates on the remaining tabled projects as most are on hold for the spring 

weather.  Ms. Love mentioned these projects will also be included in the FY2022 Capital Budget. 

 

 Replacement Roofing for Power House  

 Foundation Waldner House Wall  

 OB Bathtubs to Showers  

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Horan introduced a new project to replace the existing building automation system.  The plan 

is to use the remaining County maintenance funds towards this project.  He said this has been on 

the radar for a while as a portion of the building has been updated but most of the building is on 

the old pneumatic system.  We will be taking the capital request to the March Finance meeting.  

Mr. Kelsey asked how much the project will be and if we will be staying with Honeywell controls.  

The project has been estimated at $900,000.  We will be staying with Honeywell as it is advisable 

to match the current system and the service is a plus.  Mr. Blevins commented building automation 

has proven to reduce the maintenance burden of a facility and he 100% in support of this project.  

Dr. Sowada asked how long the project would take if it is approved.  Mr. Horan said Honeywell 

would have a dedicated team onsite for at least six months.  

 

Mr. Johnston shared some pictures of the ongoing construction projects.  Mr. Kelsey said he can’t 

wait to come back onsite for a tour of all these projects.  

 

The next meeting will be held April 20 at 3:30 p.m.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 4:32 p.m.  
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

256/277



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BUILDING & GROUNDS COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Tuesday ~ March 16, 2021  3:30 p.m.  Zoom teleconference   

   

Voting Board Committee Members:     Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chairman  

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee 

 

Voting Staff Committee Members:   Irene Richardson, CEO 

Tami Love, CFO 

Jim Horan, Director of Facilities 

 

Non-voting Members:     Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

Stevie Nosich, Safety Coordinator 

 

Guests:      Jake Blevins – ST&B Engineering 

Will Wheatley – PlanOne Architects 

Jeff Smith - County Commissioner Liaison 

 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

2. Approve Agenda      Marty Kelsey 

3. Approve Minutes – February 16, 2021    Marty Kelsey 

4. Maintenance Metrics      Jim Horan 

a. Work orders  

b. Department overtime  

c. Budget variance 

 

5. Old Business        

a. Project Review       

i. Central Plant expansion    Jake Blevins/Gerry Johnston 

ii. HVAC/UVG projects    Jake Blevins     

iii. Medical Imaging renovation   Will Wheatley/Jake Blevins/Gerry Johnston 

iv. Laboratory     Will Wheatley 

v. S1 Unit      Jake Blevins 

vi. Chemo Mixing room    Jim Horan 

vii. Pharmacy Compounding room   Gerry Johnston 

viii. Dr. Sulentich Office    Will Wheatley 

ix. Bulk Oxygen     Jim Horan 

b. Tabled projects      Jim Horan 

i. Replacement roofing for power house  

1/5257/277



ii. OB Bathtubs to Showers 

iii. Foundation Waldner House retaining wall 

   

6. New Business       Jim Horan 

a. Building automation system upgrade 

b. In house office moves 

 

7. Next meeting schedule      Marty Kelsey 

a. April 20, 2021 Classroom 1 or Zoom; 3:30P – 4:30P 

 

8. Adjournment       Marty Kelsey 

 

 

 

 

 

2/5258/277



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

February 16, 2021 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on February 16, 2021, at 

3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering 

   Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

 
    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to approve the agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the January 19, 2021 meeting. Dr. 

Sowada made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan said we have seen an increase in overtime with the winter storms and the added snow 

removal.  He said there was nothing unusual in the metrics reported.   
 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Central Plant Expansion 

 

Mr. Blevins said they issued the substantial completion notice. There are still a few items left on 

the list to be completed but we are nearing the completion of the project.  Mr. Kelsey asked if there 

were any surprises that we should be aware of.  Mr. Blevins said they have not seen any issues.  

The contractor is motivated to complete the punch list as they want to see the remaining payment 

be issued.  

 

 HVAC/UVG Projects 

 

Mr. Blevins is onsite checking on the progress of both of these projects.  He feels everything is 

moving forward in the right direction.  There has been a flurry of activity with the added projects 

recently approved by the Board.  Those projects are ramping up also. 

 

Medical Imaging Renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley talked about the added scope that had been approved under the CMAR.  They are 

moving forward with RFI’s and asbestos testing.  Ms. Richardson signed everything so final 

3/5259/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 16, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

submittals have been sent to the State.  He is working on final drawings to be sent to the City of 

Rock Springs on the electrical.  Ms. Love said the project was approved at a prior Board meeting 

and the pricing ended up coming in less than the approved estimate.  It will be done as change 

order #1 under the current CMAR project with Groathouse.  Mr. Horan thanked the Board 

members for approving this project. He would like to invite the Board to see the construction if 

possible.  This fall, he is planning a tour of the Central Plan to show the completed project to the 

Board and County Commissioners.  Dr. Sowada asked about the remaining portions of Medical 

Imaging being fixed up.  Mr. Horan said the whole area would be spruced up. 

   

Laboratory  

 

Mr. Wheatley went over the dates for the CMAR process with expected to break ground in May. 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Mr. Horan said he is finalizing the review with Mr. Blevins and Mr. Wheatley.  They have 

discovered there will be a domino effect as to areas need to be moved.  He hopes to have the 

proposal ready to bring to next month’s meeting. They want to make sure the scope is defined 

ahead of time to get an accurate proposal.  Dr. Sowada asked about a ripple effect and if others 

will be displaced.  Mr. Horan said they are still working through those details to assure staff and 

patient care is not disrupted.  

 

Pharmacy Compounding Room  

 

Mr. Johnston said the project is still under way.  The inspections for electrical and mechanical are 

done.  Drywall and insulation are being done now and he hopes to be completed in about three 

weeks.  Mr. Horan said he would bring pictures of the projects to the next meeting. 

 

Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Ms. Richardson is still working on getting the signed contract back from Dr. Sulentich.  She said 

he was grateful to the Board for approving the project.  Mr. Wheatley will move forward as soon 

as he is notified of the signed contract. 

 

Tabled Projects   

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for an update on the Bulk Oxygen tank.  Mr. Horan said we are still waiting on 

a proposal.  There is now a conflict as the temporary air handler will be positioned where the 

temporary oxygen tank will need to be placed.  He hopes to have this project completed by the end 

of the fiscal year.  The vendor said they like to replace a tank every 50 years and ours is coming 

up on that age.  He hopes to have a proposal by next month. 

 

There are no new updates on the remaining tabled projects as most are on hold for the spring 

weather. 

 

 Replacement Roofing for Power House  

 Foundation Waldner House Wall  

 OB Bathtubs to Showers  

4/5260/277



 

 

Minutes of the February 16, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if there was any new business to be discussed.  

 

Mr. Horan discussed the issues we have been having with the MOB main entrance doors.  We 

originally planned on doing this as a SLIB project but it was tabled as the timeline couldn’t be met.  

We are looking to resurrect this project. Mr. Kelsey asked about what areas we are looking at.  Mr. 

Horan said at this time it would just be the main doors of the MOB.  Mr. Kelsey said it seems like 

it was a design flaw from the beginning as they facing due south.  Ms. Richardson asked if the 

SLIB had denied it again.  Mr. Horan will check with Tiffany Marshall. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for an update on the reconciliation of the CARES Act money.  Ms. Love said 

there hasn’t been any update since December.  We have reconciled $9.2 million through 

December.  She has resent the information on the outstanding SLIB projects.  She also said the 

SLIB grants submitted by the County on our behalf have been approved and we will be receiving 

another $342,000 from those grants. 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked the Board for being proactive to help us manage the pandemic and 

approving these projects.  Mr. Kelsey said he appreciates the Leadership at the Hospital.  Mr. 

Horan thanked Ms. Richardson for her support on letting them work through all of the deferred 

maintenance projects. 

 

Mr. Johnston described the shared pictures of the pharmacy project. 

 

Mr. Blevins discussed the S1 Unit that was approved as a second change order from Groathouse. 

Groathouse has agreed to keep all of the funding for these three projects separated on the pay 

applications. We will add this as a separate line item to the next agenda.   

 

The next meeting will be held March 16 at 3:30 p.m.   

 

Mr. Kelsey expressed his appreciation to all of the Facility staff and Senior Leaders in tracking all 

of these new projects.  He also asked Ms. Richardson to follow-up with Dr. Sulentich on the 

contract. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 4:10 p.m.  
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

5/5261/277



COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD MARCH, 2021 

 Ed Tardoni 

The Compliance Committee met in February and March in Zoom format.  The March meeting was 

focused on an update on the continuity of the audit program and lasted only a few minutes. 

Board attention is directed to the following: 

 When reviewing the compliance packet, Board Members will notice a discussion of continuity 

concerns with the audit program.  This was a major item of discussion in February.  The brief 

March meeting was to secure an update on progress with resolution of those matters.  It was 

reported that the challenges (Covid related, computer hardware, computer software 

compatibility) had been resolved and the audit program is back on track. 

 Attention is also directed to an accounting of MHSC performance related to Covid Vaccinations.  

That is included in the February minutes and is very informative. 

NEXT MEETING  

The next meeting of the committee will be held April 22, 2021 at 1530 hours most likely by Zoom. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

262/277



 

     Board Compliance Committee Meeting 

     Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

February 25th, 2021 

 
  

Present via Zoom: Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell, Noreen Hove, Marty Kelsey, Ed Tardoni,            
April Prado 
Excused:  

     Minutes 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3:32pm by Ed Tardoni 
 
Noreen shared a “Mission Moment” about a family members recent ED visit. She stated that everything 
went great, the staff was amazing and it was nice to see things that the grievance committee has been 
working on being put in motion. Ed added that he had a friend that told him that he had had many 
problems with the hospital but now he doesn’t.  
  
The February agenda was approved as written, Suzan made the motion and Marty seconded it. The 
meeting minutes from November were approved as written. Noreen made the motion and Irene 
seconded it.  
 

Old Business 

A- After reviewing the notes from the last meeting, Noreen stated that the Risk Management 
Plan and the Compliance Plan are currently being combined by Suzan. Suzan verified that 
she is currently working on this. Ed clarified that this was the document that this committee 
sent to Quality for review. Noreen stated that this is that document. The committee will be 
updated when updates are available.   

New Business 
A- COVID-19 Vaccine Update- Noreen presented our vaccine timeline to show all the work that 

has gone into getting this to vaccine out to workers and the community. Given all the 
obstacles, the clinics went very smoothly. Noreen added that when we first got the vaccine, 
several key staff members were gone and we were basically starting from scratch with 
everything. All that aside, we were able to get the first vaccine clinic started and gave our 
first shot within 3 hours- Great job team! Noreen also stated that we were able to work with 
other community entities to get the residents of our long-term healthcare facilities the 
vaccine weeks before they initially thought. It was brought up that there will be no more 
clinics at the hospital and that Public Health is now overseeing this. Noreen said that having 
the vaccine clinic at the hospital allowed our Emergency Management team the opportunity 
to fulfill a required “Surge Drill” for the facility. Ed added that it appears that coordination 
between the different community entities went extremely well. It was clarified that 
employees receiving the vaccine off-site need to report that to Employee Health and Noreen 
is working with them to gather all that information. Ed asked if the hospital received 
compensation for administering the vaccine. Irene stated that we were not- CARES Act 
money could be used to pay staff for administering the vaccine but we were not 
compensated in any other way.  

Reports 
Behavioral Health- Noreen reported that due to change in staffing, BH reports have not been updated 

since November of 2020. The new ED Director is working to re-vamp the data collection in this area. 

  

263/277



 

Noreen will bring a report next month. Suzan asked if this will also include Title XXIV patients. Noreen 

said that she believes so and that Dirk is currently working on this.  

HIPAA- Noreen reported that there were 2 HIPAA violations investigated in November and one in 

December. The November investigations resulted in employees being coached and monitored. The 

December investigation revealed as issue with a sorter on a printer. This issue was resolved. Noreen also 

announced the forming of a HIPAA Committee that will be meeting monthly to go over these cases. It 

was also discussed that we are currently reviewing the need for our current monitoring system, 

FairWarning. Several are involved in looking to see if our new system, Cerner, can provide us this 

service. Irene asked that she be informed if Cerner can provide this. A FairWarning report was attached 

for review by the committee. 

Grievances- Noreen shared that the Grievance Committee resolved 2 cases for the month of November. 

3 in December and 2 in January. Each of the cases were reviewed and resolved in a timely manner and 1 

of the cases from January will be coming back to committee. 

Audits- Noreen stated that Quality requested to change the Grievance Audit be changed to calendar 

year instead of fiscal year. This will suffice Quality issues with grievance review and will be done. April 

had no updates on audits. 

Additional Discussion: 

Ed questioned the gap in BH reporting being November 2020 until now. Noreen stated that Dirk is still 

gathering data to meet Joint Commission standards. It was discussed that staffing has been the issue 

and has been resolved and I being re-vamped. Ed also questioned the break in audits and the lack of an 

update. April and Noreen both reported that there have been several office moves along with programs 

not being compatible with laptop use. A semi-permanent office has been found for April and she is 

currently waiting for IT to move her desktop there. Ed asked if we have been consistent in this area and 

we have not been able to. Noreen stated she will be bringing the Compliance Work Plan to the meeting 

next month for review. The Board packet was discussed and it was decided that the packet will include 

the FairWarning report under Compliance, the vaccine timeline under Irene’s notes, the reports from 

this meeting and the meeting minutes. 

 

Adjournment   The meeting adjourned at 4:03p.m. 

 

Next Meeting   March 25th @ 3:30pm 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
_________________________________________________ 

April Prado, Recording Secretary 

264/277



Agenda Board Compliance Committee 
February 25, 2021 

3:30 PM 
Zoom 

 

 

3:30 Call to order          E. Tardoni 

3:35 Mission Moment 

3:45 Approve Agenda                                                                                                           E. Tardoni 

3:50 Approve Minutes                                    E. Tardoni  

4:00 Old Business 

4:15 New Business 

A. COVID 19 Vaccine Update                   N. Hove 

4:20 Reports 

 January Fair Warning report             N. Hove 

 

4:30 Adjourn         E. Tardoni 

 

265/277



2/16/2021 Aura

https://fairwarning.lightning.force.com/c/erApp.app?recordId=0013800001H1mj9 1/4

Ideas  | Learning Center  | Community
January 2021

Your Monthly Effectiveness Report

Learn more about your FairWarning solution and how to ensure Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County is receiving
the most value possible.

FairWarning, Inc

NEWS & UPDATES

FairWarning’s Customer Office Hours. Our next customer office hours event is February 5. Join
us for an exci�ng opportunity to ask ques�ons and get live feedback from a FairWarning expert.
We welcome all customers as we con�nue to learn about and op�mize the use of your
FairWarning Pa�ent Privacy Intelligence pla�orm. We look forward to helping you!  
Register for FairWarning’s Customer Office Hours here.

FairWarning Ready Professional Training Program. The FairWarning Ready Cer�fied
Professionals training program includes advanced user training to set up proac�ve aler�ng,
complete management of privacy related inves�ga�ons, and governance and repor�ng to
ensure effec�ve pa�ent privacy monitoring. Join us to hear from experts on pa�ent privacy
monitoring and healthcare privacy laws and regula�ons, including responding and repor�ng to
government no�ces. 
Register for the Epic FairWarning Ready Program February 15-19 here.
Register for the Meditech FairWarning Ready Program March 22-26 here.

Look for addi�onal news and exci�ng customer programs in your FairWarning customer
newsle�er. The next edi�on drops Friday, February 5, 2021!

YOUR USAGE AND ADOPTION SUMMARY

Active Enforced Policies

Quick Reports

Ad Hoc Reports

Intelligent Filtering

Machine Learning Enabled

Automatic Incident Response

Dynamic Identity Intelligence

Person of Interest

FairWarning Version  This indicates you are not using this feature. Contact your CEM to learn

more.

MONTHLY INVESTIGATION ACTIVITY

Your confirmed
incidents

13
Indicates potential breach, policy
violation or incident

Your investigation to
incident ratio

32%
The percentage of closed
investigations that were incidents

Your open
investigations

3
Number of open investigations
created last month

266/277



2/16/2021 Aura

https://fairwarning.lightning.force.com/c/erApp.app?recordId=0013800001H1mj9 2/4

Incident Trend

Last 6-months

Your average of 2 incidents per
month compares to the

customer average of 8 per
month.

Great job! You are below
our customer average.

Investigation Trend

Last 6-months

Your average of 2 investigations
created per month compares to

the customer average of 18 per
month.

MONTHLY ALERT ACTIVITY

Your active Enforced
Policies

2
Total number of active policies
monitoring for inappropriate
access.
Customer average is 10.

Your current alerts
under review

1
Total number of created alerts this
month that are under review.
Customer average is 6.

Your alerts closed with
investigation

3
Total number of alerts that
required an investigation.
Customer average is 20.

Alerts Created vs. Closed Trend
1% of alerts were closed by Intelligent Filtering this month

Last 6-months

Your average closure of alerts

created per month is 99%.

267/277



2/16/2021 Aura

https://fairwarning.lightning.force.com/c/erApp.app?recordId=0013800001H1mj9 3/4

Total Login Trend

Last 6-months

Your team's average logins per

month is 55. This compares to

the customer average of 123
per month.

USAGE

Your integrated applications

2
Computerized-Patient Record, eMD EHR

Your unused data source licenses

0
Represents the total number of purchased data source licenses remaining

Your storage usage

SaaS

1% 

0.0576171875 of 4 TB

Your monthly storage growth

0% 

0.001 of 4 TB

TRAINING AND COMMUNITY ACTIVITY

Certified Users 

Learn More
0 out of 8 
0 available training voucher(s)

Master Certified Users 

Learn More
0 out of 8 
0 available training voucher(s)

268/277



2/16/2021 Aura

https://fairwarning.lightning.force.com/c/erApp.app?recordId=0013800001H1mj9 4/4

Connect with us  

Customer Council Member Inactive

User Group Member Inactive

269/277



Reports for Board Compliance Committee   02-25-2021 

1. Jessica Van Valkenburg was collecting data for Behavioral Health Compliance, she departed in 

December of 2020.  There have been no updates since November of 2020. The new Director of 

the Emergency Department is taking over this task and we should have a report next month. 

 

2. There was 2 HIPPA violation investigated in November and one in December. Both cases the 

employees were coached and will be monitored. The one in December revealed an issue with 

the sorter on the printer. This has since been resolved.   

 

a. Carrie Canestorp, the Director of Health Information Management conducted a HIPPA 

committee meeting last week. Discussion was had regarding new software that is 

coming with Cerner, and if we are going to keep Fair Warning in conjunction with the 

new software of discontinue Fair Warning.   

b. We are going to have monthly meetings to discuss the violations. The attached report is 

from Fair warning and we will get these reports each month. 

 

3. The Grievance Committee resolved 2 cases in November, 3 in December, and 4 in January. Each 

of the cases were reviewed and resolved in a timely manner.  

 

 

4.  Ongoing Audits by April Prado 

a. Per request of Quality we are changing the Grievance Audit to Calendar Year. 

270/277



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

March 5, 2021 

Zoom Meeting 

 

Voting Members Present: Richard Mathey, Irene Richardson, and Barbara Sowada 

Non-voting Members Present: Marianne Sanders 

Call Meeting to Order 

Richard Mathey called meeting to order at 2:00 pm. 

 

Discussion 

Agenda was created during the meeting. 

Minutes January minutes had been previously approved by email  

New Business 

1. Began review of first draft of Board Bylaws. First four pages reviewed. Goal is to have final copy ready 

for Board first reading at April or May meeting. Marianne and Suzan Campbell will help with editing. 

2. Discussion regarding Board policies. It was determined that Board policies are inter-mixed with 

hospital policies in Policy-Stat. Irene suggested that Marianne work with Robin Fife to create a 

separate category within Policy-State to house Board policies.  

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:00 pm. 

Submitted by Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

 

271/277



272/277



273/277



274/277



275/277



276/277



277/277


	Agenda - April 7 2021 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	February 3 2021 Minutes
	Minutes for February 8 2021 Special Meeting
	Minutes for February 9 2021 Emergency Meeting
	Minutes for February 11 2021 Special Meeting
	February 24 2021 Minutes Special Meeting
	Minutes for March 30 2021 Special Meeting
	3. Political Activity 
	Communication Systems 
	Medical Staff Rules and Regulations
	1. Proposed Changes to Existing Bylaws 
	Proposed Changes to New Bylaws 
	Board Bylaws
	Telecommuting
	Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care
	Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Board Policy
	FOIA Public Records
	Quality Committee...Chair&apos;s Report...March 2021 Marty Kelsey
	3.10.21 Quality Minutes
	Quality Committee Summary March
	HR chair report March 2021
	HR Committee Meeting Info for March 2021
	FA chair report March 2021
	Finance and Audit Comm Minutes March 31 2021 Draft
	FY21 60
	FY21 61
	FY21 62
	FY21 63
	FY21 64
	FY21 65
	March Committee Meeting Information 
	Buildings and Grounds Committee...Chair&apos;s Report March 2021 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes March 16 2021 Draft
	March 16, 2021 Building and Grounds-1
	Compliance Committee chair report March 2021
	BCC Meeting Minutes Feb 2021
	Agenda Board Compliance Committee February 25 2021
	January FairWarning Effectiveness Report for Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
	Reports 2.25.2021
	Governance Committee
	1. Agreement for Occupational Health Medical Services Jim Bridger Power Plant 
	Second Amendment to Specialty Services Agreement (Wamsutter Clinic High Desert Rural Health Care District)
	Varian 
	VIE Healthcare 

